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A
VISION =

The Group aspires to be a leading Chinese
property developer with a renowned brand
backed by cultural substance.

FEBEERBREAXLAR - mREEN
TEALEHEMRE -

fii
MISSION 4

The Group is driven by a corporate spirit and fine
tradition that attaches importance to dedication, honesty
and integrity. Its development strategy advocates
professionalism, market-orientation and internationalism.
It also strives to enhance the architectural quality and
commercial value of the properties by instilling cultural
substance into its property projects. Ultimately, it aims
to build a pleasant living environment for its clients and
create satisfactory returns to its shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TS

Corporate Background

The Group is one of the foremost property developers in
China and is the real estate offshore listed flagship of
China Poly Group Corporation Limited (a state-owned
major include property
development, investment and management. The Group

enterprise). Its businesses
develops residential and commercial properties in the most
active areas in terms of economic development in China,
including Yangtze River Delta, Delta,
Southwestern region, other regions as well as Hong Kong,
Macau and overseas. Projects of the Group are located in
24 major cities within and outside China, including
Shanghai, Hong Kong, London, Guangzhou, Wuhan,
Suzhou, Jinan, Harbin, Ningbo, Guiyang and Nanning,
among others. The Group maintains a high-quality
investment property portfolio in various cities comprising
landmark properties such as Shanghai Poly Plaza, Shanghai

Pearl River

Stock Exchange Building and Beijing Poly Plaza.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2018, China’s economy effectively coped with changes
in the external environment and maintained sustainable
and healthy growth. During the year, the PBOC reduced
the deposit reserve ratio four times to strategically relieve
the financing difficulty in real economy and reasonably
enlarge the monetary credits and social finance scale. The
general control policies in respect of the real estate
market

remained stable and consistent and the local

governments continued to improve and refine the
regulatory measures, resulting in a slowdown of sales in

the industry in the second half of the year.

During the year, the Group recorded profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$2,242 million, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 9.0%, mainly attributed to a decrease in
recognised projects sales. The overall gross profit margin
of the Company further improved as the Group has always
emphasised acquiring land reserves at reasonable cost, and
the average prices of contracted sales recorded continuous
growth. The board of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company (the “Board”) recommended distribution of a
final dividend of HK12.3 cents per share to shareholders in
appreciation of their support.

At the beginning of the year, in order to cope with the
control policies and more severe financing environment
effectively, cash flow management became the main focus
of the Group in the year. On the one hand, the Group
focused on its sales and cash collection. During the year,
the Group recorded contracted sales of approximately
RMB40.8 billion and collection of approximately RMB41.2
billion. The collection rate increased by 2 percentage
points year-on-year. On the other hand, the Group actively
developed diversified low-cost financing channels,
including the issuance of USD-denominated guaranteed
notes, private issuance of corporate bonds specialised in
rental housing, issuance of notes backed by mortgage
loans of commercial properties and asset-backed securities
backed by final payment of house purchasing. In particular,
the USD-denominated guaranteed notes and private
issuance of corporate bonds specialised in rental housing
were issued at the lowest coupon rates among similar
bonds issued by other property developers during the
same period, fully reflecting the market confidence on the
stable and strong performance of the Group. During the
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year, through strengthening sales collection and effective
debt replacement, the Group maintained its advantage in
terms of funding costs and further optimised its debt
structure. The proportion of short-term debts and trust
loans has significantly reduced.

In 2018, the land disposal requirement in the open market
became more stringent as local governments imposed
more restrictions on the holding, resettlement and
construction, and selling prices of land parcels. In view of
tightening domestic and overseas financing channels,
property developers tended to be more prudent in land
acquisition, resulting in more abortive land auctions and
land transactions at zero premium. During the year, the
Group added

acquired Jinan Huai Yin Project under the industrial real

14 new property projects. The Group

estate model and acquired Mudanjiang Poly Landscape
Project with the idea of cultural town for the first time.
The Group also acquired Zibo Da Cheng Project through
the cooperation with state-owned enterprises. With more
diversified ways of acquisition, land prices have been
effectively controlled. During the year, the average cost of
new projects obtained by the Group in the mainland
market was approximately RMB4,600 per square metre,
which enhanced the Company’'s advantage in terms of
low-cost land reserve in the industry.

For business diversification, the Group acquired the Hong
Kong Yau Tong Project for overseas development and the
tender price was close to the lower end of market
expectation. The land reserve was effectively replenished.
Upon obtaining Type 1, Type 4 and Type 9 licences by the
fund platform from the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong during the year, the Group is well-prepared
to engage in the financial business, in order to improve
capital operation and industry-finance integration.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHE

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In 2019, under the effect of the rise of trade
protectionism and other factors, the global growth is
expected to slow down. In spite of the complicated
environment, China’s economy has entered into the critical
cycle full of strategic opportunities. The Central Economic
Work Conference has stated that
macroeconomic policies, countercyclical adjustments shall
be made with more positive and effective fiscal policies
and a moderately prudent monetary policy. In order to
ensure the healthy growth of the real estate market, a
long-term mechanism shall be developed by strictly
adhering to the philosophy of “houses are for living, not
for speculation (FFER®KEH - TE2AKYH)". Local
governments shall take the primary responsibilities to
implement localised policies and classified guidelines
based on the conditions of different cities in order to

in view of the

regulate the housing market system and strengthen the
housing security system.

It is expected that the performance in the property
markets of first and second-tier cities and third and fourth-
tier cities will be polarised. Nonetheless, the Group has
acquired sufficient land reserves with high quality and at
low cost, and more than 70% of which are located in first
and second-tier cities. The Group will pay close attention
to the policies and market development of every region
where it operates, and endeavour to improve sales and
cash collection when the opportunity arises in order to
strive for reasonable project premium. Meanwhile, the
Group will enhance its liquidity through active destocking.

In 2019, stabilising the land price, housing price and
market expectations will become the main tone of control
policies. Land acquisition of real estate developers will
become more rational under the constraint of housing
price expectation and financing environment. The Group
will proactively grasp the opportunity during the strategic
development cycle to obtain quality projects at lower
prices. It will continue to diversify its acquisition sources to
effectively control land cost. The Group will emphasise the
operation in key metropolitan areas with sustainable
growth in the number of enterprises and population and
increasing demand, and focus on developing residential
properties with high turnover rate. It will also pay close
attention to business opportunities arising from projects
such as urban redevelopment, military-civilian integration
and industrial real estate.
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The Group will strive to maintain a sound financial position
by focusing on cash flow management and balancing
between project investment and development and sales.
The Group will continue to optimise its liability structure by
enhancing profitability and maintaining steady growth in
cash flow in order to reduce the gearing ratio and funding
costs. The Group will further diversify its financing
channels by developing additional sources for assets
securitisation to enrich its financing products. Moreover, it
will strengthen corporate governance and risk
management for supporting the sustainable development

of the Company effectively.

The Group will further optimise its management and

control model and refine the standards for project

It will
continue to improve product quality by implementing

development cycle to enhance asset turnover.

specific standards and promoting innovation and upgrade
of products, with an aim to enhance the brand premium of
“Poly”. The Group will effectively control its cost contracts
by expanding the scope and scale of centralised
procurement for lower costs and higher efficiency. By
strictly implementing the construction management policies
and safety check, the Group will enhance the quality of
products and development efficiency. In January 2019, the
Group implemented a share incentive scheme to retain and
attract quality employees and unify benefits of the
management, employees and shareholders.

The Group strives to become an internationally-renowned
and leading real estate developer in China in order to
maximise the values for its customers, shareholders,
employees and the society. Being the only overseas-listed
real estate flagship of China Poly Group, the Group is
confident of its business prospects and believes that it will
continue to receive continuous attention and support from
its parent company. The Group will firmly take an active
role in business operation and pursue growth driven by
innovation while maintaining comprehensive risk control. It
will adhere to the customer-oriented development
philosophy with quality as top priority. Focusing on the
core business of real estate development, the Group will
seek to optimise efficiency and quality to provide greater

returns for its shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R B AT

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 (the “Year”), the
Group recorded a revenue of HK$23,233,644,000 (2017:
HK$31,703,042,000), representing a decrease of 26.7%
when comparing to last year. Profit attributable to
shareholders amounted to HK$2,241,590,000 (2017:
HK$2,462,061,000), while basic and diluted earnings per
share were HK61.22 cents (2017: HK67.24 cents). The
Board of Directors of the Company recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK12.3 cents per share.

As at 31st December, 2018, shareholders’ equity of the
Group amounted to HK$29,889,095,000 (as at 31st
2017: HK$28,296,364,000), along with a net
asset value per share of HK$8.16 (as at 31st December,
2017: HK$7.73).

December,

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

The total GFA of newly commenced construction of Poly
Property Group
ventures and associated companies) during the year was
The total
contracted area sold amounted to approximately 2,242,000

(the Group, together with its joint

approximately 4,076,000 square metres.

square metres. There were 68 continual launches and 8
debut launches during the Year. The GFA of construction
completed during the Year was approximately 3,617,000
square metres. As at 31st December, 2018, Poly Property
Group had 57 projects under construction or planning,
representing a total GFA of approximately 20,250,000
square metres.
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PROPERTY SALES

In 2018, total sales scale of the real estate industry in
China further increased. According to the National Bureau
of Statistics, the sales of commodity properties during the
Year were nearly RMB15 trillion, representing a year-on-
year increase of 12.2%. According to statistics of 70 large
and medium-sized cities, the average selling price of newly
constructed residential buildings as at the end of the Year
increased at a higher rate when compared to last year.
Under the policy of “no speculation of residential
properties” (5 £ T 1),
various control measures, resulting in slow-down of the

local governments introduced
growth of sales in the second half of the Year. The sales of
projects slowed down and the market expectation was

more rational.

During the Year, Poly Property Group recorded contracted
area sold of approximately 2,242,000 square metres, or
approximately RMB40.8 billion in value, achieving 102% of
its annual sales target of RMB40.0 billion. 15 projects
recorded contracted sales of over RMB1 billion, including
Shanghai Poly Phili Regency, Nanning Poly Town, Suzhou
Poly Lake Mansion, Hong Kong Kai Tak Vibe Centro and
Guangzhou Nansha Poly City. In 2018, the average selling
price of contracted sales was RMB18,193 per square
metre, representing an increase of 20% when compared to
last year. The average selling price of projects in mainland
China increased by 32% year-on-year.
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BRELESRFAFEFSE BERINEFAH
BEMRAEHEE FEREEEMEMNED
RBAFE - —T—N\F RAANHEEHEE
E118,1937T, F A K » R K20% - Heh - &
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During the Year, in order to enhance the operation
efficiency of projects and professional management of
various business lines, the Group has selected three
projects, namely Nanning Poly Town, Wuhan Poly
Riverview and Zibo Poly Mansion, as “Premium +"
Projects, for improvement in product quality, cost control,

marketing and investment management. These projects

A THE—Z IR ARIEB AR ZEKFNER
GFREXEZEEN FAXEEEETBHERMNE
75 A1 BUZ R AT 88 MUS 1R T E R = @18
BRRIME+FEIERTHE LER KA &
HEMREEENMEsE2ARERA HR &
BRERENTEER  LABIRAMEREK
A ah b (B o

served as models, which has resulted in significant

improvement of development efficiency and brand

premium.

Contracted Contracted

Sales in Area Sold

2018 by in 2018 by
Region' Percentage Region Percentage

—E-N\F

ax —E-N\F

HESHE EHHER

EiE 5 BEEHS

(RMB ('000 square
million) (%) metres) (%)

(AR
BET) (%) (FFFK) (%)
Yangtze River Delta rE=A 12,439 31% 346 16%
Pearl River Delta n=A 5,405 13% 300 13%
Southwestern =] 9,790 24% 870 39%
Others Efth 11,205 27% 717 32%
Hong Kong and Overseas BB RIEIN 1,941 5% 9 0%
Note: Bt -
1. ERHESTEIHEN -

1. Contracted sales include sales of parking slots.



NEW LAND RESERVES

In 2018, 14 development projects were acquired by Poly

Property Group in Jinan, Ningbo, Foshan, Shanghai,
Harbin, Nanning, Hong Kong and other cities. Projects in
Weifang and Mudanjiang were acquired for the first time.
The planned GFA of new land reserves for the Year was
approximately 3,427,000 square metres. The cost of land

was considered reasonable.

List of Land Reserve Acquired in 2018

Site Area’
b 4t 18"

Land Plot/Project
i, EE

Planned GFA'
REEEETRE

RANEZEEFRAA
“E-N\FER

18 L i GE B

—E-NF BEXSEXBS4ERRKIER
DRMIRNER  BR-FIL - L8 -WEE B
BEMEBEWD X HREA BT ML T -
FAMET HREBRILEZEBEN4278F
TR EHERARBFESIEKF -

“E-N\FHE L BEI R

Interests
Attributable to
the Group Current Status?
BEAKEER HAER

('000 square ('000 square
metres) metres) (%)
(T¥7 %K) (T¥7 %K) (%)
Jinan Huai Yin Project Commercial and 125 638 75%  Under planning
Residential
7 e AR IR TE B [EiRES HElp
Weifang Zoina Poly Mansion Residential 121 423 30%  Under construction
W T3 o B R = BRI
Zibo Da Cheng Project Residential 65 232 65%  Under construction
18 A RKIE B (E BT
Macau Coloane Project Residential 49 528 30%  Under planning
RPIIRIRIA R E= REp
Mudanjiang Poly Landscape Residential 159 341 100%  Under construction
FEFHT R AT LR (E BT
Ningbo Oriental Imprint Residential 45 110 33%  Under construction
BERENRT x= 2RI
Foshan Shun De Project Commercial and 23 108 100%  Under planning
Residential
HIlERIER [:iKES 8l
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Interests
Attributable to
Land Plot/Project Site Area’ Planned GFA' the Group Current Status?
i,/ HE EHER RUZEER BEAKEEZ REER
('000 square ('000 square
metres) metres) (%)
(T¥HX) (T¥HX) (%)
Shanghai Jiading Affordable Affordable 47 159 100%  Under construction
Housing Project Housing
tEmEREREEE == EMT
Degqing Fu Xi Project Residential 43 85 100%  Under planning
mBERXER (ES 8l
Suzhou Shi Shan Project Residential 30 81 100%  Under planning
ERNEILIE B = HEl P
Hong Kong Yau Tong Project Residential 4 42 70%  Under planning
R MEEE (ES 8l
Harbin Qun Li 022 Project Commercial and 46 148 100%  Under planning
Residential
IS /& B¥ 1102278 H & E HRE P
Harbin Qun Li 034 Project Commercial and 45 146 100%  Under planning
Residential
'S BB B Af 103418 H & E 8l
Land parcel of FL-11, 12 of Commercial and 48 386 100%  Under planning
Nanning Poly Town Phase Il Residential
B RN B 55 AT — B & E 8l
FL-11 ~ 1230 3%
Total &5t 848 3,427
Notes: Kiat -
1. Since figures were rounded up to the nearest thousand, their total 1. BN ESEINTAYS  WEANET—TEER
may not equal to the actual sum. AitEE o
2. As at 31st December, 2018. 2. ERRERZE-_E—\E+-_B=+—H-



SUMMARY OF NEWLY ACQUIRED
PROJECTS IN 2018

Jinan Huai Yin Project

The project is located in the area of West Railway
Station of Huaiyin District, Jinan, and is a key
investment promotion project of the government of
Huaiyin District. The commercial land is located at
the south of the provincial technology museum, while
the residential land is located at the north of the
government office of Huaiyin District. The project is
well-positioned with convenient transportation and
improving infrastructure in the area. The project has
a planned GFA of approximately 638,000 square
metres. The Group and its partner are responsible for
the property development and industry introduction,
respectively.

Weifang Zoina Poly Mansion

The project is located in the Weifang High-tech
District, with convenient transportation and
outstanding geographical advantage. With the
eastward expansion strategy of Weifang and the
eastward relocation of the municipal government, the
area where the project is located has become a
major direction of future development. The region is
well surrounded by commercial, educational, medical,
recreation and sports facilities, with excellent scenery
and fresh air. The project, with a planned GFA of
approximately 423,000 square metres, is intended to
be developed into mid to high-end multi-group
buildings with diversified product lines.

RNEXEERREAF
“E-N\FER

“E-NFHEREHEBBHN

—
.

BEHREEER

FHRAUREETRERATWEAE 21
RRERFEHAASIEER -ETEHKH
WRNEMRERR EEEERMMLR
MEBBMALA - BEHEUEEE
BER BRAERKEABTE - HEMR
ERBEEMBELG638B T K AEEE
BETORAERERZRMEESIA -

Y7 7P AR R AT

E B IR B R E - SRER B
B8 L = R 8 ) TR B O T T 3R
2 HEFERERAKRKRERNENS
meREREE HE BEAXES
RERE BUEE BREH -EHAMR
BB EEMO23B T RERE
EQREENSEE N EHEE-
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Zibo Da Cheng Project

The project is located in the core business circle of
the central district of Zibo. It is well supported by
educational resources, convenient transportation and
well-developed facilities. The west of the district is
planned to have a rail transit station, which improves
the travel conditions of residents and the
development premium of the project. The project,
with a planned GFA of approximately 232,000 square
metres, mainly targets local customers with rigid
demand and first-time upgrade buyers, and is
intended to be developed into mid to high-end
multi-group buildings with diversified product lines.

Macau Coloane Project

The project is located in Coloane, Macau. The
project, with a planned GFA of approximately
528,000 square metres, is intended to be developed
into a residential community.

Mudanjiang Poly Landscape

The project is located in Jiangnan New District,
Mudanjiang. It is close to Mudanjiang river and the
convention and exhibition centre, with excellent
location and convenient transportation. Jiangnan New
District is a new city centre developed by the
government. The project is surrounded by improving
commercial facilities, and abundant primary and
secondary school resources, with enormous potential
for future development. The project, with a planned
GFA of approximately 341,000 square metres, mainly
targets first-time buyers and existing owners looking
for upgrade of living condition who emphasise the
project brand, property management services and
adjacent educational resources. As the first project in
Mudanjiang of the Group, the project is intended to
be developed into a high-quality residential
community with beautiful landscape.

M AKKIEE

BRI EEmRORERZOEE  #E
BESRER XBEFM EEMA -
HERAREAPER B ATRABRD
TTIRHFMIER ERG(E - HEREBEE
EE#2328F 5K BREEPEHULRR
HHORFEMERREREP AT BHER
FERKREENZAHAENPRIKET -

R EIREHE
E B HRPIBEIR - T B AR B4R R SR T A
#5288 F 5K BBERAEENE -

HASTARRT LB
BERUAHMAITIEHER - BT
HreRTL RUEBZHE XBE
Mo TR RERFEIENRMMHRL
BEARHMELEZRSE DIEHEAR
REE  KRERENEX -HEBRIE
EEEBABMABF LA BEEPEN
EREEmE  MERBNEREEAM
FLRRERNRFPRT -EREEEARS
TIHE—ERE  RERASEERFEMN
SENEEEEHRR -



Ningbo Oriental Imprint

The project is located in the centre of Beilun District,
Ningbo. It is close to the government of Beilun
District, with square boundary and convenient
transportation. The project is surrounded by water,
with abundant landscape resources, mature
commercial development, all-round ancillary facilities
and rich education atmosphere. The project, with a
planned GFA of approximately 110,000 square
metres, mainly targets first-time buyers and first-time
upgrade buyers. The project is intended to be
developed into a residential community mainly
comprising housings and high-rise residential
buildings.

Foshan Shun De Project

The project is located in the junction of Daliang
Subdistrict and Lunjiao Subdistrict, Shunde, Foshan,
and the East of the first people’s hospital of Shunde,
with excellent location. The district is surrounded by
well-developed educational, commercial, medical and
recreational facilities, and is close to Foshan Poly
Central Park. The construction of the planned Metro
Line 3 in the area has commenced, offering
convenient transportation. The project, with a
planned GFA of approximately 108,000 square
metres, is intended to be developed into a
residential community mainly comprising small and
medium units.

Shanghai Jiading Affordable Housing

Project

The project is located in Huangdu Town, Jiading
District, Shanghai, one kilometre from the east of
Jiading campus of Tongji University. There are two
large residential communities under construction in
the south of the district. The project, with a planned
GFA of approximately 159,000 square metres, is
intended to be developed into Shanghai affordable
houses. The participation in the development of the
affordable housing project results in stable economic
benefits and positive social influence of the brand of
Poly Property.

RNEXEERREAF
“E-N\FER

ERIRA

HEMRERTIEsHES L Bifidts
B BT - #3571 - BERN BB A%
KEREZE SBEREE BEZRK
PRNRBEERERE HELAERK -
HERSIBREEEEN1.08F 7K B
BEFPEUBREEMERRENSE
RERIFNFEMNSERINEEDE -

1L EEIEE
HEMAGHBLTIEERRREN RIS
BRER F—ARBERERA BEUE
B REBHE  WE - BEMRLE
RETE WHEAGBLRANFPRIBEIE
BE-hEREAMB="FREHITER X
BT H@EN-HEREAREEMIEL10.8
BF K BERAAF/NPEESFHNE
=N

LBEERERFER

RENRNESRERERE  FAKES
ERBRA—2EB - HRBRACSERA &
BEAREFHERIZR HAREEE
EHEBEAS9BF A BERELED
REEERE -2BREFEBER  LF
M iRiE - LA MR BRI E X m b
Hexegn-
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9.

10.

11.

DT

Deqing Fu Xi Project

The project is located in Fuxi Street, Deqging and to
the north of Deqing old city center with scenic
landscape and convenient transportation. The project,
with a planned GFA of approximately 85,000 square
metres, mainly targets first-time buyers and first-time
upgrade buyers.
developed

The project is intended to be

into a residential community mainly

comprising housings and high-rise residential

buildings.

Suzhou Shi Shan Project

The project is located in Shishan Street, High-tech
Zone, Suzhou. It is adjacent to the old town with
geographical advantages. The area is a commercial
and financial centre and has well-developed
education and medical facilities in close proximity.
The Metro Line 3 under construction will further
improve the convenience of transportation for the
with a planned GFA of

approximately 81,000 square metres, mainly targets

project. The project,
the upgrade demands from the new district as well as

intended to be
community mainly

the old town. The project is

developed into a residential
comprising multi-storey and high-rise residential

buildings.

Hong Kong Yau Tong Project
The project is located in Yau Tong, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon East, Hong Kong, about 10-minutes walk
distance from Yau Tong MTR station.
positioned with all-round ancillary facilities.

It is well-
The
project is the third residential development project
acquired following Hong Kong Kai Tak Vibe Centro
and Tuen Mun Project, replenishing the land reserves
of Hong Kong, Macau and overseas. The project has
a planned GFA of approximately 42,000 square
metres.

10.

11.

EEERZEIER
BEEURESERHE HHARBED
DR - IR B ARRIRBESE - XBE

MEE EEREE2 HARBBEE
EEA8.5EF K  BREFPHUERE

ENERREUFRAT  REREURE

KAFNSEEZERENEENE -

g MM LIE B
REMREMNT S EMLEE B8
wiE - wEVEEY - MURRHENS
Eﬁ%%’*‘L WMEAEREMBREE T
o ERER PR ML B3R AR - ASE — H R
$IEHEI’] CREFIE - THB REBRER
BRBNEF K T2EEHEME MR
MEmRERR  BERBMNIEENS
BERINEENE-

BHREMEERE
BERURBEENERBERBE R £
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BEERETE - MBEHEAEAEBEER
BEZE EMAEER EFEMBENER
FEEEMBEIRRB - Al F MM ITER K
SOMBEA LinREE - HEREBERER
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12.

13.

14.

Harbin Qun Li 022 Project

The project is located on the west of Qunli New
District, Daoli, Harbin, a key development area of
Harbin. The project is intended to be developed into
a satellite financial, trading, office, commercial and
residential The
development in the west of Qunli New District is
highly demanded and has

centre. land for residential
high potential of
appreciation when the development of the eastern
district is close to completion. The district has well-
developed ancillary facilities and has high potential
for commercial activities. The project, with a planned
GFA of approximately 148,000 square metres, mainly
targets first-time buyers and first-time upgrade
buyers from the old town. The project is intended to
be developed into a residential community mainly
comprising high-rise residential buildings with two-to
three-bedroom units.

Harbin Qun Li 034 Project

The project is located on the west of Qunli New
District, Daoli, Harbin, a key development area of
Harbin and is close to Harbin Qun Li 022 Project.
The policy of Qunli New District has specific
advantages and high potential for development. The
project, with a planned GFA of approximately
146,000 square metres, is intended to be developed
into a residential community mainly comprising high-
rise residential buildings with two-to three-bedroom
units.

Land parcel of FL-11, 12 of Nanning Poly

Town Phase I

The project is located in the arm of Yong River in the
eastern region of Dongmeng Business Zone in
Qingxiu District, Nanning, and is adjacent to Qing Xiu
Shan, a 5A-level the city

development is planned to expand eastward, the

scenic area. As

geographic location and transportation facilities of
the project are well embedded at the new city centre
of Nanning. The project, with a planned GFA of
approximately 386,000 square metres,
integrated into Nanning Poly Town Phase Il acquired
in 2017. The parcel is intended to be developed into

will be

a commercial and residential complex.

12.

13.

14.

RNEXEERREAF
“E-N\FER

B A 102218 B

HAMRKRBETEEERNTRASL
ERBESRRREE  BREEEIAS
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HEIRL BERREEHEEERENS
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PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION
AND PROJECTS UNDER PLANNING

As at 31st December, 2018, Poly Property Group had a
total of 57
development projects
approximately 21% of the total GFA was located in
Delta and Pearl
approximately 46% in Southwestern Region, approximately

residential and complex real estate

in 24 cities. Among which,

Yangtze River River Delta Regions,
30% in Other Regions, and approximately 3% in Hong
Kong, Macau and overseas regions. Meanwhile, 47 projects
with a total GFA of
approximately 9,317,000 square metres (attributable area

were under construction,
amounted to approximately 5,824,000 square metres), and
a total GFA of approximately 10,933,000 square metres
(attributable area amounted to approximately 7,387,000

square metres) was under planning.

EBERGEER

HEz_Z—N\F+-_A=+—H B%X£EE
24 EFEASTREE MBI ELA % E
B-HEdhnHMER=ZANMK=-AMENEER R
EEAMBEGEERBEEATNA21% D HER
EEMEMENIEEAEEEENL DR
H B46%TN30% + 5 0 75 78 S8 & 3% S ib [ /9 18
BAaEEmBLL O E3%  HhrE@EB47
& EEAEERBELI.78 F 7K (EIGH#
HEELS84BF H oK) HFENBREBER
T & #91,093.38 F 75 2K (FE {5 # %5 M 78 49738.7
BEHK) -
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List of Projects under Construction and EZEZE-N\F+ZA=+—-HZ
under Planning as at 31st December, 2018 EEEBRFEEBHI &R

Interest
GFA under GFA under attributable

Project construction planning to the Group
HEEHA FEHEAE iy |
5 H REREER HABREER FE 15 1

('000 square (‘000 square

metres) metres) (%)
(FF 75 K) (T¥7HK) (%)
Yangtze River Delta Region REAHME
1 Shanghai Shan Jin Poly Plaza 1 e RFES 121 — 50%
2 Shanghai Xijiao Jinmao Palace 2 EBAEB SR 216 — 14.9%
3 Shanghai Jiading Affordable Housing 3 FERERER 159 — 100%
4 Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa 4 EMNRMNEBEARE 6 — 100%
5 Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion 5 K N OR  2080 BE BR 241 100 100%
6 Suzhou Wei Tang Project 6  wMBEEIER 150 — 100%
7 Suzhou Lu Zhi Project 7 BHMMEEE 176 — 40%
8 Suzhou Shi Shan Project 8  EMEILIER - 81 100%
9 Ningbo Poly City 9 ERRFM 73 264 100%
10 Ningbo Prosperous Reflection 10 ERFERRE 257 — 33%
11 Ningbo Oriental Imprint 1M BREOREHR 110 — 33.3%
12 Yuyao Poly Jordan International 12 RERFBEEEREE 13 281 100%
13 Deging Poly Origin 13 EERFIERE 24 68 100%
14 Deqing Poly Prime Regency 14 EFRFAPERER 50 — 100%
15 Degqing Fu Xi Project 15 EFREHEH — 85 100%
Sub total & /N E 1,595 878
Pearl River Delta Region K-ZAE
16 Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay 16 BMRFIEDE 26 446 75%
17 Guangzhou Nansha Poly City 17 BMEDRFIW 255 117 85%
18  Foshan Poly Central Park 18 BILRMARRE 196 — 100%
19 Foshan Chan Cheng Project 19 HRlEREA 142 — 100%
20  Foshan Shun De Project 20 HBILE=ER — 108 100%
21 Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town 21 BINRAE S 560 — 70%

Sub total & /N E 1,179 671
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Interest
GFA under GFA under attributable

Project construction planning to the Group
HEEH #EEH F&EHE
HH REEER HAEEERE FEfh i

(000 square  ('000 square

metres) metres) (%)
(FFHAK)  (FFEHAK) (%)

Southwestern Region EREBE
22 Guiyang Poly Spring Street 22 EBRAERKE 132 — 66.5%
23 Guiyang Poly Park 2010 23 EBRFAE2010 418 545 100%
24 Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake 24 BEBRRFEM 172 — 50%
25  Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay 25 EERMEEEZ 496 321 51%
26 Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future 26 BERFRTHS 629 2,581 35%
27 Nanning Poly Crescendo 27 MERMLEE 167 — 100%
28  Nanning Poly Dream River 28 FMERMBNE 210 — 30%
29 Nanning Poly Hearty 29 MERMOE 169 — 100%
30  Nanning Poly Town 30 FMERMESIM 940 308 46.7%
31 Nanning Poly Town Phase II 31 MERMESAN A 94 1,680 100%
32 Kunming Poly One Family One World 32 EHRMAX 355 — 73%

Sub total it & /) 5t 3,783 5,435
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Interest
GFA under GFA under attributable

Project construction planning to the Group
EEER FEEH F&EHE
HH REREER ARERER FE 15 1

('000 square (‘000 square

metres) metres) (%)

(FF 77 K) (FF 77 K) (%)
Other Regions Hihih &
33 Wuhan Poly City 33 RERME 386 440 68%
34 Wuhan Poly Riverview 34 ROERFNIE 136 — 51%
35  Wuhan Poly Park 3B HERAAER — 297 55%
36  Wuhan Poly Up Town 36 HERAM R 358 164 64.3%
37  Harbin Poly The Water's Fragrant Dike 37 M BERFKERE 209 21 58%
38  Harbin Poly City 38 MEBRAH 87 34 100%
39 Harbin Qun Li 022 Project 39 MEERN0221ER — 148 100%
40  Harbin Qun Li 034 Project 40 TMEERN0341ER — 146 100%
41 Mudanjiang Poly Landscape 41 HTRFITILE 164 177 100%
42 Jinan Phili House 42 EEIEENLE 198 83 25%
43 lJinan Hai Zi Wa Project 43 FERBFEESH 24 164 60%
44 Jinan Da Shi Zi Yuan Project 44 BEAWTFEIER 91 57 51%
45 Jinan Zhong Lu Mansion 45 BEPER 164 123 33%
46 Jinan Huai Yin Project 46 EEEIER — 638 75%
47  Yantai Poly Ocean Luxe 47 EAERAEWEG 203 — 70%
48  Weihai Caixin Poly Masterpiece 48 EBMIERFIEE 197 137 30%
49 Zibo Poly Mansion 49 JETERFIE R 158 — 65%
50  Zibo Da Cheng Project 50 HEAKIER 43 191 65%
51  Weifang Zoina Poly Mansion 51 YR ERMES 234 190 30%
52 Wanning Poly Peninsula No.1 52 BERMFESIR — 369 100%
Sub total iy & ) at 2,652 3,378
Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas Regions BRRENME
53 Hong Kong Kai Tak Vibe Centro 53 FHERMEEE 70 — 100%
54  Hong Kong Tuen Mun Project 54 FEHFEA 21 — 100%
55  Hong Kong Yau Tong Project 55  HBMEEA — 42 70%
56  Macau Coloane Project 56 RFIKIRIEHA — 528 30%
57 UK London Cambium Project 57 HERIGELEIER 16 — 50%
Sub total it B N Et 108 571
Grand total A% 9,317 10,933
Note: Mt -
1. Since figures were rounded up to the nearest thousand, their grand 1. HFRENERELINTAE  BWANMEBET—EER

total or sub total may not equal to the actual sum. AR DB NEHET -
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COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION

In 2018, the Poly Property Group has achieved a total GFA
of approximately 3,617,000 square metres in completed

construction. The construction of all phases of ten projects

has been completed in the Year.

List of Major Completed Construction in

2018

Project

®RITIEH

“TE-N\F - BESEEBRIMBELNTIETH
KO FERNEEZTIEE K10 -

—E-N\FEXERTHEBIR

Completed GFA in
2018

—E-N\F¥
BRITEEME
('000 square
metres)

(FE5K)

Accumulated
completed GFA by
the end

of 2018

Bz
—Z2-N\FKHEAR
25 e
BRITEEME

('000 square
metres)

(FE5 %K)

Yangtze River Delta Region
Shanghai Jiading Project
Shanghai Poly Greenland Plaza
Ningbo Poly Wonderland
Ningbo Prosperous Reflection

Pearl River Delta Region
Guangzhou Nansha Poly City
Guangzhou Poly Jade Hills
Foshan Poly Central Park
Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur
Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town

Southwestern Region
Guiyang Poly Spring Street
Guiyang Poly Park 2010

Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake

Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay
Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future
Nanning Poly Crescendo
Nanning Poly Hearty

Nanning Poly Town

Liuzhou Poly Merization World

EZAHE
EEETRGER
IR I b S
2% 1% ) ET

B A E
K=ZAE

& M B R 35
BN AR A 25 2 L
BILAR A R RDE
RO AR A 1L 2K I
R AR FB5 S K

EAEitE

BB RNFERAE
5 RMAE2010
B 5 R MRS
BB R AN EEZ
3 R F R R T
MERMNLEE
MR LR
B R SR 75 AT
MR R AT AR

164
208

82
223

144
65
59
24

156

103
192
136
210
114
120

16
482
216

477
330
342
223

434

95
467
473
310

492
1,010
690
737
1,961
482
128
482
929
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35

Accumulated
completed GFA by

Completed GFA in the end
Project 2018 of 2018
BZE
—E-NFEEEB
—E2-N\F 2t e
BRIZEEE BRIZEEE
('000 square ('000 square
metres) metres)
(F 75 K) (F 75 K)
Other Regions Hfthith B
Wuhan Poly City B E R K 140 1,004
Wuhan Poly Up Town EVZ R A 3k 102 287
Harbin Poly The Water's Fragrant Dike & /& (R /K88 K 4 45 443
Harbin Poly City ie B8 1R A3 136 489
Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion P AR G E R AR 69 434
Jinan Poly Center T AR F AR 153 477
Jinan Poly Elegant Garden AR T R 128 419
Weihai Poly Maple Valley gk R NI AL B 129 129
Grand total &5t 3,617 13,747
Note: Bt
1. Since figures were rounded up to the nearest thousand, their total 1. HTFRENEZELNTAE  HEMET—EER

aitmE-
“HEEE

ZE-N\F BESEEEFES0EELE ERIE
EE £ESHEEIRETARE  £EmEE
#15938BF H K £EHELHARIM07TAR
B E K MEE ST RNEH74% 0 PIE
157% * EE1H7% » BFE(R3% * BEALIE9% °
BEDWH - R=A1517%  Bk=A1519% © 74
8 15 28% » E b0 [ (536% °

may not equal to the actual sum.

RECOGNISED PROPERTY SALES

The sales of over 50 projects of Poly Property Group have
been recognised in 2018, with a total sales value of
RMB18.2 billion and a total GFA of approximately
1,593,000 square metres. The recognised average selling
price was approximately RMB11,407 per square metre.
Among the sales recognised, apartments accounted for
74%, villas accounted for 7%, retail shops accounted for
7%, offices accounted for 3% and parking spaces
accounted for 9% of the total In terms of
geographical distribution, Yangtze River Delta, Pearl River

value.

Delta, Southwestern and Other Regions accounted for
approximately 17%, 19%, 28% and 36%, respectively.
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List of Major Projects with Sales “E-NFFELFEEAIX
Recognised in 2018

Sales recognised

Project in 2018
—B-N\F
5 A FESH
(RMB million)
(AR HET)

Yangtze River Delta Region REAKE
1 Shanghai Poly Deluxe Mansion 1 LEERANXREFE 418
2 Shanghai Poly Elegant Mansion 2 EBRMXIEER 141
3 Shanghai Jiading Project 3 LeEmE##EE 148
4 Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa 4 HMNERFBEEZE 178
5 Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion 5 B MR FIE BB 61
6 Ningbo Poly City 6  EIRRFIH 3
7 Ningbo Poly Wonderland 7 BERRAMENIE 1,610
8 Yuyao Poly Jordan International 8 ARURMNBEBEKRTEE 337
9 Deging Poly Origin 9 BERMRHE 26
10 Others 10 HitwE#EIER 42
Sub total b & /)5 2,966

Pearl River Delta Region K=AE
11 Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire 11 BEINERF S B KES 158
12 Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City 12 BEINRFITER 32
13 Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay 13 BMARF P& 326
14 Guangzhou Poly Up House 14 BEINAR T 5 35
15 Guangzhou Nansha Poly City 15 BN @ R A 738
16 Guangzhou Poly Jade Hills 16 EMARFMIER L 880
17 Foshan Poly Cullinan Garden 17 HFILERMNRXEBIER 32
18 Foshan Poly Prestige City 18 LR 3 27
19 Foshan Poly Central Park 19 FFILERFPRAER 449
20 Shenzhen Poly Up Town 20 RIRAN EWAEE 18
21 Shenzhen Poly Joy-Zone 21 RINR N EHIEE 96
22 Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur 22 FEINR L K 197
23 Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town 23 BINR G 435
24 Others 24 HihE&IAEA 12

Sub total i & /5T 3,435




RANEZEEFRAA
“E-N\FER

Sales recognised

Project in 2018
—®-N\F
HA FESH
(RMB million)
(ARBBHET)

Southwestern Regions AEtE
25 Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland 25 EBBRNE R 13
26 Guiyang Poly Spring Street 26 BEBRNEFERKE 557
27 Guiyang Poly Park 2010 27 EBRAMAE2010 1,006
28 Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake 28 EBRFEMN 549
29 Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay 29 EBRMEEE 1,008
30 Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future 30 EEARFR KM T 529
31 Nanning Poly Crescendo 31 EERAML /ﬁﬁ = 796
32 Nanning Poly Aegean Sea 32 AERMNEBEE 40
33 Nanning Poly Hearty 33 BERMNOE 161
34 Liuzhou Poly Merization World 34 HIMARF A IIED 82
35 Kunming Poly Sky and Earth 35 BEH#HERFNE R 74
36 Kunming Poly One Family One World 36 EBREFI AR 153
37 Others 37 HiERIER 67
Sub total i & /D 5T 5,035

Other Regions Hfthith &
38 Wuhan Poly City 38 EE R MK 953
39 Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District 39 EOERAEGE 29
40 Harbin The Tsinghua Summer Palace 40 WBRBRNEEEE 19

of Poly

41 Harbin Poly The Water’s Fragrant Dike 41 WEAERFKE R 294
42 Harbin Poly Up Town 42 WBRERH Lk 13
43 Harbin Poly City 43 e @B R I 1,486
44 Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion 44 BEERFBEAE 807
45 Jinan Poly Center 45 EE RN AP L 1,073
46 Jinan Poly Elegant Garden 46 EERNE E 964
47 Yantai Poly Champs Elysees Mansion 47 @é}ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁi ﬁh 59
48 Weihai Poly Triumph Mansion 48 BEOBRFISIE A 49
49 Weihai Poly Maple Valley 49 ﬁiﬁﬂqﬁ’ﬁ\ 795
50 Wanning Poly Peninsula No. 1 50 BERMNFBE15R 128
51 Others 51 HiEARIEAR 62
Sub total i & /N5t 6,732
Grand total st 18,169
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Note: i
1. Since figures were rounded up to the nearest million, their total may 1. YFEEMNZREONAENL  SAEANET —FEER
not equal to the actual sum or the sum in each group. AR DB N T -

Recognised Sales in 2018 by Property Type —ZE—N\FHE&EHYEFRIIX

Sales
recognised in
Property type 2018 Percentage
—E-N\F
MERR HELH Aot
(RMB million) (%)
(AR
EX::20) (%)
Apartment N 13,424 74%
Villa Bl 22 1,305 7%
Retail shop [kl 1,342 7%
Office BFE 476 3%
Parking space EXiv; 1,621 9%
Total CEl 18,169 100%
Note: it -
1. Since figures were rounded up to the nearest million, their total may 1. Bt ERBANARM - BANRF—EEFR

Algpen
not equal to the actual sum. Ch &2



INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group has various investment properties and hotels

located in first-tier cities and second-tier

provincial
capitals. The investment properties had a total GFA of
approximately 807,000 square metres and an asset value
of approximately HK$12.6 billion. In 2018, the occupancy
rates for the Group’s office buildings and shopping malls
remained steady. The rental rates achieved higher as

compared to the corresponding period of last year.

RANEZEEFRAA
“E-N\FER

REWF

AEERAZEMLR —REHMN _KESHT
MIREMEREE  HPhREMELEEEAE
KBO7TEF I K BEEEMI2EETL = F
—NEF - AEEBRTRSFENFSHEXER
REFFR HEKFREFRMBEME B
JEJ3E bR R A AEEE & - BURRM A
BEMEBRMNBEBREREELLBEARFTR
i EEEEISBEEREEIER -

39

Regarding the hotel operations, Beijing Poly Plaza, Wuhan
Poly Hotel and Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Hotel achieved
satisfactory operation results and the trial opening of Hyatt
Regency Shanghai Jiading went smoothly.

BE-_ZE—-NF+=ZA=+—HBH=
EREVMERBEIREIR

List of Major Investment Properties and
Hotels as at 31st December, 2018

Average Average Interests
occupancy occupancy attributable to
Region Project GFA held rate of 2018  rate of 2017 the Group Property type
BFREE “E-N\F “E-tF rEH
it & HE [k FHHEZ FIIHER Bz WEER
('000 square
metres)
(T K)
Investment properties
REWMHE
Beijing Beijing Poly Plaza 15 100% 100% 75%  Office
I IERFEMANE N
Shanghai Shanghai Poly Plaza (partial) 34 92% 92% 100%  Office and
commercial
tE EERNES(ED) /N
S
Shanghai Shanghai Stock Exchange 48 88% 90% 100%  Office
Building (partial)
fnpic} tEEFRE(E2) N
Shenzhen Shenzhen Poly Cultural 135 100% 100% 100%  Commercial
Plaza (partial)
I RINMR A AL E 15 [

(88 2)
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Average Average Interests
occupancy occupancy attributable to
Project GFA held rate of 2018  rate of 2017 the Group Property type
BFEEE Z2-N\F “2—tF rEE
H B T & FHEAR FHEAR iz WEER
('000 square
metres)
(FTHK)
Wuhan Wuhan Poly Plaza (partial) 97 80% 85% 100%  Office and
commercial
% BORRAES (B 2) MR
[EES
Guiyang Guiyang Poly International 52 100% 100% 66.5%  Commercial
Center
=1 EERMNERES [HES
Hotels
B 5
Beijing Beijing Poly Plaza Hotel 63 78% 76% 75%  Hotel
i b RARFI K B E B &
Wuhan Wuhan Poly Hotel 28 77% 72% 100%  Hotel
AW BE R A KB [ B
Guiyang Guiyang Poly Hot Spring 39 52% 55% 66.5%  Hotel
Hotel

55 5[5 R A B8 OB 5 B IE




PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

The Group has various property management companies
engaging in the management of residential, commercial,
offices, hotels, theatres and other property types. They
have been the

leading players in the property

management industry of China and have received

numerous titles and awards.

In 2018, the Group's property management companies
recorded total revenue of RMB809 million, representing an
increase of 15% when comparing with the corresponding
period of last year. The companies managed a total of 195
property projects with an aggregate GFA of 33,820,000
square metres, representing an increase of 15% when
comparing with the corresponding period of last year.

2019 OUTLOOK

In 2019, it is expected the main tone of control policies of
the real estate market in China will be the stabilisation of
land price, housing price and market expectations. The
Central Economic Work Conference stated that a long-
term mechanism shall be developed to maintain the
healthy development of the real estate market, housing
speculation shall be prohibited and policies shall be
The

governments will be allowed to formulate their respective

implemented based on local conditions. local
policies more flexibly based on the local economic and
demographic developments, and shall
responsible for implementing policies on both supply and

demand sides in order to stabilise the housing prices.

be primarily

Policies and market conditions of different cities may vary
from time to time, and market opportunities may emerge
in different areas and different stages. The Group will
closely monitor the transition period in every area it
operates to boost sales and collection.

RANEZEEFRAA
“E-N\FER

MEXEE

AEBRFBEZEMEEERR EHFRE
T EE N BAENBRSZZERLY
ENREERERT  E2BAPEEETERS
SURTZE - WS % fE SR B AN ERIF -

ZE-N\F AEEMEEERAERRARK
FT8.09E T AR  REFHEE LF15% - EIE
) % T8 B195M@ - K E £ M E3,3828 F 4
K BREFRBALRI5% o

—E-NFRE

—E-NF O EHMPEEHEDS SRR
B REE RBEHIASFEIER HREE
THEREL EBREEHETSREERER
MHH - BEFENY  BRMER -7 BF
BEEEZHEE T8 BLAAENTHEEMA
AZERBN HBMHHRBERE D - AIE
EREENIEBEE SHTHNBRREZEND
52 RS RR 7 A - 3 3R R M MBS B A
MERE AEBETYEISKLERENE
08 - ZHMEHE SO o

Y



POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENwmEDT

It is believed that the sentiment of the land market will
remain stable despite the expected increase in supply.
New methods of land transfer may be introduced with
increased proportions of common property rights and
hold-and-lease housings. In addition to the traditional ways
of bidding, auction and listing, the Group will continue to
seek investment opportunities from urban redevelopment,
industrial real estate and cooperation with state owned
enterprises. The Group will also pay active attention to
featured towns, long-term leasing apartments, themed real
estate and other new business development.

Market liquidity will improve as the Chinese government
begins to stabilize the economy after deleveraging. The
advantages of listed real estate enterprises in financing,
land acquisition and sales become significant and the
industry is further concentrated. The Group will continue
to strengthen its cash flow management, improve
development efficiency and increase its sales and de-
stocking. The Group will further diversify its financing
channels and seek funds at low cost by making full use of
its status as a state-owned enterprise and overseas listed
company. The Group will expand its business in a prudent
and orderly manner and carefully select high quality

projects to achieve steady growth in operating results.

In 2019,
growth,

the Group will continue to maintain steady
improve quality and efficiency and enhance its
core competitiveness and risk management. The Group will
also continue to optimize and strengthen its principle
business of real

estate development, improve asset

turnover rate, increase projects investment and deepen
remuneration reforms in order to create sustainable and

considerable returns for its shareholders.

BRI HEERAR LA EWMBHAE
REFRVE - THHERASE—FAIH KE
EEMBEEFFELEN - BT EENERA

R $’§lﬁﬂﬂii“”%ﬁ%§i&‘ﬁ%& CEE
WEFBCAFESHERE YRBHEIFE

IR %%ﬂ@%%ﬂi%ﬂé%%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%%@ °

FREEEREXEREREER  MHBRBER
BRRE - tm%m&ﬂ§~iiﬁﬁuﬁﬁ’%ﬁﬁ
MELLE TEETEE SRR FA5H
HEERCFESRERE RSMAERE MK
HEAENE  FERAZ TR ERE
FAMABELESEMBEIIET TR EEES
KBS ‘%Lﬁﬁfﬂif%fx BEEEEE
BERKEEXBRETEER -

“E-NEF O AKESRRBERRE  RERE
M FEE R PR OB D MR R DD
ERDE UEMEMAFEHETE %7% '
THEEREX - MAEBIMENE R H M
HERE Z%QET%%%ULT*ffH@*EE’J@#&



SUMMARY OF MAJOR REAL ESTATE
PROJECTS

Yangtze River Delta Region
As at 31st December, 2018, the Poly Property Group
had 22 projects in the Yangtze River Delta Region
with a total GFA of approximately 2,474,000 square
metres, accounting for 12% of Poly Property Group's

total land reserves. Among which, approximately

1,595,000 square metres were under construction

while 878,000 square meters were under planning.

RNEXEERREAF
“E-N\FER

TEFHERBRBEEN

ER=A1E
BE-_Z-N\E+-_A=+—H B%=
BRR=-ZAMEFE22EF i E M IE
B EELEEEBENIS9SEF K &F
BOEAEMBENSISE T H K A5ttt
K247 4B K (hEESEBE B T
HHEN12% - EF7EEE 2% T - 1318
TEEERE TREE  2@BEE MAMI -

Seven of these projects were completed, thirteen

were under construction and two had yet to

commence construction.

Project

HH

Poly Deluxe
Mansion

RIREFE

Poly Elegant
Mansion

CIPREEPD

Jiading Project

Location
38 u B

Located in the prime area of
Jiading District, close to Metro
Line 11

UREEEFAZOE BT
S E R

Property type

Current Status

BRHRR

Residential Delivered with
buildings sales of remaining
£ apartments
INERHE
Residential Delivered with
buildings sales of remaining
r= apartments
INERHE

Residential and
commercial
buildings, hotels
and theatres
Fx HE BE
R EIf

Delivered with
sales of remaining
apartments

INRRHEE

=ERSER
;av;tgtze River Shanghai
elta
_ iabic}
E=f '

Poly Greenland
Plaza

FRIEILES

Located at Dalian Road, Yangpu
District, CBD of waterfront Inner
Loop, Golden Triangle of
Lujiazui

UREHERER BRAREL
CBDMRIE - EXBEES = AR

Residential
buildings, offices
and commercial
buildings

Tz B¥E &
£

Delivered with
sales of remaining
apartments

TNREHE

Poly Phili House
RAUSBERE

Located in Sijing, Songjiang,
near Sijing Station of Metro
Line 9 with access to
convenient transportation and
full-fledged ancillary facilities
RTINS - Bt H 9 0N
Bub RBEN REXE

Residential and
commercial
buildings

Tx HE

Delivered with
sales of remaining
apartments

INERHEE

43
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Project

BHHE

Location
e N E

Property type

Current Status

BEHRR

BREER

planning
I BEE EHRERSRU
KRR BB 9% 42

Located within the inner ring at | Offices and Under construction
the waterfront of the Eastern commercial and prepared for
Shan Jin Poly Bund, in proximity to buildings sale
Plaza Yangshupu Road Station of BTE HE ERGE
e Metro Line 4
R ARAR - RIMEETH
W S B R DB R
Located within the Eastern Bund | Residential Delivered with
Poly Phili Regency | in Yangpu District buildings sales of remaining
FAEBTE IR E R R INER R £ apartments
Shanghai INEBBRIEE
+8 Located in New Jiading, 800 Apartments and Under construction
Xijiao Jinmao metres from New Jiading villas and prepared for
Palace Station of Metro Line 11 N sale
BRI REEMNML  BHENREE EEFE
TE T 558005K
Located in Huangdu Town of Affordable Under construction
Jiading Affordable Jiading District, ‘I.kil.ometre hoising and prepared for
. Housing Project from theﬂeas? of J.|ad|ng campus | RERE sale /
Yangtze River S REEER of Tongji University TEGE
Delta UREEREEHR REAER
R=A ERERA-RE
Located in the economic Apartments and For sale (partially
Poly West Bank development zone of Wuzhong | villas deliveied)
villa District, the project stands ona | A& 5| E ﬁ% (2
RABETR p‘ie?lnmsula ?f DushunLake . ZAT)
URRPEERER  AARE
BERN
Located in the economic Residential and For sale (partially
development zone of Wuzhong | commercial delivered)
Sushou Poly %a\ke Mansion | District and the northern tip of | buildings, offices K:t% (&5
oy RAMEH B R Yinshan Lake and hotels ZAT)
’ URRAEERERE FILHL | A B% BF
[Ei] BRBE
Located in Weitang Town, in Residential and Under construction
proximity to transportation commercial and prepared for
Wei Tang Project terminal and with access to buildings sale
Metro Line 9 which is under TE BE ERFGE




Yangtze River
Delta
=A

Project

EHE

Location
I8 B

RNEXEERREAF

Property type

“E-N\FER

Current Status

BB OR

Located in Luzhi Town, and Residential Under construction
facing Zone Hudong in Suzhou | buildings and prepared for
Industrial Park (BN TEERE | TF sale
A R R), and with access to ERGE
Lu Zhi Project Metro Line 6 which is under
FMEER .
long-term planning
URBEE BHNIXERY
Suzhou RIRREBE - EHRE B R
M "
Located in Shishan Street, Residential Under planning
Hi-Tech Zone and is adjacent to | buildings i
Shi Shan Project the old tovT/n and in proximity is
WA R to Metro.Lme 3 under
construction
UREHERLEE B85
B B R T e ER AR
Located in the prime location of | Residential and For sale (partially
Zhenhai New Town, facing the commercial delivered)
Poly City new administrative and cultural | buildings and EE#HH
R centre of Zhenhai offices ZAT)
UREEFHELE BIHE | A2 BERBT
HATEXAL T L 12
Located at Shuixiang Lane, Residential and Delivered with
Poly Wonderland Dongshang New Town, Ningbo | commercial sales of remaining
RFEIAE URERREHIKEE buildings apartments
FE B% INEREE
Located in the central area of Residential and For sale
Eastern New City and less than | commercial EE
Ningbo two kilometres from the office buildings and
B Prosperous of Ningbo Municipal offif:es ‘
. Government with access to FE BERET
Reflection ) )
L E convenient transportation and g

full-fledged ancillary facilities
URRBHAROE  EERT
BRTAR2AE - RBREF BE

B2

Oriental Imprint

EIEYil

Located in the centre of Beilun
District, the project is close to
the government of Beilun
District, with square boundary
and convenient transportation
fURitaEgRe L EHLER
B #RAE ZBER

Residential
buildings
£

Under construction
and prepared for
sale

EEGE
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Project Location Property type Current Status
BHH I8y B ES Bl
Located in the Southeast of the | Residential and For sale (partially
intersection of Chengdong Road | commercial delivered)
Poly Jordan o o N
Yuyao International and Tanjialing Road, Yuyao buildings and EE#HH
Rk RHEEEELE URRRARBEZTRERIN | offices )
R BORMEA T BERBT
2
Located in the Eastern New Residential For sale (partially
Town in Deging, 5-minute buildings, hotels delivered)
driving distance from the and commercial EE#HH
Poly Origin Nanjing-Hangzhou High-speed buildings ZfT)
RERA Railway station and with TE EEREE
Yangtze River superior scenery and landscape
Delta UREERBHE  BENSH
E=A SHEER BELEEERE
Deging Located in Fuxi Street, the Residential For. sale
. Poly Prime central of the Eastern New buildings EE
e Regency Town and the Southwest of the | ££
RMFER Poly Origin project
ZR URHRFEROEREHE
RARHBEEER A
Located in Fuxi Street and Residential Under planning
o Deqing old city centre is in the | buildings E
Fu Xi Project X .
P S\OL\Jth of/the prOJect\ \ r=
UREEGE ARARBER
L&




RNEXEERREAF 47
“E-N\FER

K=AthE
BE-_Z-N\E+_-_A=+—H B%=
BERK=—AtEFEISERE L ERZEIE
B ARAREMBHONTIIEERK &
BRAFEEMBENINEF K At
HE185.0BF Ak (hEXEEB L1
HEH9% - HRofEEHE B % T 588
BEERE IR 1MEEEMARMET -

Pearl River Delta Region 2.
As at 31st December, 2018, Poly Property Group had
15 projects in the Pearl River Delta Region with a
total GFA of approximately 1,850,000 square metres,
accounting for 9% of Poly Property Group’s reserves.
Among which, approximately 1,179,000 square metres
were under construction and approximately 671,000
square metres were under planning. Nine of these

projects
construction
construction.

were completed,
and one

Project

five were

under

had yet to commence

Location

Major Products

Current Status

HH

WEALE

NERER

RRH®RR

Located in Huadu District; Residential Delivered with

adjacent to the Asian Games buildings and sales of remaining
Poly Golf Shire New Stadium at Fengshen offices apartments
RAEB K Avenue and the Metro Line 9 Fx BFE INEBEIEE

URTEHE BEREBAERE
SRR B R EHIR &

Located in the centre of Xinhua

Residential and

Delivered with

&OBERN

. Town of Huadu District, east to | commercial sales of remaining
Poly Zephyr City o o
RF thg district ?overnment b\mldmgsu apartments
UREBEHEET L ETHE | T BE INBRHE
B R A
Located in Huadu District, in Residential Delivered with
proximity to Metro Lines 3 and | buildings sales of remaining
Poly Up House 9 which are accessible to the F=E apartments
Pearl River Delta | Guangzhou RAM B E whole city INERHE
K=A EM TR TERE - B 3T 3t S35 M95k

Located in the South of Liwan

Residential and

For sale (partially

District, adjacent to the commercial delivered)
Poly Gratified West | Guangzhou Metro Line 1 with buildings and EE#H
Bay commercial and educational offices )
M E 2 facilities Fx BERBT

fiRpERESE BLEMLE
R BERIBERERZ

g

Located in Toyota Auto City in

Residential and

For sale (partially

Huangge Town, Nansha commercial delivered)
Nansha Poly City connecting to a comprehensive | buildings EE(#HH
B R A transportation network TE BE )

UREYEBRERAER R
BRBZE
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Project

BHHE

Location
e N E

Located at the junction of North
Jianshe Road and Sandong

Major Products

Residential
buildings, offices

Current Status

Delivered with

sales of remaining

Guangzhou Poly Jade Hills Avenue in Huadu and commercial apartments
M RMFER L RRATEHERIBEE=FRER | buildings RNERREE
f Fx BFERE
E
Located at the centre of Residential Delivered with
i Chancheng District buildings, offices sales of remaining
Poly Cullinan . . . .
Gard neighbouring the Asia Arts Park | and commercial apartments
arden ~ "
RHEELE in the west buildings INEBBRIEE
M ={LR LA dom e N - # Yo Byes
URERRTORE AHEE | £ BFERAE
YNE] ES
Located in Longjiang Town, Residential and Delivered with
Shunde District, with an commercial sales of remaining
Polv Prestiqe Cit extensive transportation buildings apartments
oly Prestige City . e s N
) network and thrivin TE B REREHE
R E5 one fring a
commercial activities
URIEEEERIE XA%E:
BERARE
Pearl River Delta Located in the north of Shunde | Residential and For sale (partially
= A New City, the project stands in | commercial delivered)
the heart of Pearl River Delta buildings and EE(FHH
Poly Central Park deni ient hotel %44)
and enjoys convenien otels R
Foshan RAPRAE oy ) e s -
. transportation FE BERBEE

R IBEHRALE - HER = A
e - ZBEF

Located in old town district in

Residential and

Under construction

Chancheng, with the benefit of | commercial and prepared for
the thriving commercial buildings sale

Chan Cheng activities and 50 metres from FE BE EEFE

Project Tongji Street Station of

BHIER Guangzhou-Foshan Railway

UREREHERR BERT
RE - BEEEGIER BRI E
50K

Located at the junction of

Residential and

Under planning

Daliang Road and Lunjiao Road | commercial wE
Shun De Project in Shunde District, east to the buildings
JE#=IE B First People's Hospital FE BE

IR IEERAREEN RHEE
RER F-ARBERRA




Pearl River Delta

K=f

Project

EHE

Poly Up Town
A _ETE

Location
I8 B

Located in the prime
commercial area of Longgang
District, the project is easily
accessible by Metro Line 3 and
is also complemented with
ancillary facilities
UREHBERLZLOLE E
PR RBEAN EETE

RNEXEERREAF

Major Products

Residential and
commercial
buildings

TE B

“E-N\FER

Current Status
BN
Delivered with

sales of remaining
apartments

INEEHEE

Shenzhen
| Located in Longhua, Bao'an Residential and Delivered with
District, close to the commercial sales of remaining
transportation terminal and the | buildings apartments
metro station, with Fx mE RNEBEE
Poly Joy-Zone hensive busi d
s comprehensive business an
RFIGBILE prenenste >
community facilities
URExERE BHRENE
U EYE BEEE RER
=
Located in the prime area of Residential and Delivered with
Huibo and the northern bank of | commercial sales of remaining
Poly Deutch Kultur | East River, only 10-minute drive | buildings apartments
R from downtown of Huizhou TE B RTBREE
URBERL RILE BR
MALHEEI0DEER
Huizhou
= Located next to the Shenzhen- Residential and For sale (partially

Poly Sunshine
Town

RAEE I

Shantou Expressway and Palm
Island Golf Course, the project
enjoys an environment of
natural scenery

URFUBEARSE  RHEHH

commercial
buildings
TE B

delivered)
EE (D
M)
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3. Southwestern Region 3. HAEHEE

As at 31st December, 2018, Poly Property Group had BE_Z-N\F+A=+—0 BEX&L
18 projects in the Southwestern Region with a total ERrmEmERAI8EEERER - &£
GFA of approximately 9,218,000 square metres, BEEEMENII8IB T AL FRER
accounting for 46% of Poly Property Group's total HMEAS43.58F 5K Gt EHELD
land reserves. Among which, approximately 3,783,000 R218BF A K HEXEEHA T HEE
square metres were under construction and B46% - HR7EE R 2% T - 11218 B
approximately 5,435,000 square metres were under BE A HE T P& ER o

planning. Seven projects were completed and eleven

were under construction.

Project Location Major Products Current Status
EHE 38y B S i B R
Located in Wudang District Residential and Delivered with
Poly Hot Spring amidst a picturesque setting at | commercial sales of remaining
Newisland the centre of lake areas buildings apartments
RABRHR URGER WARYS REE | T BX INEBRHEE
ES
Located in the heart of Residential and Delivered with
Nanming District and standing commercial sales of remaining
Poly International on the bank of Nanming River buildings and apartments
Center with a shoreline of offices INEREE
REER &% approximately 300 metres TE BERET
UATHEEREEAIN & | #
7 HT300K 7] /= 4%
Located in Yunyan District and a | Residential and Delivered with
) 5-minute drive from the commercial sales of remaining
Poly Clouds Hill L . .
International downtoYvn, whlch. is convenient b\ullhdmgs‘ ﬂ)artmntf/
BF B EE a‘n<‘i easily accesible FE BF RNEREE
Southwestern Guiyang URELE ETHRLOSHEE
il &b B ERFERE
Located in the south of Wudang | Residential and For sale (partially
Poly Spring Street District and is 1 kilometre from | commercial deliveied)
BRREFAR the centre of Fhe district buildings EE(HH
UREERES ESERTL | EE BHE ZA)
TREER
Located in Wudang District and | Residential and For sale (partially
in close proximity to the district | commercial delivered)
administration centre, the buildings HE(Hn
project incorporates an 18-hole | (¥« # 3% ZfT)
international standard golf
Poly Park 2010 )
R 2 E2010 course and tsnjoys .
comprehensive community
facilities in the neighbourhood
MRSEEITEFRLE HE
TARERRESB RIS - @
ERERETE




Southwestern

il

Project

EHE

Poly The Place of
A Lake
RHMEH

Location
I8 B

Standing against the backdrop
of Huaxi National Wetland Park
and in the prime location in the
scenic eco-tour zone of Huaxi
District
UREERERRERRRS O
W ERTERTKERLD

RNEXEERREAF

Major Products

Residential and
commercial
buildings

TE B

“E-N\FER

Current Status
B AR

For sale (partially
delivered)
EE#Hn

2P

Guiyang Located in Nanming District Residential and For sale (partially
gk built on the site previously commercial delivered)
occupied by Guiyang Power buildings and EE(#HH
Plant (215 E ), the project is | offices ZA)
Poly Phoenix Bay | a transportation hub linking the | FE - BXLEF
R ELEE downtown of Guiyang, Xiaohe | 1
and Huaxi Districts in the south
UREHE tEREGERE
i REEEGTHOEBEN
e TEENRBER
Located in the south of Zunyi, Residential and For sale (partially
the project is close to the commercial delivered)
) centre of transportation hub buildings and EE#HH
) Poly Metropolis of ) N
?;;gl Future de;ellloied byhtheljovernmint gf|§esﬁ¥&§ ‘ ZAT)
BE . and links to the old town o £ BY
AR AR SRS T Zunyi "
R BER  ZBBEITED
ERERZHEBORBER
Located in the north of Villas and For sale (partially
Nanning, the project is apartments delivered)
Poly Crescendo approximately 20-minute drive | A% 2AE EE(FHH
RELEE from the city centre )
UREETRILE  BfE420
NESR
Nanning
= Located in Xiuxiang Avenue and | Residential and Delivered with

Poly Aegean Sea
RIEZE

adjection to the Lion Hill Park,
the project enjoys convenient
transportation and community
facilities

UREETFAAL  SEM
RE RBRAN EEEZ

commercial
buildings
FE BE

sales of remaining
apartments

INBRHEE
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Project

BHHE

Location
e N E

Major Products

3 il

Current Status

BEHRR

Southwestern

)3

Nanning
BE

Located at Mingxiu Road near

Residential and

For sale (partially

the original site of Chongzuo commercial delivered)

CPC Academy, the projectis a | buildings and EE#HH
Poly Hearty premium residential offices )
RAOGE development in Beihu Sub- T BERBT

district 8

URAFERRE BRELM

o RIEAREREEER

Located in the heart of the Residential For sale

Liusha Peninsula, the project buildings EE

neighbours the state £

Poly Dream River

FRAEHRE

guesthouse Liyuan Resort and
Qing Xiu Mountain Golf Course
in the east, Liusha Eco Park in
the west with a planned gross
floor area of over a thousand
acres, as well as a spectacular
view of river in the south
RIDEEFR LN RERE
ERZRILFNSHFLRB KRR
5 AERETHRNONDEER
CHHLEIS WEMEE
i

Poly Town
RAUBERR

Located at the junction of
Qinghuan Road and Fengling
South Road in Qingxiu District,
in proximity to the 3 CBDs of
Dongmeng, Longgang and
Wuxiang, facing Qingxiushan
Park in the west and
overlooking Yong River in the
south
UREFRERBABEEER
EE RE EH DR=X
CBDF L BHEALAE @

TN
g1

Residential and
commercial
buildings and
offices

T BERET
8

For sale (partially
delivered)
EE @D

)

Poly Town Phase ||
RSB B — 4

Located in the arm of Yong
River in the eastern region of
Dongmeng Business Zone in
Qingxiu District, and is adjacent
to Qing Xiu Shan, a 5A-level
scenic area
UREARREABRERENE
AR BEESLARERE

Residential and
commercial
buildings

FE BE

For sale

rE




Southwestern

fil3

Project

EHE

Location
I8 B

Neighbouring the old town of
Liubei on the west and the

RNEXEERREAF

Major Products

Residential and

commercial

“E-N\FER

Current Status
BN
Delivered with

sales of remaining

business district on the south, buildings, offices apartments
and standing on the Liu River and hotels RTBREE
) Poly Merization bank with a shoreline of more Fx ®B% BF
Liuzhou . .
i World than 200 metres, the project BRBE
R AKITE boasts a prime location and
natural scenery
EEZHE BRATH
CBRIEREZIEB00K  fIE
B REEE
Located in Ninghu Xincheng of | Residential and Delivered with
Datun District in Anning City, commercial sales of remaining
the project shares the same buildings apartments
Poly Lakeside neighbourhood of “Kunming TE Mm% RNESHE
Mansion Sunny Lake & Splendid Life"
RIZRZR which is one block away
URREREHEE R &
ERRE-R2E ERBARA
ERERERH
Situated in the prime area of Residential and Delivered with
Renmin Road in the downtown | commercial sales of remaining
area, the project is next to the | buildings and apartments
) City Stadium Station serviced by | offices RTBREE
Kunming . L N W e
iy Metro Line 3, which is currently | TF BEKET

Poly Sky and Earth
RM7NAE K

under construction. The
neighbouring area offers
comprehensive ancillary
facilities
UREHBARBROBE &
XRARE BRI ERRETE
BRI AREERERKER

g

Poly One Family
One World
FRIAR

Located in the intersection of Er
Huan Bei Road and Puji Road
NRZBRIEBRELEERRER

Residential and
commercial
buildings and
offices

T HERRT
i

For sale (partially
delivered)

EE @S

)
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4. Other Regions

As at 31st December, 2018, Poly Property Group had
31 projects in other regions, namely Wuhan, Harbin,
GFA of
approximately 6,029,000 square metres, accounting
for 30% of Poly Property Group's total land reserves.
Among which, approximately 2,652,000 square metres
were under construction while 3,378,000 square

Jinan

meters were under planning. Eleven of these projects

and Wanning with a total

4. Hftth &

\/

were completed, fifteen were under construction and

five had yet to commence construction.

Project

Location

$ﬁ+

%I
BEARMAL-

Property type

HE-_Z-\F+=ZA=+—H B%X%
EERE BHE B
A3MMEIEE EEREEMEE 426528

R EEmMELNIIEE LA
At L EEH602.9B F X 58
%%lmimﬁﬁmm%
151E 18 B & A e T R& B% - 51818

EEMBESHER

EA11{EE B

Current Status

Others
Hip

Wuhan
HE

HH

WEALE

NRER

BEMRR

Located in Wuchang, the project | Offices and Delivered for lease
is a comprehensive commercial | commercial and for sale

Poly Plaza complex integrating commerce, | buildings TNER

RHAES fashion and culture BFE BE EE
RHER REHK B
XA —BNGEURERES
The project is located in Residential For sale (partially
Hongshan District and is buildings, offices delivered)

) complemented by a full range | and commercial EE(FHH
Poly City . . 0 N
BFIH of community and educational buildings )

facilities
fREILE  AEEERIER
EX#

FE BFERE
ES

Located at the prime area of

Residential and

Delivered with

Wuchang District, the project commercial sales of remaining
boasts unparalleled panoramic buildings apartments
Poly Blue Ocean lakeside views. Close to Wuhan | (E% - HZ INERHE
District Metro Line 2, the project enjoys
RIEBE an excellent transportation
network
URBRERLE  —&REH &
EREHR G B EEY
Located in Wuchang, the central | Residential For sale
district of the city and near the | buildings, offices EE

Poly Riverview

RALH

Yangtze River

UREBERE BERT

and commercial
buildings

Fx BFERE
E




Others
Hot

Project

EHE

Location
I8 B

Located at Hongtu Avenue in

ol

Property type

Residential and

BEXEBEBRAR

—N\FER

Current Status
R HR
Under planning

fi

Dongxihu District close to Metro | commercial
Line 2, the project is buildings
Poly Park . .
RFAE surr.ounded by numerous TE B
ancillary facilities
URRANREEAE  HE2%
Bl AEEERE
Wuhan Located in the newly emerging | Residential and For sale (partially
g Baishazhou area, the project is commercial delivered)
adjacent to Wuchang District buildings and EE(#HH
and the new town of Nanhu. offices )
Poly Up Town Located within the Second Ring, | %  HERET
R L5 the project neighbours the ]
planned Metro Line 5
URHFERNBDMA R - AR
ERAMAEETAE LR
R RREROMEST &
Situated in Nangang District, Residential and Delivered with
the central district and is the commercial sales of remaining
The Tsinghua cultural and education base for | buildings apartments
Summer Palace of | higher education, the project TE B RTBREE
Poly enjoys well-established
RABER community amenities
4F¢Mﬁ[ﬁﬂ[ BEER
R OAERERETE
New residential community Residential and Delivered with
located alongside Songhua River | commercial sales of remaining
Poly Up Town in Harbin West, designat.ed by b\uilﬁdings‘ ﬂ)artment‘sl
Harbin RFLL the. govc.ernment as a major TE B INRBEE
BEE residential area
IR F AT "BR
ﬁﬁi%ﬂm%Eiﬁ&

Poly The Water's
Fragrant Dike
RIKARE

Located in Songbei District, the
project neighbours major
provincial government offices in
Harbin and is only 500 metres
from Songbei Avenue, with
improving municipal facilities in
surrounding areas

R IR E - B AR R T BN
MOE - BRI KEES00K A
BTREEEESTE

Residential and
commercial
buildings

TE B

For sale (partially
delivered)
EE#S

A
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Project

BHHE

Location
e N E

Property type

Current Status

BEHRR

Poly City
RAA

Located in Daoli District at the
junction of West Youyi Road (&
FA7IH) and Langjiang Road (%
L)
UREEERAFERENIER
&

Residential and
commercial
buildings

TE B

For sale (partially
delivered)

EE @D

ZA)

Located on the west of Qunli

Residential and

Under planning

RAZERE

fIRETR MOREEE 2
BEM

New District (B¥/1#[&) in Daoli | commercial e
Harbin Qun Li 022 Project | District, a key development area | buildings
nEA B 0225 of Harbin Tx BE
URBERENFERS 2R
REERRRREY
Located on the west of Qunli Residential and Under planning
New District (¥ 1#[&) in Daoli | commercial =
Qun Li 034 Project | District, a key development area | buildings
B 103418 B of Harbin TE B
URBEERFNAEAL 2R
REEXBEREY
Located in Jiangnan New Residential Under construction
District, the project is adjacent | buildings and prepared for
Others Mud?njiang Poly \Landscape to Mudanjiang and Convention | £ sale
4 HAT RENT IR and Exhibition Cente ERGE
= IR TR - R4 FTHA
gRTL
Located in the Honglou Residential and Delivered with
business area of Licheng commercial sales of remaining
Poly Hyde Mansion District, a .commércial centre of b\uirlhdings‘ a\partment‘s/
RHEEAR the new district in the east of FE BE RNEREE
Jinan
fRERE  REFRRDHERE
(0 AEBEHEE
Situated at the west of Jinan, Residential and Delivered with
Jinan the project is adjacent to Jinan | commercial sales of remaining
W Poly Center West Market renowned as a buildings apartments .
RE L hundred-year-old commercial Tz HE INBBIHEE
market
XA RN EFEREATS
Neighbouring the Honglou Residential and Delivered with
business area, the project is commercial sales of remaining
Poly Elegant e _—
Garden located in Lixia District with buildings apartments
convenient transportation TE BE INERBHEE




Others
Hot

Jinan

EE

Project

EHE

Phili House

Location
I8 B

Located at a prime location
within a distance of 3.5
kilometres from the New Jinan
East Station (% ¥ R %) and
surrounded by four metro lines
R BEENMRISAEESEHE
A EEREBNERERE
5 RUEM

RNEXEERREAF

Property type

Residential and
commercial
buildings and
offices

TE HERBET
8

“E-N\FER

Current Status
BN
For sale

rE

Located at Changging District, Residential Under construction
with extensive scientific, buildings and prepared for
Hal 71 Wa Project educ:tiotn anc.i humantresc;urces, Ex=2 Z;%E
o on xcellent environment an 3=
S TEER exce e. environme .a
convenient transportation
URREER  FRAMARMAS
BRESE RHEER JAER
Situated at Changqing District Residential Under construction
and in proximity to Metro Line | buildings and prepared for
. R1 under planning, Changging | % sale
Da Shi Zi Yuan . s St
Proect Huanghe Bridge (K& &1 A7) ERFE
rojec . e
and Huayi Studios (78 & 1% %)
K FEER nd Fuayi Studlos (24 ¥
IRRER WRIVIREFN
BRIGE  RBETABARE
HP AR
Located at the downtown of Residential For sale
Zhanggqju, surrounded by a buildings EE
) number of high schools with £
Zhong Lu Mansion hensi lary facilt
comprehensive ancillary facilities
FER preers o
and convenient transportation
UREEEIHE AEERE
& RERE RBEA
Located in West Railway Station | Residential Under planning
of Huaiyin District and is a key | buildings and i
L ) investment promotion project of | offices
Huai Yin Project . N
the government of Huaiyin EE BFE

RIZER

District
URREEAREAE RER
RERLHIIEER
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Project

BHHE

Location
e N E

Property type

Current Status

BEHRR

Poly Maple Valley
RATEA

accessible with comprehensive
ancillary facilities in the
neighbourhood
URREREHE ZHEERWL -
RBREAN FEREREED

Located next to the Phoenix Residential Delivered with
Poly Champs Mountain Reservoir, the project | buildings sales of remaining
Elysees Mansion enjoys a convenient = apartments
REBHEAHE transportation network RUNRBHEE
ZREBWLKE  RBEF
Located in the core area of the | Residential Delivered with
Southern New City, the project | buildings sales of remaining
is about 500 metres from £ apartments
Guanzhuang Station (E ¥ ) of RFTEBHEE
Poly Blossom . .
Yantai section of the planned
Garden o Intercity Railway (2
RFEED ‘mgro\ng ntercity Railway (55
Yantai W BB
5 R Bz OE - EERR
BRUBERECRETHED
5005k
Situated in the core area in Residential For sale
High-tech District, the project is | buildings EE
north to Binhai Road and is FE
approximately 300 metres from
Poly Ocean Luxe ) .
Others T the coastline, offering
HAh unparalleled sea views
UREHERLMLE LBES
% EYREREN00K  FE
REEE
Situated in the Huancui District, | Residential Delivered with
the project is close to the buildings sales of remaining
Poly Triumph Xianguding Scenic Spot and is | £ apartments
Mansion east to the ocean, offering RFEEHEE
i unparalleled sea views
URERREE BBUGERRE
BE RHEE BEREER
Weihai Located in the heart of Huancui | Residential Delivered with
B8 District, the project is buildings sales of remaining
surrounded by hills in three FE apartments
directions and is easily RNEREE




Others
Hot

Weihai
Bg

Project

EHE

Caixin Poly
Masterpiece

BERAEE

Location
I8 B

Situated in the old town centre
of the economic and technology
development zone which is
densely populated with robust
business activities, the project is
easily accessible with
convenient transportation and
comprehensive ancillary
facilities
MREBERMEERERT LA
B-EFMAORE -XBE
E RERE

ol

Property type
Residential
buildings

FE

BEXEBEBRAR

—N\FER

Current Status
BN
For sale

rE

Zibo
i

Poly Mansion

RAIER

Located at Linzi District with
convenient transportation,
comprehensive ancillary facilities
and abundant nature resources,
the project is situated in a
densely populated area
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ*iﬁﬁﬂ LER
E-BREREE  AXRER
E

Residential
buildings
F=x

For sale

EE

Da Cheng Project
KBEE

Located in the core business
circle of the central business
district of Zibo, the project is
well supported by educational
resources, convenient
transportation and well-
developed facilities
URFORREOEE BER
B2RER XBEM REX
#

Residential
buildings
FE

Under construction
and prepared for
sale

EEREE

Weifang
%9

Zoina Poly
Mansion

R R A AT

Strategically located at the
intersection of Baotong Street
and Weixian Road in High-tech
District
UREHEERHEERRRE
B RAEM

Residential
buildings
fFE

For sale

rE

Wanning

e

%m

Poly Peninsula
No.1
RAEBE15%

Located in the resort district of
Shenzhou Peninsula in Wanning
City, Hainan Province, the
project enjoys beautiful coastal
resources
UREEESET BN BIRE
ERE ZEEHBEENER
Bk

Residential and
commercial
buildings

TE B

Under planning
(Ehc
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5. Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas 5. BRERRHIME

As at 31st December, 2018, Poly Property Group had BE_Z-N\F+A=+—0 BEX&L
five projects in Hong Kong, Macau and overseas EEBBEEINEFAESEER £
regions with a total GFA of approximately 679,000 BEREEMBEL08E T K FRARE
square meters, accounting for 3% of Poly Property HMRELS71EF K At HEED
Group’s total land reserves. Among which, 108,000 6798 FH K (HEXSEEBA T MFEBEN
square meters were under construction while 571,000 3% o A FR3{EIE B A i LB 21818
square meters were under planning. Three of these BRARTI -

projects were under construction and two had yet to

commence construction.

Project Location Property type Current Status

EHE 38y B S i BB OR
Located in the Kai Tak Residential For sale
Development Area of Kowloon | buildings EE

near the Kai Tak Station along | %
the Shatin — Central MTR line

Kai Tak Vibe under construction and will take

Centro only 10 minutes by MTR to

MEEs reach the core areas of Hong
Kong Island

RNEREHERER R
EROMED T RREE - KR
100 EERTEEETLE

Located in the Castle Peak Bay | Villas Under construction
section of Castle Peak Road, kS and prepared for
Hong Kong, Tuen Mun, the project is a low- sale
Macau and Hong Kong density beachside residential ERFE
overseas e project encircled by ancillary
IR ]2 35 4h ) facilities such as Harrow
Tuen Mun Project International School Hong Kong
HFIER '

Gold Coast and Tuen Mun

Hospital in the neighbourhood
UREMAERFLUREEILER -
REVPEEXREATES - A
ERALE HEoBFREME

RERERE
Located in Yau Tong District, Residential Under planning
Kwun Tong, Kowloon East, buildings F

Yau Tong Project about 10-minute walk distance F=E
HIETE A from Yau Tong MTR station
URNERBERRENR &
TEMENE 09 &




Hong Kong,
Macau and
overseas

BB RIEI

Project

EHE

Location
I8 B

Property type

RANEZEEFRAA
“E-N\FER

Current Status

BB OR

The project is located in Residential Under planning
Coloane, Macau. Coloane is buildings =
Macau Coloane Project named as the "back garden of | %
i BRIRIAR Macau” for its beautiful scenery
URBES REEE KRS
HEBNAFMERIEE]
The project is located in Residential For sale
Wandsworth, Southwest buildings rE
London, which is well-known for | £%
its high-quality school district
and tranquillity. It is
(E B BIEE

and approximately 30-minute
drive from Central London
URAREZASE NEES
BRRBUREREL  SIT159E
AIREE N BRAMRLL
0HEERE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Structure

As at 31st December, 2018, total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to
HK$29,889,095,000 (2017: HK$28,296,364,000), while the
net asset value per share was HK$8.16 (2017: HK$7.73). As
at 31st December, 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio (on the
basis of the amount of total liabilities divided by the
amount of total assets) was 78.1% (2017: 76.1%).

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group had an outstanding
bank and other borrowings (including the notes payable) of
HK$55,005,817,000. In terms of maturity, the outstanding
bank and other borrowings (including notes payable) can
be divided into HK$13,840,294,000 (25%) to be repaid
HK$17,291,725,000 (31%) to be repaid
HK$18,357,739,000
(34%) to be repaid after two years but within five years,
HK$5,516,059,000 (10%) to be repaid after five years. In
terms of currency denomination, the outstanding bank and

within one year,
after one year but within two years,

other borrowings (including the notes payable) can be
divided into HK$40,988,609,000 (75%) in Renminbi,
HK$3,900,000,000 (7%) in United State dollars,
HK$10,117,208,000 (18%) in Hong Kong dollars.

and

39.5% of the bank and other borrowings (including the
notes payable) of the Group are subject to fixed interest
rates and the remaining 60.5% are subject to floating
interest rates. Therefore, under circumstances of interest
rates uncertainty or fluctuations or otherwise as
appropriate, the Group will consider the use of hedging
instruments (including interest rates swaps), in order to

manage interest rate risks.

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group had a net current
assets of HK$47,889,262,000 and total bank balances of
HK$27,354,481,000 (2017: HK$39,624,720,000 and
HK$21,250,887,000 respectively). With the available
banking facilities and cash revenue from business
operations, it is believed that the Group has sufficient
resources to meet the foreseeable working capital
demands and capital expenditure.

Bt %% B B

RBEESREREE

RZE—N\F+_A=+—"H ARAZKRE
JE {5 HE 25 48 E 529,889,095,000/8 7T (— & —+
F 1 28,296,364,000/%8 7C) MEREEFEAL
816B L (ZE—+F 7738 L) R-_ZE— )\
FHZA=1+—H FTEEEEBENLEX (G
BRI ABERERINEERE) 578.1% (=

—+tF 761%) °

RZZE-—NFF+ZA=1+—8 XEEHKE
BEROTEEMEERERREENER A
55,005,817,000/8 7T ° IZ B HAR 548 - REZEIR
TREMEE(BRENEBR) IDAE—FA
E 2 213,840,294,000% 7T(25%) ~ £t —F & 12
M E A (B 38 217,291,725,0005 7T(31%) * £ /R
F 2B A F KNEIE 218,357,739,0007% JT(34%)
NMERFEEEZEZS, 516 ,059,000/%8 7T(10%) ° &
BEEESE KEEBRTREMES (BIEEM
EB)A D z%#;z AR ﬂ% a+ 8 2.40,988,609,0007%
TC(75%) * ¥ 3= 7051 B 2.3,900,000,000/% 7T(7%)
N A% 7% Tt E 210,117,208,0007%5 J0(18%) °

AEE3IS%RITREMEE (BREEBNERE) A
IE%i‘EJr% i #; T60.5% 81 LA T 8y B K5+

o A ET'JTTEEE‘X&@J‘}ZEW&;U 1B
/RT AEEHEBEREFTA(BRMNERE
H)EEMEER -

RZE-N\FE+_A=1+—08 AEEZRH
& EF(E B47,889,262,000/8 7T © SRITHALE R A
27,354,481,0008 T (— T — t F: 9 5 A
39,624,720,0007% 7t }221,250,887,0005 7T) ° A
TRAPHARTEERLERWE  HELASE
EAEREERENAERZ 2BESERK
BEARRY °



The monetary assets and liabilities and business
transactions of the Group are mainly carried and
conducted in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars. The Group maintains a prudent strategy in
its foreign exchange risk management, where foreign
exchange risks are minimised via balancing the monetary
assets versus monetary liabilities, and foreign exchange
revenue versus foreign exchange expenditures. The
management believes that the foreign exchange rate
between Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars is
relatively stable. Due to recent fluctuation of Renminbi
exchange rate against Hong Kong dollars, the Group
closely monitors the fluctuation and adopts policy to

minimise exchange rate risks, if necessary.

Pledged Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of
the Group’s assets which were pledged to secure credit
facilities granted to the Group are as follows:

RANEZEEFRAA
“E-N\FER

AEBEZEREERABREBRITENR
T ARBEETREMIIERET - AEE
EHNERBRERE T EAFERZ TS EBF
BEYEERTY A E L RIMNE KA EINME F
X HINERBRERE - EEEMRE AT
AETZEXHEERE ARKOARELE
TEXRRE AEEENERAHEREY LA
5 B2 B IR BB SRR AR BE R R -

CEHEE
RBEMK  AEBCEAERREBRERRD
EERENERNEAEREERT

2018 2017
—2-N\% —2-tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT THET

Investment properties wKEME 6,031,545 3,704,286
Hotel properties B JE ) % 151,724 157,143
Buildings ’F 95,931 —
Prepaid lease payments A ERIE 61,656 65,414
Properties under development BRERPYE 19,685,181 21,637,628
Properties held for sale FIERHEWE 924,713 2,719,388
Bank deposits AT R 4,201,597 329,237
31,152,347 28,613,096

63
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In addition to above pledge of assets, at 31st December,
2018 and 2017, the Group’s interests in certain subsidiaries
was pledged to secure credit facilities granted to the
Group. The details of net asset value of subsidiaries are as

follows:

BREREERTIN RZF-NFER_FT—+L
F+-—A=+—8" $'§l VETHBARN
RETCEMEALAEBERNEERENE
ReMBAREEFENFBNOT

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FET

Total assets BEE 11,584,681 12,823,267
Total liabilities =R (10,680,886) (12,999,927)
Net asset/(liabilities) value FEE(BE) 903,795 (176,660)

At 31st December 2018, the Group's interests in joint
ventures were pledged to secure the credit facilities
granted to a subsidiary and a joint venture. The pledged
interests were amounting to HK$3,713,975,000.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group arranged mortgage loan facilities with certain
banks for purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to banks to secure obligations of such
purchasers of repayment. The maximum guarantees given
to banks amounted to HK$24,775,663,000 as at 31st
2018 (2017: HK$28,685,243,000). Such
guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) issue of the

December,

real estate ownership certificate; and (ii) the satisfaction of
the mortgage loans by the buyers of the properties. The
Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as its fair value is considered to be
minimal by the Directors. The Directors also consider that
the fair value of the underlying properties is able to cover
in the event the
purchasers default payments to the banks.

the outstanding mortgage loans

At 31st December, 2018, the Group had given guarantees
to certain banks in respect of credit facilities granted to
certain joint ventures of the Group amounting to
HK$3,923,226,000 (2017: HK$2,170,910,000), of which
HK$3,909,068,000 (2017: HK$2,088,743,000) had been
utilised by the joint ventures.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group employed about
13,152 employees with remuneration for the year
amounted to HK$1,176,250,000. The Group provides its
employees with various benefits including year-ended
double-pay, contributory provident fund and medical
insurance. In addition, share options and discretionary
bonuses are also granted based on the Group’'s and
individual’s performance. Employee trainings are also
provided as and when required.
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This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents
the corporate governance matters of Poly Property Group
Co., Limited (the “Company”, and together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) during the period covering the
financial year ended 31st December, 2018 and up to the
date of this CG Report (“CG Period”).
devotes to the best practice on corporate governance, and
to comply to the extent practicable, with the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix

The Company

14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year under review, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (the “CG Code”), other than code
provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 and E.1.2 of the CG Code. The
reasons for deviations from such provisions are explained

below:

Under code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG Code,
listed issuers should, among others, establish a nomination
committee with specific written terms of reference. The
Company has considered the merits of establishing a
nomination committee but is of the view that it is in the
best interests of the Company that the Board collectively
reviews, deliberates on and approves the structure, size
and composition of the Board, appoints or re-appoints of
any Director and assesses the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The Board is tasked
with ensuring that it has a balanced composition of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
businesses of the Group and that appropriate individuals
with the relevant expertise and leadership qualities are
appointed to the Board to complement the capabilities of

the existing Directors.
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Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman
of the board should attend annual general meetings. Due
Mr. Xue Ming, the
chairman of the Company at the relevant time, was unable

to other important engagement,

to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 24th May, 2018.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
SET OUT IN APPENDIX 10 TO THE
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code and the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions adopted by the Company
throughout the year ended 31st December, 2018.

RABEEBBRAR
—E-N\FFR

REBEEERTUZTAKRIFEEN2MG EF
SXIFERHNERRBEAE HEARAEIRES
BEAERERERRTEREEEAMER M ARGE
HEARAR-_F-N\FREA-_tTHOAEETZ
BERBFRE -

ARRARSEHREEHE A BERANRAND
FEREBHTENREREATRIRES -

B EmRBM RS A&z EE
Sl

—_—

ARPERMEREZTETESRRXHZTIRT
A BERTER EHRAUMEE+ ETEITA
EFETIEFR NIRRT (REST R P
HoHRERE - KRAEBESHFEHARSH
PREFCHIBNBEE_ZT-NF+_-A
=S+t BLEFE-—EETEREETHRARAK
MNEBEFETESFR S 2ITRATAl-



POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

CORPORATE GOVERN
L S S B0 A

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises seven executive directors
("ED(s)") and four independent non-executive directors
("INED(s)"). The four INEDs, representing one-third of the
Board, have constituted a proper balance of power
maintaining full and effective control of both the Group
and its management. The Company has received from each
of the INEDs of his/her
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing

a written confirmation

Rules and has considered that all INEDs are independent
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules. Biographical particulars of the Directors
are set out on pages 83 to 88.

In order to reinforce their respective independence,
accountability and responsibility, the role of the Chairman
is separated from that of the managing director of the
The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice and ensuring the

Company (the "“Managing Director”).

effectiveness of the Board. With the support of the
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on
issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on managing the Company
and its subsidiaries,
objectives, policies and strategies approved and delegated
by the Board. In addition, the Managing Director is in
charge of the Group’s day-to-day management and
operations and is also responsible for developing strategic

developing and implementing

plans and formulating the organisational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board's approval.
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The Board collectively takes responsibility for all major
matters of the Company, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal
systems,
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
and operational The day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the

control and risk management financial

financial matters.
Company are delegated to the Managing Director and the
management. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transaction entered into by the
officers.

The Board shall be composed of members with mixed skills
and experience with appropriate weights necessary to
accomplish the Group’s business development, strategies,
operation, challenges and opportunities. Each member of
the Board shall possess, be recognised for and be able to
exhibit high and professional standard of a set of core
criteria of competence.

The Company had adopted a nomination policy for the
nomination procedures and selection criteria regarding the
appointment of Directors.

Under the nomination policy, the board of EDs has been
delegated the full power to the administration of the
nomination policy and the appointment and the
termination of directors, where the full Board remains to
have the full and overriding power and absolute right
thereover.

The Board adopted the board membership diversity policy
for maintaining the appropriate skills and experience
required by the Company’s business and a diversity of
perspectives on the Board. In considering the new
appointment of Directors, the selection will be based on a
series of diversity scopes, including but not limited to
gender,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, and industry
and regional experience.

age, cultural and educational background,

RANEZEEFRAA
“E-N\FER

EFEENARAMAIESHER  BREILE
REEMBEBRREE EBRER RMEER
RBRERERG MBEEN BEFcREREM
EAXMBREZEEE - ARABEER  1TH
EEREEDNZREFAKENEEARSR
B -HMHBEIVYZERRZEREANG
EFEgHE

EXgAMARSETRRERERZKEH
B MERERERZELBARAHYAS
Blo¥BER KK 282 KBEIEE -E=F
CENEEZEEREEXRABNEIZZLEN
VWESRA BERTISEZERZE-

ARABREZEESNRABEF MEEERRA
—IHEBHR -

BRRARE EERACHAESCERS
RERRAREUREIREREF 2 FH
HrEEFENEERERERESN  ARE
1 F -

EXERMEZTENEZTIERE  UBERKE
FEABMUTAARAEBATNEERE &
BEZHRAENBHEAE EEBEZIHES
R EFEUZEITEEE BERETRREMKE
Bl FlR - ERBREE SR  BEER K-
MBRATEMRE LR -



POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

CORPO TE GOVER!?

The appointment of the directorship is subject to, as to
EDs,
every three financial years and, as to INEDs, their specific
term of office or their retirement by rotation at annual

retirement, rotation and re-election at least once

general meeting of the Company ("AGM"), at which they
being eligible can offer themselves for re-election.

Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of each
director. One-third of the Directors, or if the number is not
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third,
must retire from office at each AGM and their re-election
is subject to a vote of the shareholders. Any Director
appointed during the year to fill a casual vacancy is
subject to re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Zhang Bingnan and Mr. Wang Jian who
were appointed as Directors during the year shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Xue Ming, Mr. Wang Xu, Mr. Zhu Weirong
and Mr. Choy Shu Kwan shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting.

In accordance with Code Provision A.4.3 of Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert has been
served as a Director of the Company for more than 9
years. Mr. lp shall retire and, being eligible, offer himself
for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.
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All Directors, INEDs,
understanding as to their collective responsibilities as
directors and the businesses and activities of the Group.
Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction

including should have good

package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory
and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company. The Group also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge
and skills, and updates all

developments regarding the Listing Rules and other

Directors on the latest
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. During the CG Period, all existing
Directors have received
relating to corporate governance and regulations and have

provided their training records. The Company is of the

relevant trainings on topics

view that all Directors have complied with code provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code based on the above.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilities insurance in respect of legal action
arising from the business of the Group against the
Directors and officers.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group and to discuss future
strategy. Four regular Board meetings were held in 2018.
At the Board meetings, the Board reviewed significant
matters including the Group’s annual and interim financial
statements, proposals for final and interim dividends,
annual report and interim report. At least 14 days’ notice
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings and
all Directors are given the opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The agenda and Board
papers for each meeting are sent to all Directors at least
three days in advance of every regular Board meeting. All
minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and
are available to all Directors for inspection. In addition, the
Chairman had an annual interchange with all the non-
executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive ones) of the Company without the other
executive Directors present.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board THAZE=EERN=
meetings and AGM in 2018 is set out below:

—NFHFEEEEEN
Hx%ﬂﬁ?k@ﬁ’]ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ :

Name of Director Board capacity Attendance AGM
Esns REZSZ54H H R BRREFKRE
Xue Ming ED, Chairman 4/4 -
e HITEE IF

Han Qingtao ED, Managing Director 4/4 -
BERE WITES EFRKE

Wang Xu ED 4/4 _
e HITES

Ye Liwen ED 4/4 -
2R [H WITES

Zhu Weirong ED 4/4 v
EARESS HITES

lp Chun Chung, Robert NED 4/4 v
BEiRS FHMITES

Choy Shu Kwan INED 4/4 v
k= BYFNTES

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED 4/4 v
RF5% BIYFATES

Wong Ka Lun INED 4/4 v
BEXRMR BYFNTES



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) from the adoption date
and consisted of one ED and three INEDs, being Mr. Han
Qingtao, Mr. Wong Ka Lun (Chairman), Mr. Choy Shu
Kwan and Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia during the year
under review.

The role and function of Remuneration Committee include:
o formulating remuneration policy;

. recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy for the Directors;

° review of, approval of and recommendation for (if any)
the remuneration package of each Director including
benefits in kind, pension right, performance bonus
payment and compensation payable;

o review and approval of the compensation payment to
any Director upon his/her cessation of directorship in
or employment with the Company; and

o engagement of external professional advisers to assist
and/or advise Remuneration Committee on its duties
when necessary.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee had
been compiled since the establishment of Remuneration
Committee and were revised in December 2015 and
March 2019 and were endorsed and adopted by the
Board. It is available on the Company’s website.

The summary of the work performed by Remuneration
Committee for the financial period under review is as
follows:

J endorsement to the remuneration policy for the
Directors; and

o review and approval of the remuneration package of
each Director including benefits in kind, pension
right, bonus payment and compensation payable
taking in to account of their performance.
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DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid to and/or entitled by each of the
Directors for the financial period under review is set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

In 2018, Remuneration Committee held one committee
meeting. The composition of Remuneration Committee and
the respective attendance of the committee members are

presented as follows:

EEME

REEVBEHARRASEE R A E5EEZ
BzMe SR AFRESWERERMEN -

R-E-N\F HFMHEZESETT — g
SHE -FHEEEZEMUAREZESRZER
Zﬁfiﬁu"ﬂ

W >r

Name of Members Board capacity Attendance
EEHA RESZSEZ54H =
Wong Ka Lun (Chairman) INED 11
BERM(EE) BUYIFATES
Choy Shu Kwan INED 11
ek BYIFATES
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED 11
RF5% BUFATES
Han Qingtao ED, Managing Director 0/1

WITES EFLLE
BREEY

“Audit ARBAzBERZZES®(ERZERDR
—NAANF=ZA+ABKIL- BATAEREL

Ly
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the
Committee”) was established on 19th March, 1999 and

currently consists of four INEDs, being Mr. Ip Chun Chung, 3JESRITEEHEN  BEERBLE - BFF /N

Robert, Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia (Chairlady), Mr. Choy M (EE) - #HFHEERERMEE °

Shu Kwan and Mr. Wong Ka Lun.

In 2018, the Company had maintained an Audit RIZZE—N\F ARG BREEZEZEL - FZ

Committee. The major functions of the Audit Committee ZEEMNEITEBREAREES RINEZHEM 2

include serving as a focal point for communication M BRBR ERARANMBER UK
e

between Directors and external auditors, reviewing the EERARAIMPEERERANIBELRERT -
Company's financial information as well as overseeing the
Company's financial reporting system and internal control

procedures



For the financial period under review, the Audit
Committee had performed the following duties:

o reviewed and commented on the audited full year
financial statements and the unaudited interim
financial results of the Group of the financial period
under review before submission to the Board for
adoption and publication;

o endorsed the policy on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

o met with the auditor to discuss the financial matters
of the Group that arose during the course of the
audit process, and reviewed the findings,
recommendations and representations of the auditor;

o reviewed and approved the remuneration and the
terms of engagement of the auditor for both audit
services and non-audit services for the financial
period under review; and

o reviewed the internal audit reports and the Company’s
statement on internal control.

After due and careful consideration of the reports from the
management of the Group and the auditor, the Audit
Committee was of the view that no suspected
irregularities, internal control deficiencies, or breach of
regulations had been found.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee had been
compiled since the establishment of the Audit Committee
and revised by the Board on 21st January, 2009, 18th
December, 2015 and 29th March, 2019 respectively. It is
available on the Company’s website.
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The members of the Audit Committee acknowledged their
responsibilities for reviewing the financial statements of the
Group. In reviewing the accounts for the financial period
under review, the members have:

o based on a going concern basis;

J selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

J made judgements and estimates that were prudent,
fair and reasonable.

the Audit
Committee had arranged to conduct a review over the

During the financial period under review,
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.
The review had been reported to the Board.

The external audit provides an objective assessment of the
financial information presented by the management. BDO
Limited was engaged as the external auditor of the
Company. Their independence and audit process are
reviewed and monitored by the Audit Committee which
considered the scope of the audit work, audit fees, non-
audit services as well as their appointment and retention.

For the year ended 31st December, 2018, the fees paid or
payable by the Group to the auditor in respect of their
audit services amounted to approximately HK$9,230,000. In
addition, the Group has also paid HK$3,640,000 to its
network firm in respect of other services provided to
certain subsidiaries in the PRC. Other services mainly
consist of taxation

services, advisory and other

professional services.
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In 2018, the Audit Committee had held four physical
meetings to (i) review and discuss the key audit matters,
audited full year financial statements and the unaudited
interim financial results of the Group of the financial
period under review before submission to the Board for
adjustment and publication, (i) review the internal audit
reports and the Company’s statement an internal control.

The composition of the Audit Committee and the
respective attendance of the committee members are

presented as follows:

Name of Members

Board capacity

ZEHE REZSZ254H
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia (Chairlady) INED

REL () BYFERITES
Ip Chun Chung, Robert NED

ER& FRITEF
Choy Shu Kwan INED

08 9 BYFERITES
Wong Ka Lun INED

BERMW BYFRITES

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The risk management committee of the Company (the
“Risk Management Committee”) was established in
December 2015. In 2018, Risk Management Committee
consists of two EDs being Mr. Han Qingtao and Mr. Ye
Liwen, one Non-executive Director and three INEDs being
Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert, Mr. Choy Shu Kwan
(Chairman), Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia and Mr. Wong Ka
Lun.
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In 2018, the Company had maintained a Risk Management
Committee. The major role and function of the Risk
Management Committee are as follows:

o monitor and review the process of the risk
management and advise to the Board about the
effectiveness of and improvements to be made to the
existing risk management system;

o provide guidelines to the management on risk
management and set up procedures to unveil, assess
and ensure

and manage material risk factors;

management discharges its responsibility to

implement an effective risk management system;

o review and report to the Board the effectiveness of
the risk management system; and

o review with the Group’s management, external auditor
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group’s
policies and procedures regarding risk management
system and any relevant statement by the directors
to be
endorsement by the Board.

included in the annual accounts prior to

The terms of reference of the Risk Management
Committee has been compiled since the establishment of
Risk Management Committee and has been set out on the
Company's website.

During the CG Period, the Risk Management Committee
had held two physical meetings for discussing matters in
relation to the risk management of the Group.

In 2018,
macro risks of the real estate industry and internal risks

the Risk Management Committee reviewed

including operating risks, financial risks and compliance
risks and made recommendations on improvements of risk
control to the Board.
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In 2018, the composition of the Risk Management
respective attendance of the
committee members are presented as follows:

Committee and the

RANBEEEEFRAA]
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SLXBERAZHEERNT

Name of Members Board capacity Attendance
ZEHER REZEEZ5H HE =R
Choy Shu Kwan (Chairman) INED 2/2
2HH(FE) BYFRITES

Ip Chun Chung, Robert NED 2/2
BEiRE FEBMITESE

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED 2/2
R BYFRITES

Wong Ka Lun INED 2/2
BERfm BIYFERITES

Han Qingtao ED, Managing Director 2/2
5= WITEF EFHEKHE

Ye Liwen ED 2/2
i 22 HITES

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping detailed
minutes of each meeting of the Board and the
Committees including any dissenting views expressed by
the Directors, which should be available to all Directors for
inspection. She is also responsible for ensuring that the
Board procedures comply with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations and advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. All agenda, relevant materials and
documents are required to be sent out at least three days
prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
Committees’ meetings. It is the responsibility of the
Company Secretary to send the draft minutes of the
meetings of the Board or the Committees to all Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the aforesaid
meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings of the
Board and the Committees are also required to be sent to
all Directors for record. All Directors have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure

that the Board procedures and all applicable laws are
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CORPORATE GOVERNA
REAME

followed. Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible
for keeping all Directors updated on the Listing Rules,
regulatory requirements, as well as internal codes of
conduct of the Company.

During the CG Period, the Company Secretary had
confirmed that she had taken relevant professional training
in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
shareholders of the Company.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders have a right to vote at
general
convene a general meeting in accordance with Section 566
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of

meetings can submit a written requisition to

Hong Kong).
The written requisition must:

(i) state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting;

(i)  contain the signatures of all the requisitionists (which
may be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form); and

(iii) be deposited at the Company’'s registered office
(Room 2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1, 18 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company
Secretary.
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If Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
general meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the
date on which the notice convening the general meeting is
given, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a general meeting, but any
general meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from the said date.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary
through the following methods:

(i)  in writing to the Company’s registered office at Room
2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower |, 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong; or

(i)  fill in the enquiry form set out in the “Contact Us”
section of the Company’s website.

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as a Director are laid down in Article 120 of the
Company's Articles of Association:

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as a Director at any general meeting, unless there
shall have been lodged at the registered office of the
Company a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the
person to be proposed) entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his/her intention
to propose such person for election and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected. The period for lodgement of such notices shall
be no less than seven days and shall commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and no later
than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.
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Accordingly, if a shareholder wishes to nominate a person
to stand for election as a Director of the Company at the
general meeting, the following documents must be validly
served on the Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company:

(i) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at
the general meeting; and

(i)  a notice executed by the nominated candidate of the
candidate’s willingness to be appointed together
with:

(a) that candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules and such other information; and

(b) the candidate’s written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy and other Corporate
Governance Principles of the Company could be reviewed
at Company’s website.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMEN

5%
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ZHANG Bingnan, aged 46, holds a doctoral degree in
economics from Xi'an Jiaotong University. Mr. Zhang has
been appointed as the Chairman of the Company and the
chairman of Poly Property Group Co., Limited (a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company established in the PRC)
since February 2019. As the Chairman of the Board, Mr.
Zhang is primarily responsible for overall management,
major development of the Group. Mr. Zhang is also a
director and the general manager of Poly (Hong Kong)
Holdings Limited (“Poly Holdings”).

HAN Qingtao, aged 58, holds an Executive Master Degree
of Business Administration from Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law. Mr. Han was the managing director of
Poly Southern Group Co., Ltd. (“Poly Southern”) during the
period from December 2005 to September 2007, an
executive Director of the Company during the period from
October 2007 to August 2011, a senior officer of the Real
Estate Department of China Poly Group during the period
from August 2011 to October 2014, and the Managing
Director of the Company from October 2014 to February
2019, and currently is the Vice Chairman of the Company.
He is also a director of Poly Holdings and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

XUE Ming, aged 57, holds a master’s degree in Economics
from Renmin University of China, a doctorate degree in
Economics and Management from Beijing Forestry
University and is a senior economist. Mr. Xue has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Company since
April 2006, was the Managing Director of the Company
during the period from July 2009 to October 2014, and
was the Chairman of the Board of the Company from April
2010 to February 2019. Mr. Xue is also a deputy general
manager of China Poly Group Corporation Limited (“China
Poly Group”), the chairman of Poly Holdings and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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5% RARMERESREEABGHN

WANG Xu, aged 59, has been an executive Director of the
Company since October 2007. Mr. Wang had been the
chairman of Poly Southern during the period from March
2003 to September 2007, the Managing Director of the
Company during the period from October 2007 to July
2009 and is also the chief economist of China Poly Group,
the deputy chairman of Poly Holdings and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

WANG Jian, aged 47,
architecture from South China University of Technology.

holds a master degree in

Mr. Wang has been appointed as the Managing Director of
the Company and a director and the general manager of
Poly Property Group Co., Limited
subsidiary of the Company established in the PRC) since

(a wholly owned

February 2019. As the Managing Director of the Group,
Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for the operation and
management of the Gorup. Mr. Wang is also a director of
Poly Holdings. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wang
was the deputy general manager of Poly Developments
and Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Poly Real
Estate (Group) Co., Ltd.), our substantial shareholder, for
over 10 years.

YE Liwen, aged 48, holds a bachelor degree from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics and a master degree
in Business Administration from Peking University. Mr. Ye
was a senior officer with China Poly Group for the period
from 1994 to 2001 and joined the Company in 2001 as a
manager of investments department. He has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Company since
November 2006, and currently also acts as the Chief
Financial Controller of Poly Holdings, and a deputy general
manager of the Company, and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.
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ZHU Weirong, aged 56, holds a master's degree in
from the Department of
International Politics at Peking University. Mr. Zhu worked
for China Poly Group from 1994 to 2001, joined Poly
Holdings and the Company in 2001.

International Relations

He has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Company since
August 2016 and currently also acts as a deputy general
manager of Poly Holdings and the Company, and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

IP Chun Chung, Robert, aged 62, joined the Company in
January 2001 as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of Audit Committee and was redesignated
to non-executive Director since July 2004. He has been a
member of Risk Management Committee since December
2015. Mr.
executive Director since February 2019 and is also a

Ip has redesignated to independent non-

member of Remuneration Committee. Mr. Ip has been a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong since 1985 and is a
consultant of Messrs. Cheng, Yeung & Co. Mr. Ip has over
35 years of experience in legal aspects and more than 20
years of experience in listing related and corporate
takeover, mergers and acquisition areas. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Changhong Jiahua
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 08016), a company listed on

the Stock Exchange.

CHOY Shu Kwan, aged 64, holds a master degree in
Business Administration and has over 20 years’' extensive
experience in financial business and investment
management. Mr. Choy worked for the CITIC Group Hong
Kong for over 20 years. Before his resignation in 2007, he
Markets

Limited. Mr. Choy has joined the Company since July 2004

was the managing director of CITIC Capital

as an independent non-executive Director and currently is
the chairman of Risk Management Committee, a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Mr.
executive director of Skyfame Realty (Holdings) Limited
(Stock code: 00059).

Committee. Choy is also an independent non-
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5% RARMERESREEABGHN

LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia, aged 55, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Miss Leung holds a
bachelor's degree in Accountancy from City University of
Hong Kong and had studied as an external student and
passed the accredited examinations and obtained a
bachelor of laws degree from the University of London.
Miss Leung has joined the Company since August 2010 as
an independent non-executive Director and is currently the
chairlady of Audit Committee and a member of each of
the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee. Miss Leung is currently an independent non-
executive director of China Aerospace International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 00031) and resigned as
independent non-executive director of Prosper
Construction Holdings Limited (stock code: 06816) on 4
October 2018, shares of both are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Miss Leung is also a
Capital
Limited, a company licensed to conduct, among others,
type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. She has over

director and responsible officer of Celestial

20 years of experience in company secretarial and
corporate finance advisory.

WONG Ka Lun, aged 69, holds a bachelor degree in Social
Sciences from The University of Hong Kong majoring in
Economics and Psychology. Mr. Wong had held various
executive and management positions with Cathy Pacific
Airways, John Swire & Sons (China) Limited and Swire
Travel Limited. He has joined the Company since
November 2012 as an independent non-executive Director
and currently is the chairman of Remuneration Committee,
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Risk
Management Committee. Mr. Wong is also a director of
the board of The Hong Kong International Film Festival
Society Limited and a council member of The Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

POON Man Man, aged 49, holds a bachelor degree in
Business Administration from Simon Fraser University in
Canada majoring in Finance and Marketing. She is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. Miss Poon has joined the Group since
March 2013 as the Company Secretary and authorized
representative, and currently also acts as the head of
executive Directors’ office of the Group.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WU Guangming, aged 57, holds a PhD in Business
Administration from China Academic Affairs Division of
Liberty University, U.S.A. and is a senior economist. Dr. Wu
joined China Poly Group in January 2005 and joined the
Group in September 2007. He currently acts as a deputy
risk

general manager of the Group managing the

management centre, Guangxi subsidiaries, Guizhou

subsidiaries, and Yunnan subsidiaries.

CHAN Hiu Lai, aged 56, holds a bachelor degree in
Economics Management from Navy Engineering College.
Ms. Chan joined China Poly Group in February 2002 and
joined the Group in November 2012. She currently acts as
a deputy general manager of the Group managing the
administration centre in Mainland China, responsible for
union work, media work, some property management

companies and certain business management companies.

ZHAO Guoang, aged 49, holds an EMBA from Tongji
University and is a senior economist as well as qualified
property valuer. Mr. Zhao joined China Poly Group in 1995
and joined the Group in January 2006. He currently acts as
a deputy general manager of the Group managing the cost
and contract centre,

Shanghai subsidiaries, Zhejiang

subsidiaries, Suzhou subsidiaries, and the construction

company.
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CHOI Wai Sang, Kenny, aged 47, holds a bachelor degree
in Computer Science from the University of Hong Kong. He
Choi joined the
Group in August 2001 and currently is a deputy general

is a Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr.

manager of the Group and the managing director of Poly
Property (Hong Kong) Co.,
Holdings Limited, subsidiaries of the Group.

Limited and Poly Treasure

WAN Yuqing, aged 43, holds an EMBA degree from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business and an EMBA
degree from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law.
Mr. Wan joined China Poly Group in 1997 and joined the
Group in September 2007. He currently acts as a deputy
general manager of the Group managing the investment
management centre,

brand marketing centre, product

management centre, operation management centre,

Guangdong subsidiaries, and Hubei subsidiaries.

PUN Chi Ping, aged 52, holds a master's degree in finance
management from the City University of Hong Kong. He is
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Mr. Pun joined Poly Holdings in May 1994
and joined the Group in April 2000. He is an assistant to

Accountants.

the general manager and the financial controller of the
Group and is in charge of the financial affairs and
compliance of the Group.

* Certain of the subsidiaries are Chinese entities and their names have
been translated into English for reference only.

The list of directors of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company during the financial year and up to the date of this
report is available on the Company’'s website at
www.polyhongkong.com under the “Corporate Governance”

section.
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The board of Directors present its annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of Poly Property
Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year

ended 31st December, 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 50
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2018 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss on page 116 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2017: Nil).
The Directors recommend payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.123 per share for the year ended 31st December,
2018 (2017: HK$0.135).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

of the Company are set out

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31st December, 2018, the investment properties of
the Group were revalued by an independent firm of
professional surveyor and property valuer on an open
market value basis at HK$12,571,809,000.

Details of these and other movements during the year in
the investment properties of the Group are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31st December, 2018 represented the
accumulated profits of HK$1,673,395,000 (2017:

HK$2,319,789,000).
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the
Group for the preceding five financial years is set out on
page 358.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The business overview for the year ended 31st December,
2018 of the Group in the
Statement” on page 4 and “Management Discussion and

is set out "Chairman’s

Analysis” on page 20 of this annual report.

POTENTIAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES OF THE GROUP

The financial position, operating results, business and
prospects of the Group may be affected by various risks
and uncertainties. Major risks and uncertainties identified
by the Group are set out below. However, there may be
other material risks or uncertainties which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material now but could

turn out to be material in the future.
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BUSINESS RISK

A majority of the operational assets of the Group are
in the PRC, and the Group expects that a
substantial portion of its turnover will continue to be

located

generated from the operations in the PRC. Operating
results and prospects are subject, to a significant extent,
to economic, political and legal development in the PRC.
The PRC economy differs from the economies of most
developed countries in many respects including the level of
government involvement, the level of development, growth
rate and government control of foreign exchange. The
Group are unable to predict whether changes on the
political,
regulations and policies of the PRC will have any material
adverse effect on the current or future business, operating

economic and social conditions, and laws,

results or financial position of the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK

The financial risk management of the Group is set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Zhang Bingnan (Chairman)

Han Qingtao (Vice Chairman)
Xue Ming

Wang Xu

Wang Jian (Managing Director)
Ye Liwen

Zhu Weirong

Independent Non-executive Directors:
IP Chun Chung, Robert

Choy Shu Kwan

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia

Wong Ka Lun
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In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Zhang Bingnan and Mr. Wang Jian who
were appointed as Directors during the year shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Xue Ming, Mr. Wang Xu, Mr. Zhu Weirong
and Mr. Choy Shu Kwan shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting.

In accordance with Code Provision A.4.3 of Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert has been
served as a Director of the Company for more than 9
years. Mr. Ip shall retire and, being eligible offer himself
for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

The term of office of Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert, the
independent non-executive directors, is three years from
1st February, 2019, subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Articles of Association.

The term of office of Mr. Wong Ka Lun, the independent
non-executive director, is three years from 23rd
November, 2018, subject to retirement by rotation as

required by the Company’s Articles of Association.

The term of office of Mr. Choy Shu the
independent non-executive director, is three years from

Kwan,

6th October 2017, subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company's Articles of Association.

The term of office of Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia, the
independent non-executive director, is three years from
11th August, 2016, subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Articles of Association.
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None of the directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without
other than

payment of compensation, statutory

compensation.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive directors
concerning their independence and considered that the
independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2018, the interests and short
positions of the directors and their associates in the shares
of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
(“SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies were as follows:

Ordinance

Long position

Ordinary shares of the Company
Mr. Zhang Bingnan is holding 1,150,000 options to
subscribe 1,150,000 (0.03%) shares of the Company.

Mr. Han Qingtao is holding 1,150,000 options to subscribe
1,150,000 (0.03%) shares of the Company.

Mr. Xue Ming is holding 1,020,000 (0.03%) shares of the
Company.

Mr. Wang Xu is holding 1,150,000 options to subscribe
1,150,000 (0.03%) shares of the Company.

Mr. Wang Jian is holding 1,150,000 options to subscribe
1,150,000 (0.03%) shares of the Company.
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Mr. Ye Liwen is holding 850,000 options to subscribe
850,000 (0.023%) shares of the Company.

Mr. Zhu Weirong is holding 850,000 (0.023%) options to
subscribe 850,000 (0.023%) shares of the Company.

Mr. Choy Shu Kwan is holding 300,000 (0.01%) shares of
the Company.

Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia is holding 33,000 (0%) shares of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as at 31st December,
2018.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set
out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings set out in note 39, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its
holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December, 2018, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors,
the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests in the issued shares of the Company:
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Ordinary shares of the Company Z/N

Number of shares

B 5 & E

Approximate
percentage
Held by of the issued

Beneficial controlled Total number share capital of

Name of shareholder owner corporation(s) of shares the Company
EARAF

R ERTRAZ

BRRER BEEHEEA DNRFE 1% 17 48 2 BRE D

Long position

i}

Congratulations Company Ltd. 1,037,975,080 — 1,037,975,080 28.35%

Source Holdings Limited 228,398,760 100,086,800 328,485,560 8.97%

(Note 1) (fit7t1)

Ting Shing Holdings Limited — 1,366,460,640 1,366,460,640 37.32%
(Note 2) (#:2)

Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited 112,410,476 1,366,460,640 1,478,871,116 40.39%

RIA(BB)ERBRAF (Note 3) (H7#£3)

Poly Southern Group Co., Ltd. 253,788,246 — 253,788,246 6.93%

FMmEATEEERAA

China Poly Group Corporation Limited — 1,732,659,362 1,732,659,362 47.32%

FRRMEEFRA A (Note 4)(H1:£4)

Poly Real Estate Group Co., Ltd — 1,478,871,116 1,478,871,116 40.39%

FAHNFEHEER) RHERA A (Note 5) (H1it5)

Notes: Kt -

1. Source Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested in 1. RIEF S L EE A B Source Holdings Limited
328,485,560 shares of the Company as a result of its direct holding HIEFH228,398, 760k RBEBEHEEWE R A
of 228,398,760 shares and indirect holding of 100,086,800 shares Musical Insight Holdings Limited }2Wincall Holding
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Musical Insight Holdings Limited? Bl ¥ & 2 44,658,8000% i% 15 [255,428,0000%
Limited and Wincall Holding Limited, of 44,658,800 shares and fi% 153 T FE % 555 100,086,8000% f& {5 + F L4 48 ARF A
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2. Ting Shing Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested
in 1,366,460,640 shares of the Company as a result of its indirect
holding of 1,366,460,640 shares through its subsidiaries, Source
Holdings Limited and Congratulations Company Ltd., of 328,485,560
shares and 1,037,975,080 shares, respectively.

3. Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be
interested in 1,478,871,116 shares of the Company as a result of its
direct holding of 112,410,476 shares and indirect holding of
1,366,460,640 shares through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Ting Shing
Holdings Limited.

4. China Poly Group Corporation Limited owns 50% and 100% of the
issued share capital of Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited and Poly
Southern Group Co., Ltd. respectively, and is accordingly deemed by
the SFO to be interested in the shares directly and indirectly owned
by Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited and Poly Southern Group Co.,
Ltd..

5. Poly Real Estate Group Co., Ltd owns 50% of the issued share capital
of Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited and is accordingly deemed by
the SFO to be interested in the shares directly and indirectly owned
by Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in
the issued shares or underlying shares of the Company as
at 31st December, 2018.

PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Disclosures pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the

Listing Rules

On 2nd September, 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as borrower, and the Company, as
guarantor, entered into a facility agreement with certain
banks for a total term loan facility of HK$1,900,000,000.
The final maturity date of the facility will be the earlier of
(a) the date falling 48 months after the date of the facility
agreement and (b) the date falling 9 months after a
certificate of compliance is issued by the Director of
Buildings and Lands in respect of the development of Tuen
Mun Town Lot No. 542, Castle Peak Road, Castle Peak

Bay, Area 48, Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong.
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Pursuant to the aforesaid keepwell deed and facility
agreements, the Company undertakes with the banks that,
if, among other things, China Poly Group (a) ceases to be
the single largest shareholder of the Company or ceases to
least 40%
ownership of the issued shares of the Company; (b) ceases

maintain at direct or indirect beneficial
to maintain management control of the Company; or (c)
ceases to be under the control and supervision of the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council of the People’s Republic
of China, all loans together with accrued interest may

become immediately due and payable.

On 23rd May, 2017, the Company (as the borrower)
entered into a facility agreement with China CITIC Bank
International Limited as facility agent (the “Facility Agent”)
and certain other banks for a 36-month term loan facility
of HK$3,900,000,000.

Pursuant to the above facility agreement, the Company
undertakes with the banks that, if, among other things,
China Poly Group (a) ceases to be the single largest
shareholder of the Company or ceases to hold, directly or
indirectly through its controlled corporations (as defined
under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance), at
least 40% of the issued share capital of the Company; (b)
ceases to maintain management control of the Company;
or (c) ceases to be under the control and supervision of
the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council of the People’s Republic
of China, the Facility Agent may declare that all or part of
the loan together with interest and any other amounts
accrued thereunder be immediately due and payable.

On 7th February, 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as borrower, entered into a facility agreement
with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau)
Limited as facility agent and security agent (the “Agent”)
for a 24-month term loan facility of HK$4,000,000,000.
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Pursuant to the above facility agreement, if, among other
things, China Poly Group ceases to be the single largest
shareholder of the Company or no longer maintains
(directly or indirectly) beneficially not less than 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company, the Agent may
declare that all or part of the loan together with accrued
interest and all other amounts accrued thereunder be
immediately due and payable.

On 6th April, 2018, the Company (as Guarantor) and China
Poly Group Corporation Limited (“China Poly Group”)
entered into a Keepwell Deed in relation to
US$350,000,000 5.20 per cent. guaranteed notes due 2021
(the “Notes”).

On 8th May, 2018, the Company (as Guarantor) and China
Poly Group Corporation Limited (“China Poly Group”)
entered into a Keepwell Deed in relation to
US$150,000,000 5.20 per cent. guaranteed notes due 2021
(the “Notes”).

Pursuant to the Keepwell Deeds and the terms and
conditions of the Notes, if China Poly Group(a) ceases to
be the single largest shareholder of the Company or
ceases to hold, directly or indirectly through its controlled
corporations (as defined under Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance(Cap.571) of Hong Kong) at least
40% of the issued share capital of the Company or(b)
ceases to maintain management control of the Company,
this will constitute an event of default under the Notes.

On 6th September, 2018, the Company (the “Borrower”)

entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility
Agreement”) with Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. Hong Kong
Branch (the “Bank”) for a revolving loan facility of

HK$2,000,000,000 (the “Loan”). The final maturity date of
the Loan will be the earlier of (a) the date falling 24
months after the date of the Facility Agreement and (b) the
Bank's prevailing annual review date.
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Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it shall be an event of
default if, among other things, China Poly Group
Corporation (“China Poly”, the controlling shareholder of
the Company) (a) ceases to be the single largest
shareholder of the Company or ceases to hold, directly or
indirectly, through its controlled corporations (as defined
under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance), at
least 40% of the issued share capital of the Company, (b)
ceases to maintain management control of the Company,
or (c) ceases to be under the control and supervision of
the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council of the People’s Republic
of China.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

We set out below the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions of the Group during the
year pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”):

(1) The Construction Agreement

The Company entered of the
construction agreement with Poly Southern Group
Co., Ltd. (“Poly Southern”) on 21st December, 2017

(the “Construction Agreement”) for provision of

into a renewal

construction work service and other services ancillary
to the provision of construction work service by Poly
Southern and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to the renewal
of the Construction Agreement, both parties agreed
to renew the Construction Agreement for a period of
2018 to 31st
December, 2020. The proposed annual cap for the

three years from 1st January,
construction fee payable under the Construction
Agreement for each of the three years of 2018, 2019
and 2020 is RMB500 million, respectively.

The fees payable by the Group to Poly Southern will
either be at state-prescribed price or at rates no less
favourable than those offered by independent third
parties based on the tender documents submitted
during the tender process. The bidders are required
bids to the Group in
accordance with the PRC Tendering and Bidding Law.

to submit their tender

An assessment committee comprising no less than
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two-thirds of independent industry experts randomly
chosen from respective local government pools of
experts will be formed to review the bids (which shall
be no less than three) and to select the successful
bidder. Selection criteria include but are not limited
to the industry experience of the bidders, quality and
management of the proposed work, fee quote as well
as safety measures employed.

Poly Southern is wholly-owned by China Poly Group
and is a Shareholder holding approximately 6.93% of
the issued share capital of the Company. Poly
Southern is an associate of a connected person of
the Company and the renewal of the Construction
Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder therefore constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Rule 14A.31 of
the Listing Rules.

As all applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07
of the Listing Rules of the proposed annual caps for
the construction fee payable under the Construction
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31
December 2020 exceed 0.1% but are less than 5%
for the Company, the renewal of the Construction
Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder are subject to reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements but are exempt
from the independent shareholder’s approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(2)

Financial Framework Agreement

On 20th December, 2016, the Company and Poly
Finance entered into the Financial Framework
Agreement (the “Financial Framework Agreement”)
for a term of three years from 1st January, 2017 to
31st December, 2019. Pursuant to the Financial
Framework Agreement, the Group will utilize financial
services including deposit services, unsecured loan
financing services, unsecured guarantee services and

settlement services offered by Poly Finance.

According to the terms and conditions of the
Financial Framework Agreement, the Group will place
deposits with Poly Finance from time to time, and
the interest rates should be higher than the interest
rates offered by independent third parties for the
similar services obtained in the PRC. The Group and
Poly Finance will monitor the deposit of the Group’s
member entities from time to time.

The proposed annual cap of the deposit services (i.e.
maximum daily deposit balance) under the Financial
Framework Agreement is RMB410,000,000 for each of
the three years ending 31st December, 2019.

Poly Finance is owned as to 82.83% by China Poly
Group, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
and its associates. Therefore, Poly Finance is an
associate of a connected person of the Company.
The Financial Framework Agreement and the deposit
contemplated thereunder
constitute a continuing connected transaction of the

services therefore

Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As all the applicable percentage ratios of the annual
cap for the deposit services under the Financial
Framework Agreement are less than 5%, the Financial
Framework Agreement and the deposit services
contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting
and announcement requirements but are exempt
from the independent shareholder’s approval

requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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During the year under review, deposits placed with
Poly Finance did not exceed the maximum daily
balance of RMB410 million. As at 31st December,
2018, deposits of RMB401,006,000 (approximately
HK$460,926,000) were placed with Poly Finance.

ANNUAL REVIEW AND CONFIRMATION
REGARDING CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS IN
PURSUANCE OF RULE 14A.55 AND
14A.56 OF THE LISTING RULES

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions (the “Transactions”) set
out above and confirmed:

1. the Transactions were entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group;

2. the Transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms or better; and
3. the Transactions were entered into in accordance with

the relevant agreements governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
The auditor of the Company had reviewed the
Transactions and provided an unqualified letter to the
Board in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules
and confirmed, inter alia, that the Transactions have been
entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the Transactions and the Transactions have not
exceeded their respective annual caps as disclosed in the
relevant announcements and circulars.

OTHERS

A summary of significant related party transactions during
the year are disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements. Transactions as disclosed in note 47(a)
“Transactions and balances with China Poly Group” to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute
connected/continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules (where applicable) with respect to the
connected transactions and continuing connected

transactions entered into by the Group during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the financial year and as at the date of this report,
a qualifying indemnity provision made by the Company for
the benefit of the Directors is in force as required by
section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the laws of Hong Kong).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director nor any entity connected with a Director is or
was materially interested, either directly or indirectly, in
any transaction, arrangement or contract, which is of
significance to the business of the Group and to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its parent company
and the subsidiaries of its parent company was a party,
subsisting at any time during, or at the end of, the year
ended 31st December, 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, both the aggregate sales attributable to
the Group's five largest customers and the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group’s sales and purchases,
respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company'’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of
the scheme is set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31st December, 2018.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2018 have been audited by
BDO Limited (“BDQO"). The term of office of BDO will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO as

auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

ZHANG Bingnan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th March, 2019
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EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
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111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
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www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO.,
LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Poly Property Group Co., Limited and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 116 to 357,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31st December, 2018, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31st December, 2018 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’'s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

BRANBXEMAERQ A LRR

(REEZMAK A H R E])

=z
=

AT (ATHEZKRBRIINE6ES
IVERMNEXEEERATALEKNEB R R (5
MIEEE]) ZHEAMBHREK  BEFRAMBER
REBERZZE-N\E+T_A=+—HAZ&KEaH
BMAREBEZBLFEZEABRAR &
EEElER GERESEIRNEARTR
BR URBEEHMBHRRME(BRIZEHK
RBEE)

KITRR ZEEEWBHRRERBEFT LG
Mo ((BEGFMAG])EM2EEYBER
SEA(BEMBHRSERNDEEM A PR
R BEEER_ZT-N\F+-_A=1+—BZ&K
EMBRRARBEZALFEZGAPBRR
MEERERE CERBREBFBRAKIZAR
8o

RREE

ATEREBEELSFAMASRM IELERE
Al([BEFEEDETER ATREZSE
ERMEEHAR A RS (ZBMELEE Y
BHEZEME] 8 - REBFB SRS EM
ZIgxestaERs AR RITE L
R BERE BEREBZTAETHEMEREE-
AIRBAMEEZIBRARATHERREHRST
DEE KR

105



106

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
AR Gl S
For the year ended 31st December, 2018

P E—\F = A=1T—HIEFE

=3

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in
professional judgment, were of most significance in
audit of the consolidated financial

our
our
statements for the

current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our

audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

(i)

Revenue recognition from sales of
properties

The Group recognised revenue arising from sales of
properties of HK$21,207,257,000 for the year ended
31st December, 2018.

Revenue is one of the key performance indicators of
the Group which gives rise to an inherent risk that
revenue could be recorded in the incorrect period or
subject to manipulation.

Sales of properties are recognised as revenue at the
point in time when the buyer obtains the control of
the completed property. Determination of this point
the
arrangements for a sale, the laws in the relevant

in time is dependent on contractual

jurisdiction and may require management judgement.

Refer to note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages 207

to 216.
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Our response:

Our procedures involved sampling revenue
transactions for the sales of properties and
specifically included:

o Obtaining evidence regarding the transfer of
substantial risks and rewards of ownership
(including, where relevant, completion
certificates, occupation permits and acceptance
letters);

o Reading the signed sales and purchase
agreements to identify contractual
arrangements;

o Reconciling the amounts from the ledger and

agreeing the corresponding contracted terms to

the signed sales and purchase agreements; and
o agreeing the deposits, final payments or
mortgage receipts to bank statements.

Valuation of investment properties
Management has estimated the fair value of the
Group's investment properties to be
HK$12,571,809,000 at 31st December, 2018, with a
revaluation gain for the year ended 31st December,
2018 recorded in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of HK$278,932,000.

Estimations of fair value are dependent on certain
key assumptions and unobservable inputs that require
significant management judgement, including
capitalisation rates and market transaction prices for

comparable properties.
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Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in fair value of
the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. As a result, the financial performance can be
greatly affected by the assumptions and
unobservable inputs.

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on page 167.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of investment properties included:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of independent external valuers;

J Obtaining external valuation reports and
meeting with external valuers to understand the
results of their work. We assessed and
challenged the valuation methodologies used
and the appropriateness of the significant
assumptions, including market transaction prices
for comparable properties and capitalisation
rates. We benchmarked these assumptions to
relevant market evidence including specific
property sales and other external data; and

° Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used as supporting
evidence.

The significant inputs have been appropriately
disclosed in note 16.
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(iii) Impairment of properties under

development and held for sale

The net carrying amount of the Group’'s properties
under development and held for sale as at 31st
December, 2018 was HK$81,083,528,000. Impairment
loss of HK$10,909,000 was recognised for the year
ended 31st December, 2018.

Estimations of net realisable value of the Group’s
properties under development and held for sale are
dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgement, including current
schedules of the projects, construction progress by
contractors, estimated costs to completion, intended
use and management’'s expectation on future
property market.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in change in net realisable
value of the Group’s properties under development
and held for sale and the corresponding adjustments
to the impairment recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. As a result, the financial
performance can be greatly affected by the
assumptions.

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on page 172.
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Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’'s
assessments of the net
properties under developments and held for sales

realisable value of the
included:
o Assessing the valuation methodologies used;

o Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions, specifically including future market
value, estimated costs to completion, intended
use and current market environment, based on
our knowledge of the Group’s business and

property industry; and

o Reconciling, on a sample basis, the input data
used as supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets of the projects and most recent
transaction prices of comparable properties in
the their
reasonableness.

market, and considering

We also assessed the recoverable amount of properties we
deemed at high risk of impairment by reviewing
independent publicly available information, such as
property industry reports for potential impairment triggers.
Where the market environment or estimated costs to
completion changed significantly, we challenged
management as to whether this indicated impairment had

occurred.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial

statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in
this regard.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

ATRBESBHEAETERNTHERNRE
EEREEME CRAERARPREEY
BEERAEE o AT -

Bl R A AR S MR B B SER RR P
BMBEBRKRERMAR  FHEZERRRKS
RHITEZRET - %?ﬁiﬁm B E Az
BEBNTHERIREER - REFFIEw
Aﬁ%tx%ﬁxﬁ%%ﬁ‘ﬁgﬁﬁ
M EBAEES  REBHRHAMARE
REBEBM AR L REE IR RPIRE
ARERMHEARE S -

THERZABONEES - URFRE
MEZEF BYFEEY ESEAR
EHAMELTERER -

K/‘

HEFA e BRRRERE
SHEENMBRARESSAE -

o
cRb

BREFHANFERERERNGHE
%Eﬁm YRR EEERNEZERE - &
EELCRENRE EXERBELEEND
EHSBEREERTEERE - B ARTT
RRAEBATEEREE - AIAEZ A H
TPRFIBAREMBRRABEER K
B MmiWEHERETE  BIABIIATT
MER A TTHERENBE B ®RE
HHIMERNBRZERE - AM - KRREMH
EZ‘EJ/RTHb )@Z Em.?ﬁﬂﬁﬁ:ﬁt%«

B -

113



114

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
AR - GlE s

For the year ended 31st December, 2018

B2 —FE—\F1=A=1—HIFE

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and

content of the consolidated financial statements,
the

represent the

including the disclosures, and whether

consolidated financial statements
underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial
responsible for the direction,
performance of the group audit. We remain solely

statements. We are

supervision and
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings,
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

including any
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Amy Yau Shuk Yuen

Practising Certificate No. P06095

Hong Kong
29th March, 2019
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Increase in fair value of investment
properties

Increase in fair value of
financial assets

Other gains, net

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Gain on step-up acquisition of
a subsidiary

Impairment loss on properties under

development and held for sale
Other operating expenses
Finance costs
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before income tax expense
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
(expressed in HK cents)
— Basic

— Diluted

WA
5 & P AN

el
BREWMEZAFE
3# 0
CHMEEZAFE
3 N

H i A F 5
HEMX

THRAX
WE—HBARZ
W 25
BRPRBIELEMEZ
B 5 18

Hi& @M%

B & B AN
DREEE DN EEE
DAL EESE

B P 15 % 7 < A )t )
P 15 B 7 X

FREF
ToI RS

ARAEEA
TR B

FRR A7
(BAEALZIR)
— &R

— &g

Notes

B

16

52

10

14

15

2018 2017
—®-NE  ZB—t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR THT
23,233,644 31,703,042
(14,715,439) (25,162,217)
8,518,205 6,540,825
278,932 66,329
14,389 —
349,184 994,129
(693,000) (1,009,851)
(1,606,298) (1,405,405)
— 848,352
(10,909) —
(346,418) (371,317)
(1,275,566) (961,878)
(53,954) (10,083)
250,369 198,088
5,424,934 4,889,189
(2,823,486) (2,322,549)
2,601,448 2,566,640
2,241,590 2,462,061
359,858 104,579
2,601,448 2,566,640
61.22 67.24
61.22 67.24
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Profit for the year FRRF 2,601,448 2,566,640
Other comprehensive income H b 2 @ i A
Items that may be reclassified HErfpe EF S HE R
subsequently to profit or loss: #IEA -
Exchange differences arising on BINEE 2 PR BRE
translation of financial statements EEZEREZR
of foreign operations (908,196) 1,354,507
Change in fair value of available-for- At HEKRE 2 A FE
sale investments = — 14,895
(908,196) 1,369,402
Items that will not be reclassified TEEFAEZ B
to profit or loss: HE
Surplus arising on revaluation of Y % B 4 B &R
properties 547,454 44,548
Other comprehensive income BT En ez Htt2 |
before income tax effect LON (360,742) 1,413,950
Deferred tax liability arising on VB GEE CRERIE
revaluation of properties B8E (136,863) (11,137)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREMZ2E (EBE)
for the year, net of tax WA - HIBRHIE (497,605) 1,402,813
Total comprehensive income FR2EBAEE
for the year 2,103,843 3,969,453
Attributable to: T35 A -
Owners of the Company ZN/NECIEZ N 1,831,558 3,530,535
Non-controlling interests FE12 e A 272,285 438,918
2,103,843 3,969,453
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Non-current assets

Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
— non-current portion
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Available-for-sale investments

Loan receivables

Deposits paid for acquisition of land

use rights

Deposits paid for acquisition of

subsidiaries
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Properties under development
Properties held for sale

Other inventories
Contract costs

Trade and other receivables
Prepaid lease payments

— current portion

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from joint ventures

Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Taxation recoverable

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances, deposits and cash

Total current assets

ERBEE

BREME

ME - BB REE
BNESEHIA

— RSN
N RN Pl
ReaghRrzEn
BAFEFAERZ
EREE
AHHERE

& W & X

YehE L8 MAED
B
WK E AR SN
ok
EEHRBAEE

FRBEERR

RBEE

BRTME
RIELEME
HibFE

BHRIKA

FE W 5 B H Al R R
BNEERA

— mBED

& W B & » B BROR
e & EDRERA
& W I /B8 1 B FEHE AR
B RR A

A Y5 = 75 8
SHEMBITER
RITHEF - X
kBEE

MEBE E R

Notes

B

16
17

18
19
20

21
28
27(a)

22

23
41

24
24
25(a)
25(b)
26

18
19
20
32

33(a)

33(a)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TAETT
12,571,809 10,904,879
3,878,612 1,890,842
372,363 325,385
264,576 298,155
7,773,395 3,956,952
426,941 —

— 325,839

216,021 112,583
1,921,839 1,643,905
— 238,095

327,848 319,150
27,753,404 20,015,785
52,885,536 53,631,353
28,197,992 21,608,481
46,478 54,057
465,069 —
5,151,482 4,776,797
11,995 10,175
1,228,259 757,418
3,015,072 4,141,267
862,587 939,600
1,691,067 1,592,664
4,201,597 329,237
23,152,884 20,921,650
120,910,018 108,762,699




Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

Pre-sale deposits

Property rental deposits

Amounts due to joint ventures

Amount due to the ultimate
holding company

Amount due to an intermediate
holding company

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Taxation payable
Notes payable
Bank and other borrowings
— due within one year

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves attributable
to owners of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Notes
Bt 5
nREAE
FERTE 5 K B fib iR 3K 34
ERNEE 37
BERE
MERSIZS
JEfS & & 1k 5 KIE 20
FES B 4 12 IR A R 5RIE
29

FES — AR EE R A A
KIE 30
BRNRAENBARRIE 37
AN ENGIE 22800

B% A 32
&S B 1R

BN R 36
ROEREMEE

— —FRNEIH 35

mEBEEAR

RBEEFME

REERRBRE

RRATERABEEERR

f#

L@ 38
ff 1

FATNEEANEMN
B 1
FERES

IR

FNEFREEAR AR

- N\FFR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
19,694,131 15,552,504
31,110,373 —
—_ 25,906,757

122,336 126,151
3,518,574 2,258,285
52,571 411,592
3,209 21,034
1,377 587,869
2,395,404 2,529,004
2,282,487 2,009,346
— 3,900,000
13,840,294 15,835,437
73,020,756 69,137,979
47,889,262 39,624,720
75,642,666 59,640,505
17,685,677 17,685,677
12,203,418 10,610,687
29,889,095 28,296,364
2,670,318 2,520,217
32,559,413 30,816,581
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2018 2017
—E-N\%F T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHT FET
Non-current liabilities ERBERE

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
— due after one year — —F1&RIH 35 36,460,925 27,089,799
Notes payable FEF R 1% 36 4,704,598 —
Loan from a fellow subsidiary —EHRRMNBATEZR 40 206,897 214,286
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 41 1,710,833 1,519,839
Total non-current liabilities EmBEERRE 43,083,253 28,823,924
75,642,666 59,640,505

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of R-ZE-AF=ZA-_+HLAKHEEIHER

Directors on 29th March, 2019. BRE T -
ZHANG BINGNAN WANG JIAN
RIAE B
Chairman Managing Director

E1 BEERKE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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P E—\F = A=1T—HIEFE

=3

Notes:

(iii)

Statutory reserves are reserves required by the relevant laws in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and are applicable to the
Group's PRC subsidiaries.

Included in other capital reserve at 31st December, 2018 is deemed
capital contribution arising on acquisition of subsidiaries of
HK$238,162,000 (2017: HK$244,221,000) and deemed capital
contribution arising from interest-free loans provided by a fellow
subsidiary of HK$62,678,000 (2017: HK$62,678,000).

Other reserve represents the difference between the fair value of
consideration paid and payable and the carrying amount of net
assets attributable to the changes in ownership in the subsidiaries
being acquired or disposed from non-controlling interests without

change of control.

#isE -

(0]

(iii)

EFERETREARKFE (T4 B ) A8 RE B AT E
BERNASEZHEMNERRRE -

RZE—N\F+—A=+—H8 HtELXZEERER
YEUFE [T /B8 A | B = A& ) & 2238,162,000/8 0 (= F
— -t : 244,221,000% 7T) K BB — & R R i 8 A & =2
HRIETRGT RERAE £ 2 H & 262,678,000% 7T (=
T — 4 : 62,678,000/8 7T) °

HitpfE BRI RENKER T EEE TR EE
ZBERTRIFZEREEBAXBE ZNB QR ERE
BYRE2FEERMEME ZHNERE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=AN A2 B
%mpqiﬁiﬁwaEEE
For the year ended 31st December, 2018
B2 T \FF+A=1—HIFEZ

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax expense

Adjustments for:
Bank interest income
Interest income from loans to joint ventures

Interest income from loan to an associate
Interest income from non-controlling interests

Dividend income from investments in
securities

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Finance costs

Impairment loss on properties under
development and held for sale

Impairment loss on trade and other
receivables

Increase in fair value of investment properties

Increase in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of investment properties

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on step-up acquisition of a subsidiary

Share of results of associates

Share of results of joint ventures

Increase in capitalisation of incremental
commission according to HKFRS 15

Operating profit before working capital
changes

RELEEDNRERE
BB {5 DR X AT A

A TEE fFHEE:
RITMEBA
ERTRERRERRL

M B A

ERT-HBERAERL

M B WA
ERTHERESEFTRL

M B WA
BERRERERA

BHENEESR
VER:GE
fE
AR
ERPUBELENEL
MEEE
WE S REMERLZ
REEE
REMEZ RFEEM
BAYESAREZ SR
BEEZAYEEM
HEREME 2 WE
HENE BERREZ
ER
RE-HEMBELE K
DIEBERRRE
NERELERE
REFEHHRELF5
FEMAS 2 EXLEM

EEESHBAKERT

Notes

P &

17
10
24

16

52

—T— \FFER

2018 2017
—2-N\F =
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
5,424,934 4,889,189
(152,126) (139,128)
(119,413) (186,774)
(69,095) (6,844)
(19,513) (17,170)
(7,665) (6,323)
10,764 10,160
138,205 124,950
1,275,566 961,878
10,909 —
3,105 —
(278,932) (66,329)
(14,389) —
(3,822) (5,326)
15,667 10,343

— (848,352)

53,954 10,083
(250,369) (198,088)
(153,302) —
5,864,478 4,532,269




124

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

CONBSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A A B
meReRER
For the year ended 31st December, 2018
2 E— ) \F+—A=+—HIFE

Increase in deposits paid for acquisition
of land use rights
(Increase)/decrease in properties under
development and held for sale
Decrease in other inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables

Increase/(decrease) in pre-sale deposits and
contract liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in property rental deposits

Cash generated from operations
PRC income taxes paid
Interest paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of investment properties

Investments in joint ventures

Disposal of joint ventures

Acquisition of joint ventures

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash
acquired

Acquisition of additional interests in a
subsidiary

Acquisition of associates

Net cash outflows arising on de-registration of
a subsidiary

Partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary
without loss of control

Increase in loan receivables

(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits

Bank interest income received

Interest income received from loans to
joint ventures

Interest income received from loan to an
associate

Interest income received from loan to
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

BB EREND NS
2 m
RRTREFELENE
(Em /B
Rt R D
ERE S REMER(EMD,/
B
BNESREMER
pil
BERERANERERN/
(R 4)
mEBERSEM/ (A

BEHERE
BN EREH
ERHE

EEEDFEREFH

REREEZHNEERE
BEME  BELK
BERENZ
RAEEEIRE
HERELR
YEaELE
WEHBAR - MRERE

ke
SEEMBARER

WK A

—FINBAREHEER
PELZRERLIFE

HE—RME AR B &M
BRERHE

W ETE N

EEMRITER

(&) /Rb
BEMERITHIEMA
EXNTRELE

BRZ EWABHA
BT -RABELRERL

WA BBA
ERTHBRRIERRER

BRZEYHEHRA

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i THER TEX
22 (334,621) —
(8,661,677) 7,207,901

5,715 91,954

(561,778) 308,016

3,781,850 1,002,684
5,947,209 (1,348,090)
279 (6,979)

6,041,455 11,787,755
(2,606,353) (1,729,836)
(3,059,816) (2,675,004)

375,286 7,382,915
17 (123,484) (32,309)
16 - (2,018)
(22,989) (63,823)

5,892 —

(10,690) —

52 (3,749,739) (2,015,407)
(165,070) (120,064)

(30,037) (47,618)

(5,386) —

(3) —

(103,438) (112,583)

(3,872,360) 456,068

9 152,126 139,128
9 119,413 186,774
9 69,095 6,844
19,513 17,170
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2018 2017
—E2-N\%¥ —T—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THER FTET
Dividend income received from investments  EREAREREMA
in securities 9 7,665 6,323
Dividend income received from BR—FEEEREREMA
a joint venture 31,414 31,407
Repayments from/(advance to) joint ventures ~AEMEEN/ (BHTFAE
&%) 1,031,689 (1,028,416)
Repayments from/(advance to) non-controlling B RIZHERERER/
shareholders of subsidiaries (BFRTHE R RIEER
BR) 44,613 (367,423)
Advance to associates Eb il LN (496,959) (718,134)
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMEMETE
properties 15,321 20,069
Deposits refunded for acquisition of RENBRBARZ RS
subsidiaries 238,095 —
Net cash used in investing REZDFARERE
activities (6,845,319) (3,644,012)
Cash flows from financing activities REMETDNRERE
Borrowings raised NEEE 27,806,144 17,130,554
Notes payable raised NEENER 4,704,598 —
Repayments of borrowings EEER (19,141,926) (20,090,456)
Capital contribution by non-controlling iEENGIE 2
shareholders of subsidiaries PR & 31,207 7,935
(Repayments to)/advances from fellow (BRTRERBAR),/
subsidiaries B0 PNCEE (566,221) 577
(Repayments to)/advances from non- =5 Gilli)- NGB 22313
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries BRR) /HBRREER
RER B (94,192) 163,778
Repayments of notes payable EREENER (3,900,000) —
Repayment to ultimate holding company BRTREERA T (344,828) (12,719)
Repayments to an intermediate holding ERT AP REER
company UNE]| (17,100) (518,586)
Advances from joint ventures BELERH 1,338,161 1,545,491
Dividends paid to owners of ENARAERAN
the Company @) 49 (494,308) —
Dividends paid to non-controlling B0 B 2 A FE R R AR R 8

shareholders of subsidiaries fx & (79,429) (59,814)
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Notes
k=3

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing BMEEE 5,/ (FTH)B&
activities B
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents HEREFHRSHMNFE

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ENzBeRERASE
of the year

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash EZZHUHBEERER

and cash equivalents Revg
Cash and cash equivalents at end ERvBEERERRESE
of the year

Represented by bank balances, deposits and #7147  FREES
cash

2018 2017
—E-N\f e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL
9,242,106 (1,833,240) -
2,772,073 1,905,663
20,921,650 17,581,484
(540,839) 1,434,503
23,152,884 20,921,650
23,152,884 20,921,650
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018
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GENERAL

Poly Property Group Co., Limited (“the Company”) is
a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section of the annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are engaged in
property development, property investment and
hotel
services, manufacturing and sales of digital discs and

management, operations and its related
others. The principal activities and other principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 50.

The directors consider the Company's immediate
holding company is Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited (“Poly Holdings”), a company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The ultimate holding company is China
Poly Group Corporation Limited (“China Poly”), a
state-owned enterprise established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). China Poly and its
affiliated companies, other than members of the
Group, are hereinafter collectively referred to as
China Poly Group.

—REHR

RMNEXEBERLQR(ARAE]) HER
ABEMRILZ ARERAR  ERONES
BBMERZMARAR ([BRFT]) L e
ARAGEMPEE AU N = B E R
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ARRRREZERRR - EWEB AR (5
BMIAEEDEEVERER DERER
BIE - BELEREABRY  HEMHE
ERBRELEMIAR - TBXHREAD
T 2B AR BN FES0

EEARARAZEEERRAR /R
(FBE)EBEERAB (RMZER]) &2
AR—MEFBEMAL L AE - HEE
BARRTFERNEEAERAR ([HEF
M) ZARR—RARFEARENE
(B RIzBEBLE - BRAKEZK
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HESTERNER -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018
B2 —FE—\F1=A=1—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1st January, 2018

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1,

to HKFRSs 2014-

2016 Cycle

First-time adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKAS 28,

to HKFRSs 2014-

2016 Cycle
Amendments to

HKFRS 2
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC) 22

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment
Transactions

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

Transfers of Investment
Property

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

2.

4 ¥ H

[ = B P 5%

EMERMBREERN TS

& Bt %5 ) I 1)

(a) BRANFTE] RRAER] BB B
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“E-NEE-F ERMBREEN
—RERBN FIRERES
BEMBRE  EEMBREEA
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“Z-NEE_F
—~NFRBK
BRI RE
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BB w2l
F25% (BT A)

ENCEIE e
F9%

BB w2l
S5155%

BAEM KRS E]
£15% ((BF] &)

L B
ENACTIES

BR G EAIE285%
RBERARAE
RAIZRE (EF]
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AR AR A B 2 1 3R
RN N BNETE

KEREPAKZIWA

KEEFAHZEA
(BEAMBREE
LUESN LY i)

BERRANE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1st January, 2018
(Continued)

The Group has assessed the impact of the
adoption of these new and amended standards
that are effective for the first time. The Group
had to change its accounting policies and made
adjustments as a result of adoption of the
following standards:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

The impact of the adoption of these standards
and the new accounting policies are disclosed
in note 2(c). The other standards, amendments
and interpretation did not have any material
impact on the Group’s accounting policies and
did not require retrospective adjustments.

RABXEEBER AR
—T— )\ FF3f

2. EMERMBBREEN(E
BUBHREER]AE)

(a)
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BE—F—)\F+-A=+—AUFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially

relevant to the Group’s financial statements,

have been issued, but are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group. The
Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 9
HK(IFRIC) 23

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle

Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle

Leases’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments'

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
Business Combinations’

Amendments to HKFRS 11,
Joint Arrangements'

2. EMERMBREEN(E
BYBHEEEL ] E)

(b)

© 58 5 {8 1= 7R £ 2889 F
A RESTERMBERE
% Al

T E B 18 R ERMFET 1S
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RERH - AEEAMBRERA
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Eo% (BFIA) HE

EEEBRTBHRE MEHEEZ
2EZE®) T E
$235

BBESFERESE REELRAIREE
(BETA) tEZRBED

“E-hFZE-F BAEUBHRSEL
—tFEHM EIREBAH
BBMBREER  (BFAR)
ERENE

“T-RFE-F FHENBREEL
—tFRGH BNREELH
ERUBHREER  (BFIA)
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

(Continued)
Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle
Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 12,
Income Taxes'

Amendments to HKAS 23,
Borrowing Costs'

Insurance Contracts?

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2021.

The amendments were originally intended to be

effective for periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2017. The effective date has now been

deferred/removed.

Early application of the

amendments continue to be permitted.

2. RMBERMBHREER
BUBHREER]AE)

(b)
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS
interpretations,

17 Leases and related

introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with
a term of more 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
HKFRS 16, a

recognise a right-of-use asset representing its

under lessee is required to
right to use the underlying leased asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of
use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease
liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of
cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend the lease, or to exercise an
option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for leases that are classified
as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and
to account for those two types of leases
differently.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 —
Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable
financial assets with negative compensation can
be measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income if
specified conditions are met — instead of at fair
value through profit or loss.

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR
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(b)

© 58 7 18 [sf R £ R A9 3
Al RBREBTEBMBRE
28 (48)
BRMBHREERF165
— HE (#|)

B BRI R R 163 N A
AMEHBRERNA T EBRS
R ETHR A ER o e
BANBREESBACEEEE
A A E 1D BRI L

BHE -

&R M ®E %R ER
(BRI A) — T RBEN
B RE
RIETABBETA BT
B 5 A T T S B B TR
BHRALRATFES DAL
2EBA - MERAFEF AR

HE -

133



134

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A7 £ KN
iR e R Rk M
For the year ended 31st December, 2018
B2 —F—)\F+-A=1+—HIFEF

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over
Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance
over how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall
determine whether to consider each uncertain
tax treatment separately or together based on
which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the
tax authority will examine amounts that it has a
right to examine and have full knowledge of all
related information when making those
examinations. If the entity determines it is
probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its
tax filings. If the entity determines it is not
probable, then the uncertainty in the
determination of tax is reflected using either
the “most likely amount” or the "“expected
value” approach, whichever better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies
to long-term interests (“LTI"”) in associates or
joint ventures which form part of the net
investment in the associates or joint ventures
and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied to these
LTI before the impairment losses guidance
within HKAS 28.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle — Amendments to
HKFRS 3, Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 3
which clarifies that when a joint operator of a
business obtains control over a joint operation,
this is a business combination achieved in
stages and the previously held equity interest
should therefore be remeasured to its

acquisition date fair value.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle — Amendments to
HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 11
which clarify that when a party that participates
in, but does not have joint control of, a joint
operation which is a business and subsequently
obtains joint control of the joint operation, the
previously held equity interest should not be
remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle — Amendments to
HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 12
which clarify that all income tax consequences
of dividends are recognised consistently with
the that the
distributable profits, either in profit or loss,

transactions generated

other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle — Amendments to
HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 23
which clarifies that a borrowing made
specifically to obtain a qualifying asset which
remains outstanding after the related qualifying
asset is ready for its intended use or sale would
become part of the funds an entity borrows
generally and therefore included in the general
pool.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or
losses to be recognised when an entity sells or
contributes assets to its associate or joint
venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets
that do not constitute a business the gain or
loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint
venture or associate.

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of adopting the
above standards and amendments to existing
standards to the Group. The Group is not yet in
a position to state whether these new
pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
This note explains the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers on the

Group's financial statements.

(i)

Impact on the financial
statements

As a result of the changes in the entity’s
prior year financial
restated. As
explained below, the Group adopted
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 without restating
comparative

accounting policies,
statements had to be

information in accordance
with the transitional provisions of these
standards. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new
accounting policies are therefore not
reflected in consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st December,
2017, but are recognised in the opening
of consolidated statement of financial

position on 1st January, 2018.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. BB BYBHRELEAN(E
FINANCIAL REPORTING BYBHEEED ] E)
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EFtBEEH (&)
(Continued)
(i) Impact on the financial (i) HEKEHFRK
statements (Continued) (&)
The following tables show the adjustments TRITHREEFBEBERZ
recognised for each individual line item. AE UEFANKEHTE
Line items that were not affected by the ZIER o Et - TEEUAPT R H
changes have not been included. As a ZHFEFABEEZ N RE
result, the subtotals and totals disclosed it e
cannot be recalculated from the numbers
provided.
31st 1st January,
December, 2018
2017 HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 Restated
—EB-tfF

+=A ERUBEE FREUBEE —F-0\F
=t+-H EAFY  ERFSHE —-A-HEF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FiET TEL FTET
Consolidated statement of financial A& HEMRRK (HE)
position (extract)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Financial assets at fair value BRATEGFABREZ
through profit or loss SREE — 423,290 — 423,290
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 325,839 (325,839) — —
Current assets RBEE
Contract costs BHKA — — 316,789 316,789
Total assets BEMAE 128,778,484 97,451 316,789 129,192,724
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 1,519,839 — 62,262 1,582,101
Current liabilities RBAaE
Contract liabilities aMam — — 25,906,757 25,906,757
Pre-sale deposits BERE 25,906,757 — (25,906,757) —
Total liabilities AEAE 97,961,903 — 62,262 98,024,165
Net assets EERE 30,816,581 97,451 254,527 31,168,559
Reserves i 10,610,687 97,451 238,045 10,946,183
Non-controlling interests FERE R 2,520,217 — 16,482 2,536,699

Total equity RELE 30,816,581 97,451 254,527 31,168,559




2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(ii)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— Impact of adoption

Classification and
measurements

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS
39 that
classification and measurement of financial

relate to the recognition,

assets and financial liabilities,

derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge

accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
2018
resulted in changes in accounting policies

Instruments from 1st January,

and adjustments to the amounts
recognised in the financial statements. The
new accounting policies are set out in
note 2(c)(iii) below. In accordance with the
HKFRS 9,

have not been

transitional provisions in
comparative figures

restated.

On 1st January, 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9),
management has classified its financial

the Group's

instruments at fair value through profit or
loss.

2.
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BYBHEEED ] E)
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING

2. HRWMEBERMBR
BB RS A

Iff
i

~—

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

— Impact of adoption

(Continued)

Classification and measurements

(Continued)

In summary, the following adjustments
were made to the amounts recognised in
the opening of consolidated statement of

financial position on 1st January, 2018:

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Available-for-sale investments
Reserves

BAVEFARS

MEeEREE
HEENRE
e

(c) BfERERE2H (E)

(&)

(i) BEBMKEREEDFE9
HREMIAE — Rz

Fa8(E)

ZHABNBE

AT -_FT—N\F—
Nz a T BERRNKIER S

DENFEE)

A—HBH

HKAS 39
carrying HKFRS 9
amount carrying
at 31st amount at
December, 1st January,
2017  Reclassification Remeasurement 2018
R-B-t& R-B-N\§
t+=ZA=+- —-B—H
BREEES BREERHE
STERI#39% BEERIEIS
ZEHE ENNE EfGtE ZEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAET TAET FAET
— 325,839 97,451 423,290
325,839 (325,839) — —
10,610,687 — 97,451 10,708,138




2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— Impact of adoption
(Continued)

Classification and measurements
(Continued)

The amount by each financial statements
line items of the Group affected in the
current year and year to date by the
application of HKAS 39 that were
previously in effect before the adoption of
HKFRS 9 is as follows:

Consolidated statement of FEMBMRRE (FiR)
financial position (extract)

Financial assets at fair value through %A ¥ (B85 A Bz A
profit or loss TREE

Available-for-sale investments i E R R E

Reserves i

RABXEEBER AR
—T— )\ FF3f

EMERMBREERN(TE

i3

(c)

B35 R & B |) (48)

B ERKX28 (&)

(i) BEMBHREEAE
REMTIRE — R

2 16-)
DR EFHE(E)

AEBAERFRESZEY
BHEABEBNSRANRAE
7B B 7% 3R & E Bl S5 95% A £ 2
Z BB G ERIFI95 M X 2
ZREMT

As at 31st December, 2018
R-ZE-NFE+ZA=+—H

Amounts

without the Effects of the

adoption of adoption of Amounts as
HKFRS 9 HKFRS 9 reported

ARABEY RRTBUEK

BHREER BEER
FORZER FIRMNTE B3+
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TRT TER TER

— 426,941 426,941

289,650 (289,650) —
12,066,127 137,291 12,203,418
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. B BEBUBBREERN(SE
FINANCIAL REPORTING B EHREER](E)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EFtBEEH (&)
(Continued)
(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (i) BERMBEREZERE9
— Impact of adoption REMTR — R
(Continued) EeE(E)
Classification and measurements DEREE(E)

(Continued)

Year ended 31st December, 2018
BE-2-N\Ff+-A=+-HLHFE
Amounts Effects
without the of the
adoption of adoption of Amounts as
HKFRS 9 HKFRS 9 reported
BB EER WEER
FH e FIORMFTE EX k4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER

Consolidated statement of profit or RABHEK (FE)

loss (extract)
Change in fair value of financial SREELATEED

assets - 14,389 14,389
Profit attributable to owners of KARHEE AEGRH

the Company 2,227,201 14,389 2,241,590




2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— Impact of adoption
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
The cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits, loan receivables, trade and
other receivables are subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, and
the identifiable impairment loss was
immaterial.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— Accounting policies applied
from 1st January, 2018

Investments and other financial
assets

Classification
From 1st January, 2018, the Group
classifies its financial assets in the

following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through
profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised
cost.

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

2. RMBBMBBRELEAN(E
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(c)
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(iii)
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(iii) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— Accounting policies applied
from 1st January, 2018
(Continued)

Investments and other financial
assets (Continued)

Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income

(OCI). For

instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for
equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The
Group reclassified debt investments when
and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

investments

2.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(iii) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— Accounting policies applied
from 1st January, 2018
(Continued)

Investments and other financial
assets (Continued)
Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)
(iii) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— Accounting policies applied
from 1st January, 2018
(Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/
(losses), together with foreign
exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement
of profit or loss.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)
(iii) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— Accounting policies applied
from 1st January, 2018
(Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets,
cash flows

where the assets’

represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in
When the financial

derecognised, the

profit or loss.
asset s
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in other gains/(losses)

and
presented as separate line item in

impairment expenses are

the statement of profit or loss.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(iii) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— Accounting policies applied
from 1st January, 2018
(Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss

on a

subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss.

Equity Instruments

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on
equity investment in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

investment that

2.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)
(iii) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— Accounting policies applied
from 1st January, 2018
(Continued)

Equity Instruments (Continued)
Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognised in
statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at
financial assets at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair
value.

Impairment

From 1st January, 2018, the Group
assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

2.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

i3

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (c)

(Continued)

(iv) HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers —

Impact of adoption

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
from 1st January, 2018 which resulted in

changes

in accounting policies and

adjustments to the amounts recognised in

the financial statements.

In accordance

with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has adopted the cumulative
effect method and therefore has not
restated comparatives for the 2017

financial year. In summary, the following

adjustments were made to the amounts

recognised in the opening of consolidated

statement of financial

January, 2018:

Contract costs
Contract liabilities
Pre-sale deposits
Deferred tax liabilities

MEEBMBREEAAN(E
BHREEA](E)

BT REREH (E)
(iv) EEMBRELEASE

w%%ﬁ%ﬁA%Z
WA — Kz &
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ERAE B ERELERFS5
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BREERIEBEMAR -
$ET§§?%EM‘%#&%L%E'J%15%
P @R MR AR BIRA
REAREL AUHIEEN—
Z—tFPRFEANELRE
BeUATA=ZZT—N\F—A—

B Bi ¥ 4R & Bt 5 AR5 2= P i 3R
TR HBHME
position on 1st
HKAS 18
carrying HKFRS 15
amount carrying
at 31st amount at
December, 1st January,
2017  Reclassification Remeasurement 2018
R-ZE-t% RZB-N\F
t+ZA=+- —A—-H
ARESE BESERY
=4 REER
ERIE185 E15% 2
ZEHE ENOE EfE BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL AL FTAET
AR — — 316,789 316,789
ANEE — 25,906,757 — 25,906,757
BEES 25,906,757 (25,906,757) — —
ELEHEEE 1,519,839 — 62,262 1,582,101
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. MERUBREERN(H
FINANCIAL REPORTING BMBHREER]E)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) BtHESF (E)
(Continued)
(iv) HKFRS 15 Revenue from (iv) BB KHREERE
Contracts with Customers — 155 REBEF A%’J Z
Impact of adoption (Continued) WA — Rz &
(%)
The impact on the Group's reserves and HAEE-_Z-—N\F—-—H—H
non-controlling interests as at 1st January, iR MEERER 2 BN
2018 is as follows: T~
HK$'000
FET
Reserves and non-controlling interests RZZE—tF+A=+—H
as at 31st December, 2017 2 R M IR IR M s
Reserves & 10,610,687
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR HE 2 2,520,217
Recognition of assets for costs to obtain HtA MBS 4 FTE & 2 KA
a contract BREE 316,789
Increase in deferred tax liabilities IR IE 8 B 0 (62,262)
Adjustment to reserves from adoption of £ 435 7 B 7% 3k 2 % Al
HKFRS 15 FISHEH FHEPTIEAE 238,045
Adjustment to non-controlling interests ~ FE M E B8 7% 5 2RI 15
from adoption of HKFRS 15 5% T IF 128 AR 4 55 P VR 5 B 16,482
Reserves and non-controlling interests RZZE-N\F—RA—Bz@#HE
as at 1st January, 2018 PEREL
Reserves f& ¥ 10,848,732

Non-controlling interests FEVE IR o 2,536,699
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(iv) HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers —
Impact of adoption (Continued)

The amount by each financial statements
line items of the Group affected in the
current year and year to date by the
application of HKFRS 15 as compared to

HKAS

18 and HKAS

that were

previously in effect before the adoption of

HKFRS 15 is as follows:

Consolidated statement of
financial position (extract)

Contract costs

Contract liabilities

Pre-sale deposits

Deferred tax liabilities

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

GAMBRAR(HER)

BHIKA
aNEE
HERSE
ERHERE
fE
SRR &

RMBREMBRE

B E R

[ = B P 5%

(c) BfERERE2H (E)

~—

(iv) EEMBRELEASE

5SHERBFEFENZ
WA — Kz &
(%)

MR NER 4 & 78 B 15 i & 2 R
FISRATEMZ B A ST 2R
F18HE L F R & ERIF11
B AKRBAFERFEES
ZEVBHRERBENEEAR
FE & E I 1% W& £ RIF 155
MEF2ZEMT :

As at 31st December, 2018
RZE-NE+ZH=1+—-H

Amounts

without the Effects of the
adoption of adoption of  Amount as
HKFRS15 HKFRS15 reported

REME B RE#

BHBEED BHHEED
15 2EE B15HewE ke
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER
- 465,069 465,069
— 31,110,373 31,110,373
31,110,373 (31,110,373) —
1,616,116 94,717 1,710,833
11,883,118 320,300 12,203,418
2,620,266 50,052 2,670,318



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(iv) HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers —
Impact of adoption (Continued)

Consolidated statement of
profit or loss (extract)

Selling expenses

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

RERER(BE)

HEMZ
FasEE
R

DL
RRAEAA
SRR

& Bt 7% )

FNEZXEEAFR AR
B N\FFH

MBREER(TH

38 |)(

[ = e P %

)

(c) BtEREX2H (E)

(iv) BERMBHREEAE

ISHREEFENLZ
WA — &Rz &
(&)

Year ended 31st December, 2018
BE-Z-N\FE+-A=t-HLEE

Amounts

without the Effects of the
adoption of adoption of  Amount as
HKFRS15 HKFRS15 reported

ARARERY RBBERUE

BHEEER KEER
E5R2eE F15R2¥E 2hleH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERT
(846,302) 153,302 (693,000)
(2,791,032) (32,454)  (2,823,486)
2,480,600 120,848 2,601,448
2,154,312 87,278 2,241,590
326,288 33,570 359,858
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(iv) HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers —
Impact of adoption (Continued)

Accounting for costs to obtain a

contract

Management expects the incremental
costs, principally sale commission, as a
result of obtaining the property sale
contracts are recoverable. The Group has
capitalised the amounts and amortised
when the related revenue are recognised.
During the year ended 31st December,
2018, the Group recognised amortisation
of HK$178,751,000 and capitalised
commission fee of HK$332,053,000 which
decreased selling expenses by the same
amount, increase income tax expense by
HK$32,454,000 and increased profit after
tax by HK$120,848,000. There was no
impairment loss in relation to the costs

capitalised.

2.

AN B I W
BB RS A

I
i
i

(&)

~—

BT REREH (E)
(iv) EEMBRELEASE

15SEREEFEFEHNZ
WA —FHpzes
(&)
MERELFFEELEZ
DN Ry e
EEEEHFEAANSEME
HEANEEACZHEEMSE
MAKA T YR E - REBEEE
ANb 32 5 & 580 7F A8 B AR A T
REFETHE BHE_FT—N
F+-_A=+—HLEEE " K
& B & R £ $5178,751,0007%5
Tk EAXNERB S EH
332,053,000/ 7t © B 4 12
CRECHERSZ  EMAEH
7 $.32,454,0007% 7T & 18 Hn &
T 1% 5% 7120,848,0005% 7T ° i
LB ALK AN E £ R E
Bk



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)
(iv) HKFRS 15 Revenue from

Contracts with Customers —
Impact of adoption (Continued)

Presentation of assets and
liabilities related to contracts

with customers
The Group has also changed the
presentation of the following amount in
the consolidated statement of financial
position to reflect the terminology of

HKFRS 15:

o Contract liabilities in relation to
property
previously included in pre-sale
deposits (HK$25,906,757,000 as at
1st January, 2018)

sale contracts were

HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers —
Accounting policies
Accounting for property

development activities
In prior reporting periods, the Group
accounted for property development
activities when significant risk and rewards
of ownership has been transferred to the
customers on delivery in its entirety at a
single time upon vacant possession and
construction

not continuously as

progresses.

2. RMBERMBREE

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

I (I&

5 51 75 55 25 % B ) (4B)

(c) EFtBRESE (B)

(iv) &

(v)

EMBREERSE
15%}’%5E§§I5A%’JZ
WA — BN
(&)
2HEEF S AHEEE
ZEENRBE

5{/5

AEE T E R A ISR
RZAT 2RI HIT AR R
BRI HREZERF155 2 M0

=h .
=]

e HREAMXBEESNZA
MaE BEFARE
BeERN(RZT—N\F—
A — B %&25,906,757,000
AIL) °

ERAMBBREERNSE
15RBEFEHNZ
WA — E5THE
MMEREBEBR 22
e
EREFEEZREHE Y
EFARE 2 EZERMRHE
RENMEMEEZEERNE
s TR - NEEEY
¥HBEFHIER MIEREE
HEEEEBRETRER -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(V)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers —
Accounting policies (Continued)
Accounting for property
development activities
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, revenue are recognised
when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Depending
on the terms of the contract and laws that
apply to the contract, control of the asset
may transfer over time or at a point in
time. Control of the asset is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

° Provides all the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the
customer; or

o Creates and enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o Do not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed
to date.

2. EMERMBREEN(E
BYBHEEED ] E)

(c) BEFtBEREH (B)

(V)

BEEMBHREEDSE
ISHREBEFENZ
WA — B BEGE)
WEREXG e
SRR (&)

RIEE B W& ERFE15
5 MAEBEEERIEE
BEBEFRHHER BEZEH
BREE-—BREBANEERE K
HER - BUARE R ZHGRA
EEBANE R ZEERTE °
e A& Ewm R TR - &
EZEHEE - REREARE
%

s WMEFPEBKKIAER
PR Flat =%

s HEAKEREDORRIEM
A EYN B E P E
HEE X

s YARELAFAKEER
KAgZEE BAE
BHESETKENZ
NHRAEBRAREINTZ
R



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(V)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers —
Accounting policies (Continued)
Accounting for property
development activities
(Continued)

If control of the asset transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the

asset.

For the year ended 31st December, 2018,
the Group has assessed that there is no
enforceable right to payment from the
customers for performance completed to
date. Thus, the Group has concluded that
the adoption of HKFRS 15 did not have
material impact on the timing of revenue
recognition.

Accounting for significant

financing component

For contracts where the period between
the payment by the customer and transfer
of the promised property or service
exceeds one year, the transaction price
should be adjusted for the effects or a
financing component, if significant. The
Group has assessed that the financing
component effect was insignificant.

2. RMBERMBREE

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

A (T&

BYBHEEED ] E)

(c) EFtBRESE (B)

(v)

BEEMBREEANS
ISHREEFENZ
WA — EFBEERGE)
WEREXG S
SRR (48)

MREEZEFRE-BER
NER ZEERBEsRBHED
TERBHOEB 2 ERZETRA
R WAREFPER
BEEVR 2 ZEHER -

BT /\F+ZA=1+—
REEE AEECFHEHE
SEERELNZEF BN R
A A SR B AT 2R o Bt
AREBRERNBBNBRE
HEAIFE155E A& B A R
HRELEATE -

ERBMEKD 2
bz 32
HREF XN RBRARN %
SR 15 ¥ 1 2 P & SR B 38 —
FrAH XPEREEERE
BRI THEE (D
BX) - AEBEFEREA
RBH2HEALTEK -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(v) HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers —
Accounting policies (Continued)
Accounting for property

management

For property management services
contracts, the Group recognises revenue
equal to the right to invoice amount when
it corresponds directly with the value to
the customer of the Group’s performance
to date, on a monthly basis. The Group
has elected the practical expedient for not
to disclosure the remaining performance
obligations for these type of contracts.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the provisions of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), which concern the preparation of financial
statements. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules™”).

2. EMERMBREEN(E
BYBHEEED ] E)

(c)

BT REREH (E)

(v) BERMBREEDE
1SERBEFENZ
WA — B EEGE)
WMEEEXBZE
At B2 32
HRYEERBHEAL EB
REARE S HRAKES
SHREFZBEEERS
B AR EIRA SRR A
MERERMARREZSH -
EABBRIERE R K%
EEEETRBERSRLAH
ZRBBHEL

3. MREXE

(a)

EHREH
MBHREREREMAERT B
HEER (A REEBGTOA
S((BEEFMAR)BRHENMEA
EEERNBEM B RS EL &
e EN(EEGFTERD K2
B) BEARZEFRAUIRARY
BHRRBENEE QA G (F622
B)MBREMREL - LI MR ERE
BEEAMARZMARARESL
MARMTEMRAD R E 2 #EAH
BEEH-



3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except
for investment properties, hotel properties,
financial assets, which are measured at their fair
values or revalued amounts, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

(c) Functional and presentation
currency
The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company. These
consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars
("HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31st December, 2018 comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in
associates and joint ventures.

(a)

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

stEEE
FA T H R BOR AR - BRI A
ME - -BENEREBEERER
FEXEEEEFEIN  REWH
MRDIEELAARERRR -

DhERZINEHE

MBEBRIARRBDEEEAETZ
SleBr = BEAN RFEHREYB
HRATETES -

GERBEEREXE
BE—_Z2—N\NF+=-_A=+—81t
FENGATBRRBEAR T X
EffBRARMMIEHRERARANEE
REE NG RAEEDENEZ -

161



162

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=IAN AT X O

iR e R Rk M

For the year ended 31st December, 2018
2 E— ) \F+—A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date that control commenced or up to the
date that control ceased. When the Group loses
control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at that date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of investment in associates or joint
ventures or other investments.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interest and
the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

MEARRFERES

MBAREAAEEZERNERE-
AEBEB2EAXBEMEEXRA
BERGEANZE®H  RENERY
BERNEN P EZSFE MR
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i

XY mé
i
1)

o

’
B

FARBIHENBARZEEE
PR 2 ) B AR s 0 AR LEF2 1 B 1
L IAZEEBEER -WAKEX
EHMB AR ZESE  BIAKHE
ZMBAR 2R RS 2 AR
MAEH 2 BRARNBEARER -
AEBERKREZFEE B R %A
BorzErEZmRATE
R HEESBEREFERBERQA
FEELEZREXNEMIRE 27
FHERRNFE-

MARERMBAR ZEEZEEH T
SEYREENE  UBZXEED
FAARZER 5 - AR B r D &Ik
ERERNFESE T T AAE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with those used
by the Group.

Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity or
deficiency in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.

(b)

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

B8 2 B R IF 2 IR o
(%8
MEBE  WEBRARZHEBRIE
BEHAE EHESRRRESE
B TR A — B o

e

SERRZEAILRRRZ KA
AEARERZBEMNERREEE Y
BHRREZHHHE - REREBEDN
MEH RIERTEXHEEEER
BMEZR TEBRSTRERER-

FERREREYIFEERREERS
RARRZMB AR ERNEIE -

VYEAREEITEEHZEREZRHE
AERERNESEHRANEEERBYEZ
FRGELATEEREBERZA
MBEZHINER REREBA
s AEEAERENRFERL
FFERREREMB AR ARMNEE
FEZL P EE MR ES -
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the

consolidated statement of financial
within equity, separately from

attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement
comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the

Company. Loans from holders

controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders

presented as financial liabilities

consolidated statement of financial position.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, interests in subsidiaries are stated at

cost less impairment loss, if any.

MEARRFERES
(%)

E Al & F Y N 3
BENHERE  27RE&KEE B
MERAEZBE N AREREALZ
IR RIE A AR R B IR AR
RamEESRR BN EZFRE
MRBRAREREEKREAE 1
HAEaRREAEERERAZ
S EEBRERFBEAZERER
ZERAAREZHEMBANEER
RAEPBMARZ2INAERMAE-

EARRARZHBRRERA - HEL
AR 28 Jh iR B A EDRL 25 R (B 5 18 (10
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating

policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for
sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post-acquisition change in the Group's share of
the investee's net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment. Any acquisition-
date fair value excess over cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

BEQNREASEHEEEERA
EAFENIZER BR2ERK
NEBRR WL REH KBS E

BIEERE -

BEMRE-BEAKEREMITH
TEHHMEAZHEGERERES
BEEEERENLH-

REERBAEELRTZRERE
BEINAGAMBRE MR ZK
BN BRFHELE (LA BEAR
EREZHEARR) A SER® -
RE#ED L RENIERKAA
R U BRAKRESHERIREE AT H
FIEEFRERKBRER A FEE
BERERRNZBOEHAEMNE) -
Hig ZREBAEERBEKER
AEEFERIMEMEREREZ T
MR EBETEZWEREEE
HAE - WEBH A FEBRK
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture,
the Group’'s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest in the
associate or the joint venture is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or the
joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the
losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised

investee, except where unrealised

immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties that are
being constructed or developed for future use
as investment properties.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which
the asset is derecognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
Property,
buildings and leasehold land held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes, other than hotel

plant and equipment including

properties and construction in progress, are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional
relief provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
“Property, Plant and Equipment” from the
requirement to make regular revaluations of the
Group’s buildings which had been carried at
revalued amounts prior to 30th September,
1995, and accordingly no further revaluation of
land and buildings is carried out. Prior to 30th
September, 1995, the revaluation increase
arising on the revaluation of these assets was
credited to the revaluation reserve. Any future
decreases in value of these assets will be dealt
with as an expense to the extent that they
exceed the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of the
same asset. On the subsequent sale or

retirement of a revalued asset, the
corresponding revaluation surplus is transferred

to accumulated profits.

Hotel properties are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being their fair value at the date of
subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated

the revaluation less any
impairment losses.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at
the end of the reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of hotel properties is generally dealt
with in other comprehensive income and
accumulated as a separate component of equity
(hotel properties revaluation reserve), except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the
increase is credited to profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on the
revaluation of such buildings is dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the
balance, if any, held on the hotel properties
revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation on revalued hotel properties is
charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued hotel property,
the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in
the hotel properties revaluation reserve is
transferred directly to accumulated profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at
cost less any recognised impairment
Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is recognised in profit or loss in the year in

which the item is derecognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental
recognised in the consolidated statement of

income from operating leases is

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss using a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive
to enter into an operating lease are recognised
in profit or loss as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term using a straight-
line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of
land and building are considered separately for
the purpose of lease classification, unless the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, in
which case, the entire lease is generally treated
as a finance lease and account for as property,
plant and equipment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Properties under development
Properties under development developed for
future sale in the ordinary course of business
are included in current assets at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. It comprises the
consideration for development expenditure
(which
construction costs and capitalised interest)
directly contributable to the development of the
properties.

includes cost of land use rights,

Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

Other inventories

Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(j)

Construction contracts (accounting
policies applied until 31st
December, 2017)

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction
of an asset or a group of assets, where the
customer is able to specify the major structural
elements of the design. The accounting policy
for contract revenue is set out under “Revenue
Recognition”. Where the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity
at the end of the reporting period, as measured
by (a) the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date to the
estimated total contract costs or (b) the amount
of work certified by independent engineer with
reference to the completion of physical
proportion of contract work. Variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments
are included to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer. When it is probable
that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss s
recognised as an expense immediately. Where
the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(j)

Construction contracts (accounting
policies applied until 31st
December, 2017) (Continued)
Construction contracts in progress at the end of
the reporting period are recorded at the net
amount of costs incurred plus recognised profit
less recognised losses and progress billings, and
are presented in the statement of financial
position as the “Gross amount due from
customers for contract work” (as an asset) or
the “Gross amount due to customers for
(as a liability), as applicable.
Progress billings not yet paid by the customer
“Trade and other
Amounts received before the

contract work”
are included under
receivables”.
related work is performed are presented as
“Advances received” under “Trade and other
payables”.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits held at call
with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and

months of maturity at acquisition.

form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidation statement of cash flows.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments

Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1st January,
2018)

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

with embedded

derivatives are considered in their entirely

Financial assets
when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1st January,
2018) (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies

its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
represent solely
payments of principal and interest are

those cash flows
measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate
method.

exchange

Interest income, foreign

gains and losses and

impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain on derecognition is

recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1st January,
2018) (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI"): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for
selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at
FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair
value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate method, foreign

exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCIl. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in OCI are

reclassified to profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1st January,
2018) (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"):
Financial assets at FVPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at
FVPL,

required to be measured at fair value.

or financial assets mandatorily
Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVPL, irrespective of the
Notwithstanding the

instruments to be

business model.
debt

classified at amortised cost or at FVOCI,

criteria for

as described above, debt instruments may
FVPL on
recognition if doing so eliminates, or

be designated at initial

significantly reduces, an accounting

mismatch.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1st January,
2018) (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial
investment that is not held for trading, the

recognition of an equity

Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's
fair value in OCI. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair
value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in OCI and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1st January,
2018) (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial

assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on trade
receivables, financial
assets measured at amortised cost and
debt investments measured at FVOCI. The

ECLs are measured on either of the

contract assets,

following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these
are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that
possible default events over the expected
life of a financial

result from all

instrument. The
maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is

exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit Credit
measured as the difference between all

losses. losses are
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects
then
discounted at an approximation to the

to receive. The shortfall is

assets’ original effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1st January,
2018) (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial

assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs.

established a provision matrix that is

The Group has

based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs
ECLs.
been a

are based on the 12-months
However, when there has
significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based

on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk

of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information
analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking

information.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1st January,
2018) (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial

assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to
be credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired

amount less loss allowance)

financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying

amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at FVPL are initially measured at fair value
and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting

policies applied from 1st January,

2018) (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVPL
Financial liabilities at FVPL include
financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in profit or
loss.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
liability at FVPL, except where the
embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting

policies applied from 1st January,

2018) (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVPL
(Continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated
upon initial recognition as at FVPL if the
the
designation eliminates or significantly

following criteria are met: (i)

reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities
are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their performance

evaluated on a fair value basis,
accordance with a documented

management strategy; or (iii) the financial
liability contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately

recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for the gains
and losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in OCI
with no subsequent reclassification to the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these

financial liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1st January,
2018) (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised
cost
Financial
including trade and other
borrowings, certain preference shares and

liabilities at amortised cost
payables,

the debt element of convertible loan note
issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or

loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the amortisation

process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter

period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1st January,
2018) (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622, came into operation on 3rd
March, 2014. Under the Ordinance shares
of the Company do not have a nominal
value. Consideration received or
receivable for the issue of shares on or
after 3rd March, 2014 is credited to share
capital. Commissions and expenses are
allowed to be deducted from share capital
under S. 148 and S. 149 of the

Ordinance.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
cancelled or

contract is discharged,

expires.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial instruments (accounting

policies applied from 1st January,

2018) (Continued)

(vi) Derecognition (Continued)
Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a
financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised
initially and measured at their fair value
on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of
the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of
the financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31st
December, 2017)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively, but has elected not to restate
comparative information. Accordingly, the
comparative financial information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance
with the Group’s previous accounting policy.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31st
December, 2017) (Continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into
one of the two categories, including loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31st
December, 2017) (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other
receivables, short-term loan receivables,
amounts due from subsidiaries, associates,
fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures, non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries,
pledged bank deposits and bank balance,
deposits and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. (See accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are designated as available for
sale or not classified as loans and receivables.

At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-
sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated as a
separate component of equity (investment
revaluation reserve), until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

$RMITA(E)
ERMIBE(BE-Z—t&
+=—A=+—HBEAHANE
FTER) (B8)
ERREWKER

B 2% JE W0 BE 2 B 30 R BE BT
7 35 (8 T P 25 [ 52 ok AT 3 5 K
TS RMAE - RS HERE
GERE K BEREEKER (2
VE R MR 5 % E A BE 2K - B 0K S B
BZ ERMEAT  BAATE [
ZNBAT A%LE WEBLT
BB ERE DERBRTE
RRBITET BRERBES)EAE
B ) 2 52 0 8 98 A AR A 4T 2 3 B
REBEFE - (2HTXeREAE
REBBY 85 RE) -

ARHESHEE

A ESBEEREITEEA
75 B 3667 4 T B B 46 5E A 7T
£ 3030 1 5 4 B R R BB MO RR A o

ROTHERERZERESHR - Al
HESHMEERAFETE - 2F
BEZEPRNEMEENAERER I
Rt AR ZBYBY AIREER
) BEEZEBREERH SR
BEERERE  mERkm R RE
Rz R REHBERSERES
B IRERER(2HETXAE@ER
BMEEREBEZFHE) -

189



190

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE M HRARMT

For the year ended 31st December, 2018
B2 —F—)\F+-A=1+—HIFEF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31st
December, 2017) (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees on points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31st
December, 2017) (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have
been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation; or

o significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor.

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

SRITA(E)
tRMIBE(BE=-2—+tfF
+-A=+—HEANE
FTEER) ()
TRMEEZRE
REREHRIECHEERT
BRETR - MEEBEEERS
MEEZEHAKRESRERR Y
SHRZLMEERRTEY —BR
SHEHEMEIYE NHZER
BERDMME -

RAHEEZREREMS @ X
BREZRAFEANESIFRIEREX
Ao AR ARHEZTBEE -

BB HEMERMEEMNS
FEREA R

OREZ

s BOAIRZEFHREAY
[12Q73F 13

s  RESNFIEEREEZENBERA

T

o fEIRARAE AL KR A A Sk
BEME: &

s B -WMH KEREAERE
MBEBAREHEKFABEERN

B 488
= °

191



192

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE M HRARMT

For the year ended 31st December, 2018
B2 —F—)\F+-A=1+—HIFEF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31st
December, 2017) (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be

impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective

receivables and short-term loan

evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments of trade
receivables in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 30 to 90 days, observable
changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31st
December, 2017) (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables and loan receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable or a loan receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31st
December, 2017) (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
Group's financial liabilities are generally
classified as other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31st
December, 2017) (Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and
other payables, property rental deposits,
amounts due to subsidiaries, the ultimate
holding company, an intermediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries, non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, joint ventures, bank
and other borrowings, notes payable and loan
from a fellow subsidiary are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue cost.

Perpetual capital instruments issued by the
Group, which includes no contractual obligation
for the Group to deliver cash or another
financial asset to the holders or to exchange
financial assets or financial liabilities with the
holders under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable to the Group, are classified as
equity instruments and are initially recorded at
the proceeds received. Discretionary
distribution declared by the Group to the
holders of perpetual capital instrument is
treated as dividend.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31st

December, 2017) (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

asset,

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(m) Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefits scheme

contributions

Payments to Group’s defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
charged as expenses when employees
have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions. Payments made to
state-managed retirement benefits
schemes are dealt with as payments to
defined contribution schemes where the
Group’s obligations under the schemes are
equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(n)

(ii) Equity-settled share-based

payment transactions
The fair
determined by reference to the fair value

value of services received
of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option
reserve.

At the time when the share options are
exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share capital. When the
share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be

transferred to accumulated profits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in OCI or directly in equity,
respectively.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arises from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deducible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)
The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries, and interests in associates and joint
ventures, to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the reporting date unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are not discounted.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax
liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

o in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Income tax (Continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on

either:
° the same taxable entity; or
o different taxable entities, which, in

which

significant amounts of deferred tax

each future period in
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.

(o) Financial guarantees issued,
provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
(the
loss the holder incurs

beneficiary of the guarantee
"holder”) for a
because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial guarantees issued,
provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

(Continued)
Where the Group
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee

issues a financial

(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to
interest rate differentials, by comparing
the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such
Where

consideration is received or receivable for

information can be made.
the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable,
except for the case of the guarantee
issued by the Company to its subsidiary in
which the fair value of such guarantee is
recognised as an additional cost of
investment in a subsidiary, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial guarantees issued,
provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred
amortised in profit or loss over the term

income is

of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and
respect of that

other payables in

guarantee i.e. the amount
recognised,

amortisation.

initially

less accumulated

Contingent liabilities assumed in
business combinations
liabilities

business combination which are present

Contingent assumed in a
obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided
the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised
at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined in accordance with
(iii) below. Contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present
obligations at the date of acquisition are
disclosed in accordance with (iii) below.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial guarantees issued,
provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

(iii) Other provisions and contingent
liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other
liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Contract assets and contract

liabilities (accounting policies
applied from 1st January, 2018)
Upon entering into a contract with a customer,
the Group obtains rights to receive
consideration from the customer and assumes
performance obligations to transfer goods or
provide services to the customer. The
combination of those rights and performance
obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net
liability depending on the relationship between
the remaining rights and the performance
obligations. The contract is an asset and
recognised as contract assets if the measure of
the remaining rights exceeds the measure of the
remaining performance obligations. Conversely,
the contract is a liability and recognised as
contract liabilities if the measure of the
remaining performance obligations exceeds the
measure of the remaining rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer within
contract assets if the Group expects to recover
those costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Contract costs (accounting policies
applied from 1st January, 2018)

The Group recognises an asset from the costs
incurred to fulfil a contract when those costs
meet all of the following criteria:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or
to an anticipated contract that the entity
can specifically identify;

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources
of the entity that will be used in satisfying
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.
The asset recognised is subsequently
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic
basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to
which the cost relate. The asset is subject
to impairment review.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue Recognition

(1)

Revenue recognition
(accounting policies applied
from 1st January, 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable
for the sales of properties and services in
the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown, net of
discounts and after eliminating sales with
The Group

recognises revenue when the amount of

the Group companies.
revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.

a) Sales of properties and
construction services
Revenues are recognised when or as

of the

transferred to the

the control asset s
customer.
Depending on the terms of the
contract and the laws that apply to
the contract, control of the asset may
transfer over time or at a point in
time. Control of the asset is
transferred over time if the Group's

performance:

of the benefits
received and

o provides all
consumed
simultaneously by the
customer; or
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Revenue recognition
(accounting policies applied
from 1st January, 2018)
(Continued)

(1)

a)

Sales of properties and

construction services

(Continued)

o creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

o do not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to
date.

If control of the asset transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the
asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Revenue recognition
(accounting policies applied
from 1st January, 2018)
(Continued)

(1)

a)

Sales of properties and
construction services
(Continued)

The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the
Group's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance
obligation, by
contract costs incurred up to the end

reference to the

of reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each
contract.

For property development and sales
contract for which the control of the
property is transferred at a point in
time, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains the physical
possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group
has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is

probable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Revenue recognition
(accounting policies applied
from 1st January, 2018)
(Continued)

(1)

a)

Sales of properties and
construction services
(Continued)

In determining the transaction price,
the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the
effect of a financing component if it
is significant.

For construction services, the
Group's performance creates or
enhances an asset or work in
progress that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced,
thus the Group

performance

satisfies a
obligation and
recognises revenue over time, by
reference to completion of the
specific transaction assessed on the
basis of the actual costs incurred up
to the end of the reporting period
as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each contract.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Revenue recognition
(accounting policies applied
from 1st January, 2018)
(Continued)

(1)

b)

Revenue from sales of goods are
goods are
delivered at customers’

recognised when
premises
which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Building management service income
is recognised over the relevant
period in which the services are

rendered.

Revenue from hotel operations and
related services is recognised when
the relevant services are provided.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Revenue recognition
(accounting policies applied
from 1st January, 2018)
(Continued)

(1)

e)

Interest income from a financial asset
is recognised as it accrues on a time
basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the
receipts
through the expected life of the

estimated future cash

financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the Group’s rights
to receive payment is established.

Rental income receivable under
operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis

over the term of the relevant lease.

(r)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

(1)

Revenue recognition
(accounting policies applied
until 31st December, 2017)
Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable
and represents amounts received or
receivable from sales of properties and
goods, hotel
services provided and subsidies received

operations, investments,
or receivable, net of discounts and sales
related taxes. Provided it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, reliably,
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as

can be measured
follows:

a) Revenue arising from the sales of
properties is recognised upon the
of a sale

execution binding

agreement, the issue of an
occupation permit and a completion
the
government authorities and fulfilling
the terms of the binding

agreements, which is taken to be the

certificate by relevant

sale

point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the
property have passed to the buyer.
Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to date of
revenue recognition are included in
the statement of financial position

under pre-sale deposits.

(r)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

(II) Revenue recognition
(accounting policies applied
until 31st December, 2017)
(Continued)

b)

Revenue from sales of goods are
recognised when goods
delivered at customers’

are
premises
which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or
is after

other sales taxes and

deduction of any trade discounts.

Building management service income
is recognised over the relevant
period in which the services are
rendered.

Revenue from hotel operations and
related services is recognised when
the relevant services are provided.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Revenue recognition
(accounting policies applied
until 31st December, 2017)
(Continued)

(1)

e)

Interest income from a financial asset
is recognised as it accrues on a time
basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’'s net
carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the Group’s rights
to receive payment is established.

Rental income receivable under
operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

(r)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Revenue recognition
(accounting policies applied
until 31st December, 2017)
(Continued)

(1)

h)

When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably,
construction revenue is recognised
using the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to
(a) the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date
to estimated total contract cost or
(b) the amount of work certified by
independent engineer with reference
to the completion of physical
proportion of the contract work.
When the outcome of a construction
contract cannot be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be

recoverable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of
that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the statement of financial position
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

IHEEBRE
H&m%ﬁﬁlﬂ B =E &
TR Bz BB LT At
f%?TNhMﬂ@ AILATh RE B %
(MEBREXBZETERLBRE L
EREXSEMERZERBRE
RN EBREBEHKR  UINEIIE
ZEBBEBZMBIINE B B E A
ZIERBHIME - LHNEDER D
FEAKRZIFERERR &#*“
FYEEMZEREXEMNHRE -
ﬁvuﬂﬁﬂﬁuﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁz
FEBHEBATEEHBRE

REEEKHEARREGKRER
FEZER%@ RELHHEER
SR URFEIRZIFELR
ﬁéﬁb”&%?iZ[R%
BoerZHmEI AR HEKK
S MERERERRES ZIFER
PEHREFRBERAEEZZEA
BRON EUBR T  BEREBTE
HERSPHER -

217



218

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e R Rk M

For the year ended 31st December, 2018
2 E— ) \F+—A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

(Continued)
For the
consolidated financial statements, the assets

purposes of presenting the
and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in OCI
and accumulated as a separate component of
equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are

interrupted or completed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match them with
the related costs. Grants related to depreciable
assets are presented as a deduction from the
carrying amount of the relevant asset and are
released to income over the useful lives of the
assets. Grants related to expense items are
recognised in the same period as those
expenses are charged in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and are reported
separately as other income.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the

Group's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

(u)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)
(Continued)

(b)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
of the key
management personnel of the entity

or is a member

(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

(&)
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)
Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who May be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse of
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated net realisable value of
properties under development and held

for sale

Management reviews the net realisable value of the
Group's properties under development and held for
sale with reference to its estimated costs to
completion, intended use and current market
environment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
the assets exceeds its net realisable value.
Appropriate write-off to estimated net realisable
value is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether write-off of properties under
development and held for sale is required, the Group
takes into consideration the intended use of the
properties, the estimated costs to completion, the
current market environment, the estimated market
value of the properties and/or the present value of
future cash flows expected to receive. Write-off is
recognised based on the higher of estimated future
cash flows and estimated market value. If the market
environment/circumstances or estimated costs to
completion changes significantly, resulting in a
decrease in the net realisable value of these
properties interest, additional write-off loss may be
required. As at 31st December, 2018, the carrying
amounts of properties under development and held
for sale are HK$81,083,528,000 (2017:
HK$75,239,834,000) (net of accumulated impairment
loss of HK$335,619,000 (2017: HK$812,180,000)).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of loan

receivables and other receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration
the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31st December, 2018, the carrying
amounts of loan receivables and other receivables
are HK$216,021,000. (2017: HK$112,583,000) (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$25,121,000 (2017:
HK$25,121,000)) and HK$4,921,711,000 (2017:
HK$4,532,674,000) (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$123,548,000 (2017: HK$123,170,000)),
respectively. More details are given in notes 26 and
27.

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties were revalued as at 31st
December, 2018 based on the appraised market
value by independent professional valuer. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the estimate, the
Group considers information from current prices in an
active market for similar properties and uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties (Continued)

The fair value measurement utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

o Level 1:  Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2:  Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

. Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has
a significant effect on the fair value measurement of
the item. Transfers of items between levels are
recognised in the period they occur.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation
of the fair value include those related to current
market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, appropriate discount rates,
expected future market rents and future maintenance
costs. The carrying amount of investment properties
at 31st December, 2018 was HK$12,571,809,000
(2017: HK$10,904,879,000). More details are given in
note 16.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

PRC enterprise income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC. As
a result of the fact that certain matters relating to
the income taxes have not been confirmed by the
local tax bureau, objective estimate and judgment
based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and
other related policies are required in determining the
provision of income taxes to be made. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences will
have impact on the income tax and tax provisions in
the period in which the differences realise.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The
provision of LAT is based on management's best
estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject
to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and
payments with the tax authorities for its certain
property development projects. The final outcome
could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised over
time when the Group’s performance do not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date; otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the buyer
obtains control of the completed property. The
Group may not change or substitute the property
unit or redirect the property unit for another use due
to the contractual restrictions with the customer and
thus the property unit does not have an alternative
use to the Group. However, whether there is an
enforceable right to payment depends on the terms
of sales contract and the interpretation of the
applicable laws that apply to the contract. Such
determination requires significant judgments. The
Group has obtained legal counsel opinion regarding
the enforceability of the right to payment for sales
contracts. Management uses judgments, based on
legal counsel opinion, to classify sales contracts into
those with right to payment and those without the
right.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognises property development revenue
over time by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
at the reporting date. The progress is measured
based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance obligation, by
reference to the contract costs incurred up to the
end of reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each property unit in the
contract. The Group calculated the cost allocation
based on type of properties, gross and saleable floor
areas. Significant judgments and estimations are
required in determining the completeness of the
estimated total costs and the accuracy of progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation at the reporting date. The Group has a
standard monthly cost budgeting and estimate
completion process in which management reviews the
development progress and execution of the
performance obligations. As part of this process,
management reviews information including but not
limited to, the cost to achieve the schedule. Changes
in cost estimates in future periods can have effect on
the Group's revenue recognised. In making the above
estimations, the Group relies on past experience and
work of contractors and, if appropriate, surveyors.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to owners of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 35
and 36, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and accumulated

profits, and non-controlling interests.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total bank and
other borrowings plus notes payable less bank
balances, deposits and cash. Total capital is
calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated

statement of financial position, plus net debt.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

The gearing ratios at 31st December, 2018 and 2017

were as follows:

Total bank and other borrowings
(note 35)

Notes payable (note 36)

Less: Bank balances, deposits and
cash (note 33)

Net debt

Total equity

Total capital

Gearing ratio

RITEEMEERER

(B75£35)

P& =45 (B 7£36)
B ESRITRT TR K
B & (#17£33)

B 75 %8R

P 48 58

N

BEERAMLE

FRAEXEEAR QA

EXEBEE(E)

—T— )\ FF3f

NP \FR-F—LFE+ZA=+—

BeEEABGBLENT :

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —EFE—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHET
50,301,219 42,925,236
4,704,598 3,900,000
(23,152,884) (20,921,650)
31,852,933 25,903,586
32,559,413 30,816,581
64,412,346 56,720,167
50% 46%
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Categories of financial instruments
The following table shows the carrying amount
of financial assets and liabilities:

7. EMIEARBKERKRER

() EMTASSE
TERRIIcRMEENBENERmME :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EFE—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets EMEE
Loans and receivables B 3 K e U BR 5k
— Loan receivables — ERER 216,021 112,583
— Trade and other receivables — EWE 5 K& H b Bz X 4,896,468 4,518,586
— Amounts due from associates — J& UtHi & A 77k 18 1,228,259 757,418
— Amounts due from joint — RS ERENRIE
ventures 3,015,072 4,141,267
— Amounts due from — NG
non-controlling shareholders FE 2 IR AR PR IR
of subsidiaries 862,587 939,600
— Pledged bank deposits — BEEARITER 4,201,597 329,237
— Bank balances, deposits and — RIT4&F 7K
cash KB & 23,152,884 20,921,650
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE —_ 325,839
Financial assets at fair value EAFHEGFABERZ
through profit or loss TREE 426,941 —
Financial liabilities ok =i
Amortised costs K A
— Trade and other payables — ENESZREMEER 19,616,373 15,473,700
— Property rental deposits — MEHeRS 122,336 126,151
— Amounts due to joint — ERNEERENRE
ventures 3,518,574 2,258,285
— Amount due to the ultimate — FEff & KIER A A
holding company FIE 52,571 411,592
— Amount due to an — B — R A R
intermediate holding YNCIE S|
company 3,209 21,034
— Amounts due to fellow — ENREWNE AR
subsidiaries FRIE 1,377 587,869
— Amounts due to non- — FETB B R A FEE R
controlling shareholders of % R I8
subsidiaries 2,395,404 2,529,004
— Bank and other borrowings  — BT R EMEE 50,301,219 42,925,236
— Notes payable — BNEE 4,704,598 3,900,000
— Loan from a fellow subsidiary — — R ZKE A &
EX 206,897 214,286




7.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. cRMIARMKEEKRERE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (&)

(Continued)

BHEEREEEREREE

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies

Exposure to market risks (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency
rates, interest rates and equity security prices.
Market risk exposures are further measured by
sensitivity analysis. There has been no
significant change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk. Details of each type of
market risks are described as follows:

(i) Currency risk

The Group’s revenue are mostly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"),
however, the Group also undertakes
certain transactions denominated in
foreign currencies, hence exposures to
currency risk. In addition, the currency risk
also arises from funding to its subsidiaries
in the PRC. These loans to its subsidiaries
are normally denominated in RMB while
the sources of funding are usually
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars (“US$").

Since Hong Kong dollars is being pegged
to US$, material fluctuations in exchange
rates of Hong Kong dollars against US$
are remote.

Kﬁlﬁaﬁ%%ﬂﬁ¢ﬁﬁﬁ%
% (B & ﬂTH 2 & H At (B
1&}—”@) :ff //IL@JﬁiH
% ﬂﬂaﬁﬂﬁzﬁ R 35 & 71 a0
T ERETE RS &k -
VARE(R 0] & B S0 B e 3 45 1 ©

™ % & k2

AEB s ERETEEEEEX ﬂ”
N AE R B 5 B & & ) 2 B 15 R B
MGRER#E - FPUABRED ﬁﬁ+
EASBERH T HSRABKEE
BRitERBc AT EERE
g o REMBRRFBHMLT

(i) EHEER
AEBEZWARBDAARE
TARBDIE AW A&
B ETIANNEIIEZE TR
5 BEBMHEERR - Ut
S - B B R R T 2R 8 (7] B B
BRARHES -HKTHER
AIZER—MRUARKEIE -
& & HIR —RABTRE
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XTERRRAERDOES
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge against its
The
management manages its currency risk by

exposure to currency risk.
closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rate and consider
hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

The following table details the Group's
exposure as at 31st December, 2018 that
the currency risk arising from recognised
liabilities denominated
than the functional
currency and US$ of the entity to which

assets or in a

currency other

they relate.

Bank balances, deposits and $R{T451F -
cash

Short-term loans to il NN
subsidiaries SEEN=EN

Gross exposure arising from

}_ng/\/\/\./

recognised assets

7. &

(4

BRERE
Az

BEHREEMELZ

%
=}

BT

)

K & % [ B B B

HMERREEEERBUE
(&)
sk (&)

(i)

SERER(E)

AREHE B A Iﬂﬁ@‘iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁi
TREANEHEERERER

BETEBAT tﬂ§*$9l\ﬁ¥ET

HEPAEEEIINERR -

REH Eﬁv%ﬁﬁﬁlﬂiﬁ ﬁ%

[ B o

TRFHFIAKER=-F
+tZRA=+—HKEBNLIEEA
BUREERRETAIINZEE
JHEZ D HEREERABME
EZEERR -

NF
—’E‘?
=B

2018
—e-nf
RMB’000
ARMT 7

2017
—ET—+tF
RMB’000
ARBT T

13,863 15,194

7,615,665 7,448,665

7,629,528 7,463,859




7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
The following table
approximate change in the Group's profit
after tax and accumulated profits that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to

indicates the

which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other
The
sensitivity analysis assumes that the

risk variables remained constant.
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period,
including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the

7.

m]ﬁH

N—

E-

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

K 5% E b E R

BHEEREEERERBEE

(%)

i E ke (4E)

(i) E¥ER(E)
T 25 5 7 7 £ B 1A 3 5 B oK
FESE PN G AL Y

BHREHE  NEBERHREK
i A Je RET A 2 B4 2 g
(F“%ﬁEMHA“@%h
TE) - GURE DM T RER I
%Efmﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ$§l
R & HIRES A 3 5 5ME R
BRNERTA SEAKER
#B 2 B A FE 1 3R IR K ' WK
B ZEFANETRETH
D ERINNEESIE -

borrower.
2018 2017

ZE-\F T-tF
Increase/ Increase/
Appreciation/ (decrease) in  Appreciation/  (decrease) in
(depreciation)  profits after  (depreciation)  profits after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange  accumulated
rate profits rate profits
BB &RR BRBii& R A
HBER  REEA SHNEER  REiEH
#E/(RE) %M/ (AP) #AE/(RE) BN/ AD)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT
Renminbi ARE 5% 438,480 5% 444,277
(5%) (438,480) (5%) (444,277)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk
The Group
interest rate risk in relation to pledged

is exposed to fair value

bank deposits, fixed-rate bank and other
borrowings and notes payable (see notes
33, 35 and 36 for
deposits,

details of these
The
Group aims at keeping borrowings at

borrowings and notes).

variable rates. Currently, the Group does

not have hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate risk should the
need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on
in the
liquidity risk management section of this

financial liabilities are detailed
note. The Group's cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of HIBOR and benchmark rate
in the PRC arising from the Group’'s HKD
and RMB borrowings. Benchmark rate is
the prevailing benchmark lending interest
rate promulgated by People’s Bank of
China, being 4.35% (2017: 4.35%) per
annum (the "benchmark”).
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so
as to minimise the cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to
amounts due from (to) related parties with
variable interest rates, loan receivables,
bank balances and variable-rate bank and
other borrowings (see notes 19, 20, 27(a),
29, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 35 for details of
these balances, bank balances and

borrowings).

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments at the end of
the
prepared assuming the amount of asset

reporting period. The analysis is

and liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's profit for the
year ended 31st December, 2018 would
decrease/increase by HK$43,013,000
(2017: HK$27,793,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank and
other borrowings and bank balances.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from its investment in listed
available-for-sale investments and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.
The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. The Group's equity
price risk is mainly concentrated on listed
equity instruments quoted in the Stock
Exchange. In addition, the Group has
appointed a special team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the
risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% higher/lower:
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. SRMIBERMBRERBRER
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management (b) BIKEREEEEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Market risk (Continued) W5 E B (&)
(iii) Other price risk (Continued) (iii) E b E&E R (8)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) B 5T ()
Profits after tax and accumulated profits RNEE 2 R m N R B EHE
would increase/decrease by HK$753,000 A #% 35 o0 R 4753,0007% T
(2017: investment valuation reserve would —E—tF BREEHHFE
increase/decrease by HK$2,218,000) for # R 42,218,000 ) ¢
the Group as a result of the changes in RN ETEMEE LA TFE
fair value of listed financial assets. BESH -
Credit risk = & Rk
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation AEBEGRAEBREEKE S REM
to its trade and other receivables and cash ERMBITRSTFRNEERR

deposits with banks.

The carrying amounts of trade and other EWE 5 R EMERER  ZRERE
receivables, restricted cash, and cash and cash MR RERAREZEEHERSS
equivalents represent the Group’s maximum ExemE EFHEGRRAGEERR o

exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. cRMIARMKEEKRERE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (&

(Continued)

b) MBEBREEEFERBE

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

To manage this risk, bank deposits are mainly
placed with state-owned financial institutions
and reputable banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions. The management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider the
Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number
of counterparties and customers. For other
receivables, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The directors of
the Company believe that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of other receivables.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

(#&)

FERR(E)

REEZRAR RUTEREERFE
REEEERSNEESREE N
BESENRT - AKEEEEED
Zi—XBGAEEBEEEERE
SEHBEREMERER  AER
ERMRETH RO BAER - 1t
S AEBEREHREDRENE
RERNEZER 2 WE 58 - A
B R A 1 AT MK (B 5RIR R R 59 2 R
BEEBE-UME ARAEEFR
REAEBAYBREXNEESETRAR
BEHRBRYBRNAEHF T RE
F-sEMEBERRMS  TEE
THRBEABNLERBER
B R A0 BRI A @i E
e SR IA R @RI - A2
A EERRANE B H AR YRR
HMAEEERTEBEENEANEE
B

B8 F 07 B B R R AR
BRETREEFIRZRT  BUR
HESEERRAR -
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of
credit risk.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of, a financial asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
information.

forward-looking Especially the

following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating
J external credit rating
o actual or expected significant adverse

changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the debtors

in the expected
of the
debtors, including changes in the payment

o significant changes
performance and behaviour
status of debtors in the Group and

changes in the operating results of the

debtors.

7.

€

(4

%
=}

(b)

MTAERMHEREE

)

BEEREEEERBE
(&)

EERR(E)
BHERNESEASEETIR R
TrrBHESFEGR s &R EER
% N - AN S N K M A Y B
EhER -

AEBRNTERCREEREZR
BAMEEREREHEEREE
RRAETHEBRZRM BFTEE
ERBRALRRAZEN AEELE
BEERBEEHBLEONRRE
ROFPHERABHEONRER - A&
B E B RS I A IR A AR 1
R LEAATIER:

s ABEENR
o  IINEEERR

s TEHMEBIREBABITEMENGE
NEBRBEREBHNEY B
SRBERANERKFAHEK
) &

. BEBAGEEENERAESD
EXED

s BEBANBEHMRRLITANE
REY BREBARAEE
NFMRRNBE R EEARLE
% Zi E}—J w4



7.

As at 31st December, 2018, the gross carrying
trade receivables was

(2017: HK$260,479,000) and
the maximum exposure to loss was
HK$19,083,000 (2017: HK$16,356,000). The
Group made no write-off of trade receivables
during the year (2017: nil).

amount of
HK$248,854,000.

For the amounts due from associates, joint
ventures and non-controlling shareholders of
the Group considered the ECL
impairment was insignificant as there have been

subsidiaries,

continuous payments with no history of default.

RABHEEEERA A
—T - \FF®
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. *RMIARMBEREKRER
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management BEEREEEERBE
objectives and policies (Continued) (%)
Credit risk (Continued) EERK(E)
Trade receivables FEWEZ 5 AR K
The Group applies the simplified approach to RNEBRA B BB WS LR EWR
providing for expected credit losses prescribed AT Bt A AT IRABEERS
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the B -ZAEAAREYRE S RAE
lifetime expected loss provision for trade FRIEEFERBERE -
receivables.
As at 31st December, 2018, the loss allowance RZE-—N\E+A=+—H 8
provision was determined as follows. The BEREEBETENT UNTHEHBEEES
expected credit losses below also incorporated BAREE THIERLEER -
forward looking information.
90 days
Trade receivables 0-30days 31-90days to 1 year Total
FE W B 5 B % 0Z30% 31E90X  90REF Gl
Expected credit loss BHEEER 2% 2% 13%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) EEAE(TET) 110,705 10,756 127,393 248,854
Loss allowance provision (HK$'000) BREEE(TET) (2,541) (190) (16,352) (19,083)

:%—)\iJr:HEwL B E

W Z 5 K X B HE B E A
248,854,000/ JT(— Jc F
260,479,000/ JT) * ﬁﬁ xANEEA

19,083,0000%% ;t(= & — £ F :
16,356,0007% 7T) - AN EE B R F A I

EMEREESER(ZF—LF:
&) -

ERBEAT AELERMBA
Al RACR A E - B AR
EEHERR EREORESE &
A6 B30 5 78 MO 42 BB UM B A R
EPE
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group has net current assets amounting to
approximately HK$47,889,262,000 at 31st
December, 2018.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank and other borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31st
2018, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$15,566,987,000 (2017: HK$11,362,356,000).
Details of which are set out in note 35.

December,

The following table details the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. For non-derivative financial liabilities,
the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

7.

ERTERMEEREE
(&)

(b)

AR EEREREE
(&)

REESR R
R-ZZE—NF+-_A=+—H" K
SEHB R EEFEY
47,889,262,0007% JT ©

REBRBECRRIE  A&H
ERREFRSRERARENER
BRARRRZKF UXNAEH
LEMTH LRERESRENDLZ
FE -BEREEERRTRHEMEER
ZRE NHERTEERRDHZR
= o

REBERBRITREMEEEREE
TRBHESRFE- R_FT—NF
T A=+—H AEBZARHH
RITERENE 4 515,566,987,00078
(= Z —+ F :11,362,356,00078
JC) o B AR BRI FE35 ©

TRAIANEE 2 & BAEZF R
ERHR-RIETESBAEBM
FoRRIREBEEMAEZIARTR
AEREAREEAIWERERZ
RREAHREERR ZREIA
MNERAERERE -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. SRIERMBRERBRER
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (%8
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management (b) BEREAKREEBEERBE
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBEERR(E)
0 o Mo 3 5 R > o= A
Liquidity and interest risk tables mBE & M EE R K
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective  or less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
ME¥ BEXR3 AHRRE
BRA= SR-F -E5E AENE MEAE REE
%  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$'000
TERL TAER TERL TAER TERL
2018 —g-N\f
Non-derivative financial FTESRER
liabilities
Trade and other payables ERE S REMENR 19,616,373 - — 19,616,373 19,616,373
Property rental deposits NEREEE 122,336 - - 122,336 122,336
Amount due to the ultimate  JE{S S & E R
holding company AGIE S
— interest-free — P8 21,647 - - 21,647 21,647
— variable rate — 2= 4.37% 31,769 - - 31,769 30,924
Amount due to an R —AFRER
intermediate holding AAFE
company
— interest-free — i B 3,209 - - 3,209 3,209
Amounts due to fellow ENRZANE
subsidiaries AGE
— interest-free — et B 1,377 - - 1,377 1,377
Amounts due to non- FERS BB 2 R SF R IR
controlling shareholders of &R E
subsidiaries )
— interest-free — T & 1,445,635 - - 1,445,635 1,445,635
— fixed rate — EEfE 742% 147,223 - - w23 0,989
— variable rate Lk 592% 838,730 - — 838730 808,320
Amounts due to joint ventures ERf & & & XFE
— interest-free — T\E\T B 741,562 - - 741,562 741,562
— fixed rate — EEf=E 5.68% 2,875,571 - - 2,875,571 2,777,012
Bank and other borrowings TR EAEE
— fixed rate — EEHE 4.53% 7,305,123 7,957,210 5,329,046 20,591,379 17,044,936
— variable rate — FEFx 3.92% 6,859,413 26,911,334 3,715,805 37,486,552 33,256,283
Notes payable ENEE
— fixed rate — E e 5.21% - 5,479,479 - 5,479,479 4,704,598
Loan from a fellow subsidiary — &R ZHIEA A
& — 206,897 — 206,897 206,897
40,009,968 40,554,920 9,044,851 89,609,739 80,922,558
Financial guarantee issued in B & i 3tH & 2\ 7] |
respect of credit facilities ~ S ELEMERE
granted to associates and S A 2 HEE(R
joint ventures N
— maximum amount — B ERE
guaranteed (note 44) (Hiit44) 3,909,068
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

(Continued)
2017 S
Non-derivative financial FTEERERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables  [EfVE 5 RE M5
Property rental deposits NEHeRS
Amount due to the ultimate & & &2
holding company NEFA
— interest-free — T3 &
— variable rate — BYT=
Amount due to an FEf — MR R
intermediate holding RAFE
company ,
— interest-free — T8
Amounts due to fellow GESE]
subsidiaries NG
— interest-free — P58
— variable rate — BB %
Amounts due to non- AN ER A
controlling shareholders of & B
subsidiaries
— interest-free — Rit8
— fixed rate — BEF|=E
— variable rate — ZEi|=
Amounts due to joint ventures [E & &1 X 1B
— interest-free — a8
— Fixed rate — B =
Bank and other borrowings ~ R{TREMEE
— fixed rate — BEF|=
— variable rate — 2B %
Notes payable eSS
— fixed rate — B %
Loan from a fellow subsidiary *Fag@% =G|
S

Financial guarantee issued in
respect of credit facilities
granted to associates and
joint ventures
— maximum amount

guaranteed (note 44)

7. SRMIBERMBRERBRER
(#&)
b) MBEEABREEBEERBX
(%)
REBE SRR (E)
N SR 7 A
MENE © M R E R
(%)
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective  or less than Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
mEFS IESS L
ERME SR— —E0F RENE mE R KA
% HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEL TAL TEL TAL TEL
15,473,700 — - 15,473,700 15,473,700
126,151 — — 126,151 126,151
22,420 — - 22,420 22,420
4.86% 400,984 - - 400,984 389,172
21,034 — - 21,034 21,034
373,583 — - 373,583 373,583
7.27% 224,022 — - 224,022 214,286
1,017,904 — - 1,017,904 1,017,904
6.68% 251,291 — - 251,291 241,221
5.46% 1,313,217 — - 1,313,217 1,269,879
1,495,189 — - 1,495,189 1,495,189
4.55% 784,778 — - 784,778 763,096
5.80% 8,221,053 7,950,426 4,015,018 20,186,497 16,542,985
4.61% 8,029,917 19,894,480 1,736,538 29,660,935 26,382,251
4.75% 4,015,781 — - 4,015,781 3,900,000
— 214,286 — 214,286 214,286
41,771,024 28,059,192 5,751,556 75,581,772 68,447,157

2,088,743
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Fair values

(i)

Financial instruments carried at

fair value

The following table presents the fair value
of financial instruments measured at 31st
December, 2018 on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair
Value Measurement”. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:
o Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for

identical financial instruments

J Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable
market data

° Level 3 (lowest level): fair values

measured using valuation techniques

in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data

7.

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

THTAERMEERER
(5

Tt

=

(c) D¥E
(i) UAFEFEZSH
TH

RIZ & 7B B %5 & 22 Rl 56 135%
[AFEFEIMREN =R
FEEBR RZE-—N\Ft+=
A=t BREEHEESE
NERmIANRFEZIINT
Ko ANTFEFEMBENER
TI2RATNEEIDEMAE A
BENAEEREREREE

mEE :

s FAEFER: A
FERBEMS T HERE R
TEAMBECRERE)

SHEATE

s F_A:NBERERM
SHRBEUEE T ANR
B - IMEBEEEHAY
ERREERERATEER
[EE & PACEEE- T

EATE

s FZREERFR):FA
BHRERHAHEER
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Fair values (Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments carried at

fair value (Continued)

At 31st December, 2018, the Group had
following financial instruments carried at
fair value all of which are based on the

Level 1
hierarchy:

Assets

Financial assets at fair
value through profit

or loss
— Listed
— Unlisted

Assets
Available-for-sale
investments

— Listed

and Level 3 of the fair value

BE
AHEERE

— k@

7. EMIEARBKERKRER
(#8)

(c) B¥F

B (&)

i) UAFEFEZSH
TER(E)
RZE—NF+_A=+—
A AEENT2m T EZN
AFEERHEZE—REE
=R EZAFEALR:

Fair value measurements as

at 31st December,

2018 categorised into
R2018F12A3MBM A FEHED ER

Fair value
at 31st
December,
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R2018%
12A31H
WA FE E—® E-®R %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT
15,053 15,053 — —
411,888 — — 411,888
426,941 15,053 — 411,888
Fair value measurements as
at 31st December,
2017 categorised into
2017 12ANBHRAFEHESER
Fair value
at 31st
December,
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R20174F
12HA31H
B A FE E—H E_M E=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FBT FAET FET
44,367 44,367 — —




7.

FNEFREEAR AR

—T - \FF®
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. SRMIBERMBREBRER
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (&
(Continued)
(c) Fair values (Continued) (c) A¥{E(E)

(i) Financial instruments carried at (i) AAFEFEZESE
fair value (Continued) T A&

During the year ended 31st December, BE_Z-—N\F+HA=+—
2018, there were no significant transfers BILEEE F—8ME-_HE
between financial instruments in Level 1 BT A EEEMERNER
and Level 2, or transfer in and out of E=MITEEHAREL -
Level 3.

(ii) Fair values of financial (i) ¥FEUAQAFEFEZ
instruments carried at other eRMIAEZAFE
than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group's ASEeMIAZREERX
financial instruments carried at cost or ASBE KA ZERT
amortised cost were not materially EER-_F-—LtF+A
different from their fair values as at 31st ST-HZAFELERERE

December, 2017. e
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(c) Fair values (Continued)

(&)

(c)

(iii) The fair values of financial assets and

financial liabilities are determined as

follows:

The fair values of financial assets with

standard terms and conditions and traded

on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted active bid prices
and ask prices respectively; and the fair
values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from

observable current market transactions as

input.

8. REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of the net
amounts received and receivable from third parties,
net of tax payable in the PRC. An analysis of the

8. WA
WABRE=TTE W R ERHRIBFR A
MR ERN 2P BEBE) - ARBEFAK

Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

Sales of properties

Rental income and building
management service income

Income from hotel operations

Sales of goods

Others

ERTERMEEREE

A ¥ E(8)
(iii) eMEEREBARZATE

BIATHAERE :

ERMWEREGET RN - A
REBRBTNEEEZERE
E-ERAVFEDEMS AR
EERREET MEMSH
BERSRABZAFEDR
BARZEEEN  AATEBE
ZERMER ZEERASE
BRI RREREDTMETE °

AZDITWT

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
MEHE 21,207,257 29,862,706

HEWAREFEERD
WA 1,614,335 1,456,841
B Jh & E A 236,009 196,758
HEE M 72,746 89,744
H b 103,297 96,993
23,233,644 31,703,042




FRAEXEEAR QA

- N\FFR
OTHER GAINS, NET 9. Hihlhzm » FHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Dividend income A B A 7,665 6,323
Exchange (loss)/gain bE X (&18) W (281,254) 440,910
Government subsidy I T 46 B 17,080 15,388
Interest income from bank R1T A B U A 152,126 139,128
Interest income from loan to BERF—HEERRAER
an associate Z A B U A 69,095 6,844
Interest income from loans to ERTFEELESKRZ
joint ventures ME M A 119,413 186,774
Interest income from IR AR 2
non-controlling interests A B2 U A 13,421 17,170
Others H 251,638 181,592
349,184 994,129
. FINANCE COSTS 10. B & R &<
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FET
Finance costs on interest bearing FFEEERERA
borrowings 3,285,328 2,946,788
Less: amounts capitalised B B AL FRIE (2,009,762) (1,984,910)
1,275,566 961,878

FRAERNMLZBERTREFERE -

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose
from specific borrowings.

The capitalisation rate of borrowings was 5.21% HE_ZT-—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE"
(2017: 5.14%) for the year ended 31st December, BEBERNEERA521%(ZFE — L F:
2018. 5.14% ) °
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 1M1.EEME
Directors emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section RIBFE R &0 (5622F) £383K KA
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. A(EREEE M E R RO (F622GE)
622) and the Companies (Disclosure of information WEMNEEM T :
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G) is
as follows:

Other emoluments

Hiti &

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits Bonuses  contributions emoluments

ek RAKEF
e HiE A A HE R Y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THER THERT THER

2018 —E-N\F

Wang Xu Ea): - 3,216 - 18 3,234
Xue Ming ] - 480 - 18 498
Han Qingtao BERE - 2,774 - 18 2,792
Ye Liwen - 22 - 2,809 - 18 2,827
Zhu Weirong R - 2,743 - 18 2,761
Choy Shu Kwan Yk 314 - - - 314
Ip Chun Chung, Robert BB 314 - - - 314
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia REX 314 - - - 314
Wong Ka Lun EE 314 - - - 314

Total A& 1,256 12,022 - 90 13,368




FRAEXEEAR QA

B N\FFH
11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 1M1 EEME (E)
(Continued)
Other emoluments
A2
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits Bonuses  contributions emoluments
Hek RNER
we H o 58 A 4T STEHER ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FET FET TET TEL
2017 ZE-tF
Wang Xu T8 — 3,251 1,255 18 4,524
Xue Ming e — 437 — 18 455
Han Qingtao BRI - 3,251 1,255 18 4,524
Ye Liwen i — 2,801 1,146 18 3,965
Zhu Weirong 2R — 2,801 1,146 18 3,965
Choy Shu Kwan L9k 286 — — — 286
Ip Chun Chung, Robert EiRA 264 - — — 264
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia BEH 286 - - - 286
Wong Ka Lun XMW 286 - — - 286
Total = 1,122 12,541 4,802 90 18,555
Notes: Hiat -
In each of the two years ended 31st December, 2018 and 2017, no REBEE_ZE—NFER-_FT—tF+_A=1+—HILLM
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors, as an BEFEEEF AKEREATAES IS ERS
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a compensation b 0 B2 300 I BR AN 6= [ B 2 AR SR RE TR A 1R o NN E
for loss of office. None of the directors has waived any emoluments TR N\EFEERE—tFT A=+ —RBIEMEFE
during each of the two years ended 31st December, 2018 and BEF BEESRETAME -

2017.
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2 E— ) \F+—A=+—HIFE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12 ENERSEHMA L

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments rEBERUSRSFMA LS TE(ZE
in the Group, none of them is the director (2017: —+F W) ARBEE(EMeH R £
four) of the Company whose emoluments are XHFEI) AL (ZE—tF: —fU)&
included in the disclosure in note 11 above. The STMATZHEmT

emoluments of the five (2017: one) highest paid
individuals are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZEFE—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
Salaries and other benefits Fr e K H A 1g A 15,538 2,541
Bonuses B4 1,742 1,266
Retirement benefits scheme R KAE A 5T &l 4 5K
contributions 536 234
17,816 4,041
The emoluments of the five (2017: one) highest paid AN (ZE—+F: —[)ERaFMALTZ
individuals were within the following bands: & FATAR
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Number of Number of
employee employee
BE AH EE AE
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T £3,000,000
BT — _
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £3,500,000
7T 3 _
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £4,000,000
T 2 —
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T 24,500,000

BT _ :




13. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

EXPENSE

Profit before income tax expense is arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

Staff costs 8 TR A
— directors’ emoluments (note 177) — EBEMe HE11)
— other staff costs — EM B TR
— other staff’s retirement benefit — EM B TRKEF

scheme contributions T2l 45Kk

HHFENHERR
GFFATBREX2A)

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments (included in administrative
expenses)

Depreciation of property, plant and MZE - BERLZERE

equipment

Total depreciation and amortisation mERBIHERE
Auditor’s remuneration % BRI &
— audit fee — BB
— disbursements — BN
Cost of inventories recognised as ERBAXZFERAR
expenses
Gain on disposal of investment LEREMEZ WHE

properties
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE -  BERRHEZ
plant and equipment !
EWE Z RN 2 BEEE
H h FE U BR 5k 2 R B S 1
NTREZREHERS

Impairment loss on trade receivables
Impairment loss on other receivables
Operating lease rentals in respect of

— rented premises — HEME
Property rental income and building #XME & WA REFE R
management service income, net of  FRIFWA (B EEF X

direct expenses of HK$630,632,000
(2017: HK$537,411,000)

630,632,000/% 7T
—E—tF:
537,411,000/% 7T)

FNEFREEAR AR

- N\FFR

13. BR P 15 Bi B8 < A s Al

AT BB AN ENR,(FA)

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
13,368 18,555
1,016,506 950,862
146,376 146,854
1,176,250 1,116,271
10,764 10,160
138,205 124,950
148,969 135,110
8,350 7,900

880 850
13,240,545 23,852,608
(3,822) (5,326)
15,667 10,343
2,727 —

378 —
38,080 41,192
(983,703) (919,430)
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2 E—\F+ _A=1+—HILFE

=3

14.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

X84 :
BANEH

The charge comprises:
Hong Kong Profits Tax

PRC Enterprise Income Tax R EPTIEH

PRC withholding income tax B B TR A0 P 1S B

LAT T IRER
Deferred taxation R FETH IR

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the
year. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made as there is no assessable profit for both
years.

The PRC Statutory Enterprise Income Tax s
calculated at 25% based on the estimated assessable
profit for the year.

The PRC withholding income tax of 10% has been
levied on gain arising on dividend income from a
fellow subsidiary.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 41.

Certain PRC subsidiaries are also subject to the PRC
LAT which is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of properties, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditure including costs of land use rights and
development and construction.

14. FIBHAX

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
1,168,499 925,756
991 632
1,628,112 1,329,043
2,797,602 2,255,431
25,884 67,118
2,823,486 2,322,549

EBFNER IR AFE G ERTOE IR
HE165%(ZF — £ F :165% )t & -
B W B 4F fE 1 8 FR R R R A1 iR £
BEAFGHELREE-

o B 5 1 B A B T AR A 2 £ A
R 438 R 1B R 25% 3T o

[ Z K 8 2 7] B SR AP 15 Y s B U 10%
REBEMAEH -

EETR IR BN a4 ©

ETHENBEARNMESXPELIEE
o MRBELIRYEFERD (AL ED
EMERBERATRR Y - B L EA
RE R AN AN B 38 R 32 SRR AR) 32 T F30% 2=
60% 2 RAE B R B
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—T - \FF®
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 14. Fi8# B X (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be FAMGEHAXBEEGEEBRERPZHRAE
reconciled to the profit before income tax expense in 5 X Al s A B BRI ¢
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
Profit before income tax expense B P 15 B4 BA 32 A V4 A 5,424,934 4,889,189
Tax at PRC statutory tax rate of 25% & F B A € i R 25% a1 &
(2017: 25%) ZBRBE(CZE -5
25% ) 1,356,234 1,222,297
Tax effect of share of results of DIEEERAEEZ
associates W2 13,489 2,521
Tax effect of share of results of DIEEELERERZ
joint ventures M E (62,592) (49,522)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A ERL TR 2 7l 2 2
for tax purpose w2 263,583 165,573
Tax effect of income not taxable ARG 2 WA 2B
for tax purpose ®E (549,192) (350,146)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised & 7 72 ¢ 18 &5 18 2 1 7%
TE 407,042 343,934
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses  E)F 2 A & FE R i 1H &5 18
previously not recognised BB E (43,202) (35,987)
Effect of different tax rates of REMAEERLE 2
subsidiaries operating in MEBAR 2 TEBERZ
other jurisdictions T8 81,103 122,697
Effect of tax already subject to LAT BN T B BT 2
MR E 1,241,955 1,040,699
PRC withholding income tax BRI FT S T 991 632
Others Hity 114,075 (140,149)

Income tax expense FT {58 X 2,823,486 2,322,549
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per

BRER

FASKRERREFRNIRE 2R

share for the year is based on the following data: FTE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Earnings: ZA
Profit for the year attributable to RNARHEE NEEFA
owners of the Company Y A 2,241,590 2,462,061
2018 2017
—E-N\F —_T—+F
Number of shares: P tn B A

Weighted average number of ordinary 7t & & K&K & #58 & F

shares in issue for the purpose of ZBBETERRIMNE
basic and diluted earnings per share  F¥J %

The diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31st December, 2018 and 2017 are the same as basic
earnings per share presented as there were no
potentially dilutive ordinary shares.

3,661,537,046 3,661,537,046

HEREBEE T N\EE_ZT—+F+_H
St RUEFEYVERFEEBHERE L
R MEREERNERERERE
REFER -



The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
at 31st December, 2018 and 2017 were arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
AA Property Services Limited, an independent
professional surveyor and property valuer not
connected with the Group. AA Property Services
Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
were determined either on the basis of capitalisation
of rental income derived from existing tenancies or
by reference to comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market. The Group’s
property manager and the chief financial officer have
discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year when
the valuation is performed for interim and annual
financial reporting.

FNEFREEAR AR

—T - \FF®
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES . REME
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Level 3 fair value measurement E=HRTEFE=
At beginning of the year F4 10,904,879 10,406,785
Additions NE — 2,018
Transfer to property, HIYE - BE R
plant and equipment B (40,240) (60,000)
Transfer from/(to) properties held By (B RFELE
for sale mE 1,811,977 (104,103)
Change in fair value NEEEF 278,932 66,329
Disposals e (11,499) (14,743)
Exchange adjustments ME 3, 38 B (372,240) 608,593
At end of the year FR 12,571,809 10,904,879

AEBREVENR_T-N\FR_T—+
FT_A=T—BZAFENRBILEE
AEMRYEGBEMREYEBERERA
A(EASEHMERE)RZANGBEE
EoREMEBHEERARTIBRBREM
BeKE BEGEERIIMY AR
M FEAMRETEEZLER - Zib
BENRREREHEZHERAZERL
ERFK2ERNBATHAGZIAELR
HERSMETE AKEMEEEARE
FER 15 B B N8 F MR B B (E R &
Wit ERKREGEEAER  KE25FHR
FEMBRE -
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(Continued)

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital

16. REWH ()

AEEMERELKEHEREURRES
SEERBERGE 2 MERD  HFARA

appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair value of the Group'’s investment properties
measured at the end of the reporting period is
categorised as level 3 of fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13.

FERAGFE XDBEARIERED
e

RBEMRABZAREREMEZRF
ENHRIBRBRBBY K MEERE13
BHEENRFESFRHNESE =M -

The carrying amounts of investment properties REWEZREBEBE
comprises:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
Properties held under FETO T LATE A
BHEZWE
— long-term leases in Hong Kong — RBEBZRHAMED 187,000 185,000
— medium-term (10-50 years) — R EZ
land use rights in the PRC (10E50% ) + b
1 A 1 12,384,809 10,719,879
12,571,809 10,904,879




(Continued)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Information about Level 3 fair value

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

16. REW (/)

EBE=RATVENEZAN

the direct comparison approach unless reliable market

measurements
Fair value as at Significant
31st December, Valuation unobservable Range or weighted Relationship of unobservable
2018  techniques* inputs average inputs to fair value
RZB-NE
t=ZA=t+-H EXAT FTRERAYESR
WAYE HERE BEBBE EEAMETHT ATENER
HK$'000
TEL
Completed properties in Hong Kong 187,000 Direct comparison Transaction price HK$24,667 (2017:  The higher the transaction price,
REBNEINF BENE (HK$/square feet) HK$24,400) the higher the fair value
RHER TET RHERER ATEES
(Br/¥HR) (Z5—+tF:
24,400 )
Completed properties in PRC 9,661,353  Direct comparison Transaction price RMB350-RMB46,600  The higher the transaction price,
REEMNETYF BENE (RMB/square (2017: RMB3,600- the higher the fair value
metre) RMB45,800) RZERER AFELRD
L5 ER AE#3507 2
(AR®T/ AR #46,6007C
F7K) (Z2—+%:
ARH3,600E
AR45,8007)
Completed properties in PRC 2,723,456  Income approach Capitalisation rate 2.7% to 8.5% (2017:  The higher the capitalisation rate,
REBER®RTNE WA BRI & 2.7% to 30%) the lower the fair value
27%%85% AALHERS ATELE
(ZF-t%:
27%%30%)
12,571,809
S Fair value of completed properties is generally derived using & BRIWMENAFE—BREREZELBRERF/D

(BRI ERFEMREMRZAISETISERN

information is not available for certain properties due to their

locations or specialised function uses.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is

1

recognised in the line item “increase in fair value of

investment properties” on the face of the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during
the year.

ETHWERIN) -

BAWEZ ATEARDREARBER

MREME L AT EEMIEL R -

REAF=ZBABEETMBARES -
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EQUIPMENT

Cost or valuation:
At 1st January, 2017

Additions

Transfer

Transfer from investment property
Transfer to properties held for sale
Disposals

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 52)

Surplus arising on revaluation

Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation

Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2017 and
1st January, 2018

Additions

Transfer

Transfer from properties held for sale

Transfer from investment property

Disposals

Surplus arising on revaluation

Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation

Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2018
Comprising:

At cost
At valuation — 2018

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018
B2 —FE—\F1=A=1—HIFE

17. % - BERRZRHE

Furniture,
Hotel  Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Plant and  Construction
properties land  Buildings equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
B %8

BENE HELH 2 SEL ] RE BERES ERIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TAR FAEL TERL TAR FAEL TER TER
931,460 115,230 1,096,465 254,174 164,313 220,352 605 2,782,599
— — 4123 18,853 4,874 3774 685 32,309

- - - - - 866 (866) -

— 54,000 6,000 - - - - 60,000

— — (269,537) — — - — (269,537)

- - (335) (12,702) (50,585) (13,234) (85) (76,941)

— — 4978 2,997 161 11,205 — 19,341

44,548 - - - - - - 44,548
(44,548) — - — — - — (44,548)
55,444 - 63,569 12,842 9,238 12,644 32 153,769
986,904 169,230 905,263 276,164 128,001 235,607 371 2,701,540
- - 9,059 96,924 1,720 15,743 38 123,484

- - - - - 38 (38) -
1,471,548 - 16,933 - - - — 1,488,481
- 31,524 8,716 - - - - 40,240
- - (19,612) (27,832) (13,528) (2171) (170) (63,313)
547,454 - - - - - - 547,454
(54,634) - - - - - - (54,634)
(34,031) - (29,808) (8,053) (3,944) (8,099) (10) (83,945)
2,917,241 200,754 890,551 337,203 112,249 241,118 191 4,699,307
- 200,754 890,551 337,203 112,249 241,118 191 1,782,066
2,917,241 - - - - - - 2917241
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. ¥ -BERRZRE(E)

EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Furniture,
Hotel  Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Plant and Construction
properties land  Buildings equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
BH- %8
BENE  AEL# BT e RE BEREE ERIE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FEx FAET FET FEx FET FAET
Accumulated depreciation: 2 E:
At 1st January, 2017 R=E-t£-5-A - 599 240376 159355 12283 198,026 — 766587
Charge for the year EENB 43012 3205 27,09 31,715 11,650 5,272 — 124950
Disposals HE - — — (12,462) (41,660) (12,476) — (66,598)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 52)  WEE— K B2 A
(Wiz#52) - - 825 2,418 155 10,670 - 14,068
Elimination on revaluation EfREH (44,548) - - - - - - (44,548)
Transfer to properties held for sale B ERENE - - (26,641) — — — — (26,641)
Exchange adjustments ERBE 1,536 — 14,580 9,397 5,837 11,530 - 42,880
At 31st December, 2017 and RZZ-t%
1st January, 2018 +ZA=1+-AEk
“2-\¥-A-A - 49,199 256,236 193,423 98,818 213,022 - 810,698
Charge for the year EENB 55,269 3700 26543 39,905 8,755 4,033 — 138,205
Disposals & - - (5,900) (27,320) (12,815) (1,611) - (47,646)
Elimination on revaluation BERYHE (54,634) - - - - - - (54,634)
Exchange adjustments LS (635) - (8,652) (6,191) (3,078) (7,372) - (25,928)
At 31st December, 2018 RZB-N%
+=ZA=1+-H - 52,899 268,227 199,817 91,680 208,072 - 820,695
Carrying amounts: REE:
At 31st December, 2018 RZB-N\%
+-ZA=t+-8 2,917,241 147,855 622,324 137,386 20,569 33,046 191 3,878,612
At 31st December, 2017 RZZ—t&
+ZA=1+-8 986,904 120,031 649,027 82,741 29,183 22,585 371 1,890,842
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

17. % -BERKEE)

The above items of property, plant and equipment % BEKFREEBHREZER

are depreciated using the straight-line basis at the E-FRAFEFEMT

following rates per annum:

Hotel properties 2% B JE ) 2 2%
Leasehold land over the lease HE T 12 1 4 F 51
term
Buildings 2%-18% ’F 2%%E18%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% R KRERRKE 20%
Motor vehicles 20% AE 20%
Plant and machinery 5%-23% R 5 Fo e 25 5%Z%23%
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —T—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
The carrying amounts of hotel BT o077 AT 51 75 0 FF
properties, leasehold land and BZBEWME - -HE T
buildings located at: NEFZHRHEE :
— long-term leases in Hong Kong — REBEBZRHARLY 178,138 142,371
— medium-term land use rights in — R B
the PRC {52 i 1% 3,509,282 1,613,591
3,687,420 1,755,962




17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s hotel properties at 31st
December, 2018 was arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by AA Property
Services Limited, an independent professional
surveyor and property valuer not connected with the
Group. AA Property Services Limited is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in
the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation were determined by either
discounting the construction cost or arrived by the
income approach, whereby the income derived from
the hotel operations with regard to past trading
accounts are capitalised at an appropriate rate of
return to arrive at the value of the property interests
with due allowance for outgoings and expenses. The
Group’s property manager and the chief financial
officer
valuation assumptions and valuation results twice a

have discussions with the valuer on the

year when the valuation is performed for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair value of the Group’s hotel properties
measured at the end of the reporting period is
categorised as Level 3 of fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13.

17.

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

ME-BERKEE)

AEBBHEMER_ZTE—N\NFE+=A
=+ HZAFELBYEENSMEY
EGEMBRTOYEBEMNAR AR (EAE
EMEREE)IEZBZHEETE - RRY
XEMERARNDEBINEMEBG 2K
B EEABERKEHAEE@EMME R
AMEETHAEZER ZEENEA
WIREERAKFEBRAEETE - B E
ELHREGEBERSER OB 2R ER
WABAR  ASEWEREZEE I
HAEBAYLERERERE A5EY
X¥EBEARERVEEERBFERAGHE
BFEGEMSwEERIREELERE U
B2 T PRFETHRE -

RBEMRABZARBBENEZ AT
ETHRD B RRE RV HREERE135
EENRATFESREIELE =4
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

17. % -BERKEE)

Fair value as at Range or Relationship of
31st December, Valuation Significant weighted unobservable
2018 techniques unobservable inputs average inputs to fair value
R-B-NF
tZA=t-8 EXFTRE HEY FUBRBAMER
WAYE MERE BAlE nE¥Y AYENEE
HKS$'000
Hotel properties in Beijing, 364,368 Income approach Capitalisation rate 9.8% (2017: 9.8%) The higher the
PRC capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value
R B RABENE WAE TN A:#: 9.8% EALLXES
(22—t DYEME
9.8%)

Hotel properties in Wuhan,
Shunde, Shanghai and
Guiyang, PRC

2,552,873 Cost approach

RERE R LER
EBNEENE

A

2,917,241

Estimated profits from  RMB6,900 (2017:

operations (RMB/ RMB6,700)

square metre)
EEMEEN ARE6,9007
(ARERL/FTHK) (ZE—tF:
AR 6,7007)

0%-44% (2017
16%-30%)

Adjustment to
construction cost,
with reference to
the remaining useful

life
BRERAZE 2% 0%Z44%
BT A (ZE—HF:16%
Z30%)

RMB9,500-20,000
(2017: RMB9,500-
13,000)
AR9,500TF
AR 20,0007
(Z8—t%:
AR9,500TF
AR 13,0007

Construction cost per
square meter

The higher the estimated
profits, the higher the
fair value

fEarErss
NFESR

The higher the discount
rate, the lower the fair
value

TREER
RYEBE

The higher the
construction cost, the
higher the fair value

RERAHS -
AFEEE



17.

18.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Surplus on revaluation and exchange adjustment of

FRAEXEEAR QA

—T— )\ FF3f

17. W% -BERKEE)

properties held for own use are recognised in R

consolidated statement of comprehensive income in

“Surplus arising on revaluation of properties”.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 to

FIFERMEZEGRGRELAEIR
ErmEmRERZ[MEE[ER]FER -

REANE=REETMEALELEHAM

other levels during the year. Rl
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. BN HEERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
The Group's prepaid lease payments A% [E 2B HEHKE
comprise: BiE
— medium-term land use rights — R Bz E L
in the PRC 15 /A 384,358 335,560
The Group's prepaid lease payments ZAN& & 2 B 1 & B
comprise: BE
— current asset — mEBEE 11,995 10,175
— non-current asset — RBEE 372,363 325,385
384,358 335,560
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B2 —FE—\F1=A=1—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. RBE N R 2=
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of unlisted investments in REsE AR Z2IE LT
associates & AR 353,070 334,455
Share of post-acquisition losses and 215U EE & EE K HE
reserves, net of dividends received kB WA & (90,532) (38,410)
Goodwill fEES 2,038 2,110
264,576 298,155
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts due from associates: JE W Bk 2 X Bl FRIE
— Interest-free — TEFE 63,245 547,214
— Fixed rate of 6% — BEFE6% 725,402 —
— Fixed rate of 8% — EE A *E8% 213,793 92,857
— Fixed rate of 9% — [E E 7 &9% - 117,347
— Fixed rate of 10% — EEH*E10% 225,819 —
1,228,259 757,418
The amounts are unsecured and repayable on FARELHREET BRAREREERY

demand or within one year. R—FREE-



19.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

Details of the Group’s principal associates as at 31st
December, are as follows:

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

19. A& RN R 2= (B8)

AEBRT - A=1t—"BZE2BEQF
ZEHBMT

Proportion of ownership
interest by the Group

AEBERERLLH
Place of
establishment
Name of associates and business 2018 2017  Principal activities
BENRER RIREE®RHE —Z—-N\F —tF FEEK
MEMYPEMEREERAA PRC 30% 30% Property development
(ENDPEHME] Bl LIS
BEtXHLETEXZARAA PRC 25% 25%  Property development
(MEmtx]) Y L
BEEEEXERAR ([FEEE]) PRC 30% 30% Property development
H LIS
BT ERNEMEREARAR  PRC 30% —  Property development
(TS + i) Sagc] L
BENESBEEERAR(HMNER]) PRC 40% —  Property development

&

The above table lists the associates of the Group
which in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other associates would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

MEER

EERA ERIHBAKRE 2 X8 EJZé
EBEAFEZIAKERZ LR TR
ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁfﬂlﬁﬁ*MRTZé{ﬂ?iﬁle "\/\
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B2 —FE—\F1=A=1—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. A& N F 2= (8)

(Continued)

BE2_Z—N\&ER_FT—+tF+=A
=t BUEFEENETEAREKRSE=H
REBRVEBRRAR - HAEE M= 8
EAEMKEBENEN - WEBREWT

Additions during the year ended 31st December,
2018 and 2017 mainly included the investments in a
number of property development companies together
None of the acquisition was
individually significant to the Group. Summary of the

with third parties.
acquisitions are as follows:

For the year ended 31st December, BE-_Z-N\F+=ZA=+-—

2018 HiEFE
Total
35 R 8RN BNES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FET
Identifiable net assets: AR FEE:
Identifiable assets and liabilities AHANEEK
assumed EREEE
Assets BE 886,939 2,517,343 3,404,282
Liabilities BE (887,945)  (2,466,170)  (3,354,115)
Identifiable net assets AHAFEE (1,006) 51,173 50,167
Reconciliation to the HBASEEREEZ QT
Group's interests in associates: MR :
Cash consideration for WHEESKE
the acquisition 3,448 23,449 26,897
Fair values of the Group's share of  ZN& [ & {5 7] 54 7
identifiable net assets FEEZRAYE (3,448) (23,449) (26,897)

Goodwill

]

i}
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE ATl 2= (B)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31st December, BEZE-ZE—+tH&+=H
2017 =+—HLFE
Total
Bt B EE Fy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Identifiable net assets: ARAFEE:
Identifiable assets and liabilities A#HpEER
assumed EAREEE
Assets BE 2,791,630 683,394 3,475,024
Liabilities =K (2,690,363) (629,038) (3,319,401)
Identifiable net assets AHNFEEE 101,267 54,356 155,623
Reconciliation to the HAEEREE QT
Group's interests in associates: MERHER:
Cash consideration for WHER &K E
the acquisition (29,761) (17,857) (47,618)
Fair values of the Group's share 7N 65 B FE (G AT 3 A
of identifiable net assets FEEZANTE 29,761 17,308 47,069
Gooduwill S — 549 549
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B2 —FE—\F1=A=1—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. Rt E ARl 2 (58)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of EABEQCTAUBERGE
material associate \
Summarised financial information in respect of the AREEABERRNAHERBE R
Group’s material associate is set out below: LN
HEMNDEE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
As at 31st December BR+=—B=+—H
Current assets mENE E 1,733,253 1,817,217
Non-current assets IEREBEE 7,554 6,522
Current liabilities mEBE (1,024,739) (559,002)
Non-current liabilities EmBEFE — (416,667)
Included in the above amounts are: A LMRIEBHIEER A
Cash and cash equivalents RekERRE 12,665 34,107
Current financial liabilities mEemasEreR
(excluding trade and other payable) BN E 5 Kk HE AR FK) (814,751) (170,055)
Non-current financial liabilities EnBeRmaE(ITRE
(excluding other payable) H b & A5 BR 700 —_ (416,667)
Year ended 31st December BEZ+=-A=+—H
IEFE
Revenue A 834 1,282
Net loss and total comprehensive EEFEREZEY B
income (103,953) (16,083)
Included in the above amounts are: SFALEMRIENIER &
Depreciation and amortisation 1 & K B Y (151) (145)
Interest income A B U A 150 —
Interest expense B (93,144) (4,238)

Income tax expense BIEST A3 (1,407) (1,349)
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REt& N Tz (58)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of EABEQNRANKEERGE
material associate (Continued) (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial L BEREED RS B SRR
information to the carrying amount of the interest in RO ERAFEENREENS K-
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
Net assets BEFE 716,068 848,070
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 72N £ B ¥ & # 2 Lt {1
interest 30% 30%
Group's share of net assets AEEHHEETE 214,820 254,421
Gooduwill S 1,507 1,561
Carrying amount in the consolidated %34 B 753k & R E B
financial statements 216,327 255,982
Aggregate information of associates FEREANKBENTDERE
that are not individually material #m
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET

Carrying amount in the consolidated 4R & BF 75 3K AR B
financial statements 48,249 42,173
Group's share of losses AEESHERE (22,768) (5,258)
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 AEELEZRER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FET
Cost of unlisted investments REELHEZIELETERE
in joint ventures X A 7,635,284 4,035,953
Share of post-acquisition profit/(loss) 7 G Y& & F, (&5E)
and reserves, net of dividends K@ - HBRE WRE
received 138,111 (79,001)
7,773,395 3,956,952
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FETT
Amounts due from joint ventures: FEU & & 1 5 FHIR
— Interest-free — TR 867,988 738,342
— Fixed rate of 5% — B E A #*E5% 308,580 —
— Fixed rate of 5.7% — B E M #E5.7% — 90,357
— Fixed rate of 5.8% — [EF # *&5.8% —_ 476,191
— Fixed rate of 7% — BEMET% 360,632 373,512
— Fixed rate of 8% — B *E8% 435,437 1,206,940
— Fixed rate of 10% — & E A %&10% 503,885 519,570
— 110% of benchmark rate — 110% B & %
in the PRC ) 538,550 736,355
3,015,072 4,141,267
Amounts due to joint ventures: ENEEDERKIA :
— Interest-free — TErE 741,562 1,495,189
— Fixed rate of 4.35% — [EE # *&4.35% 1,154,023 611,905
— Fixed rate of 5.34% — B E F #%£5.34% 243,678 151,191
— Fixed rate of 6.85% — EEF *6.85% 1,379,311 —
3,518,574 2,258,285
The amounts are unsecured and repayable on EAzEY AEEE BAEERKEE -

demand.



20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Details of the Group’s principal joint ventures as at

31st December, are as follows:

Name of joint ventures

Place of
establishment
and business

FNEFREEAR AR

- N\FFR

20 REELRE 2R ()

AEBRT-_A=1t-HZEER/EERE

ZEHBMT

Proportion of ownership
interest by the Group

FEEEEERLH

2018 2017

Principal activities

BELEERE RYIREB®HE —T-N\F —ZT—+F FEEH
RINTRABIGELHEEHRA A PRC 45% 45% Theatre management
o BIbe & 52
tERERWERRAR ([ LE&E]) PRC 50% 50% (i) Investment holding
H RE®ZK
FERANEBEREFR QA PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
H REZEK
BERRNEFREFR LA PRC 46.7% 46.7% Property development
H MEER
ERERFIXEREERBRA A PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
o REZEK
LEREREEEFAR A PRC 50% 50% Property Investment
o MERE
tEEEREEEFRAQA PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
H REZEK
tEERKREBR AR PRC 50% 50% Investment holding

&

REZER
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BE—F—)\F+-A=+—AUFE

20.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

20 REELRX 2R (B)

Proportion of ownership
interest by the Group

FEBEFERLH
Place of
establishment
Name of joint ventures and business 2018 2017  Principal activities
BELEER RYREE®RE —Z-N\F —T—+tF FEXEK
RIMRAEHERZERA A PRC 50% 50% Property development
(DRIIRHE HE ) H X MEERE
RYTREEHEREER AR PRC 50% 50% Property development
(IRIREFEHE]) B MEER
REEGENEHERZERAA PRC 64.3% 64.3% Property development
(TREEBEAND 3 MEERE
BEHESREEFMEREERA A PRC 33% 33% (i) Property development
(IBm&R]) B MEER
2 EHEEERAR (2R EH] PRC 33% 33% (i) Property development
H MEERE
Win Loyal Development Limited HK 30% (iii) —  Property development
(' Win Loyal |) BB MEER



20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)

The above table lists the joint ventures of the Group

which in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the results or assets of the Group. To give

details of other joint ventures would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

The Group acquired an additional 50% equity interest of £/&
B 0T in 2017 and thus accounted for as a subsidiary of the
Group. /84T holds 50% equity interest in /@I,
which is an investment holding company in the PRC. After
the acquisition of /21T, £/82%18 becomes joint venture
of the Group. For details, please refer to note 52.

The Group acquired 33% equity interests in & &R and %
¥ £ 8 respectively at a total consideration of HK$47 million

in 2017 to expand business in property development.

The Group newly acquired 30% equity interest in Win Loyal
through acquired a fully owned subsidiary, Active Success
Consultants Limited at a total consideration of
HK$3,749,739,000 in 2018 in expand business in property

development in Macau.

RABXEEBER AR
- N\FFR

20 AEELERER(E)

EERA ERIHBAKEZEERE
EREAFEZIAKHEGLREE YRR
WREMEEARZERFAIL - &%

Hiat -

(i) AEER =T — L FWIE LIBEITHEIN0%R
e EmEESAEENBARARK- - L8R
TRALARE (- RRPEEMKINEE
%A ) 50% B HE o Wi EIBBRITIR - BB
BERRARENRELE - FHEF2HME
52 -

(ii) REBR -Z— L FABREL7008 B TH
Tl Ui B 7 B AR e BE UM | HI33% A - LABE K

(i) AKER T /\FIALKES,749,739,000/%
T B — [ & & M B 2 FlActive Success
Consultants Limited * # Ik 37 ##Win Loyal
30% % #E LA 8 KR P80 ¥ 3 A 3 S 7 o
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 REELE R (E)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of the AEFESEREEEENTBERTEHT
Group's material joint ventures are set out below: R

RYNMR = E

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
As at 31st December R+=—A=+—H
Current assets mENE E 3,412,523 3,231,372
Non-current assets EREEE 18,241 14,706
Current liabilities mEEE (558,263) (107,517)
Non-current liabilities B EE (886,667) (1,058,333)
Included in the above amounts are: GIA_LHFIERIE B A -
Cash and cash equivalents RekERRE 45,698 41,057
Current financial liabilities mMEERmAE
(excluding trade and other payable) (TEEENE S R HEM
B 5K%) (557,342) (104,959)
Non-current financial liabilities EnEERmEaRE

(excluding other payable) (T B FEH A RS BRFR) (886,667) (1,058,333)
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 AEELEZRR(B)
(Continued)
Year ended Year ended
31st 31st
December, December,
2018 2017
BZE H=E
—E-)N\#F —E—tF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—8
IEFE EFE
Revenue A — —
Net loss and total comprehensive loss &8/ ¥ %8 &k 2 H B BB (22,926) (26,499)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial Fi AR 